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Papakura District Profile 
Te waha: The gateway 
Papakura is the perfect blend of country and town, perched on the edge of the greater Auckland metropolitan area and ideally placed for those seeking 
lifestyle and opportunity. 

Located south of Manukau and Auckland cities and north of Franklin, the District retains an iconic Kiwi “small town” style and offers residents a great 
place to live, work and play. 

For business, the district is a perfectly located strategic gateway between urban Auckland and the rest of New Zealand, a crucial infrastructure link 
offering easy access to major arterial routes north and south. 

A District with its eye on the future, planning for phenomenal growth and providing for the needs of its communities. 

 

Papakura District Population 
At the 2006 Census of Population and Dwellings, the population of Papakura district was 45,183; up from 39,690 in 1996 and 40,668 at the 2001 
Census.   

Papakura’s population has for some time included a higher number of young people than other similar districts.  In the latest Census, this trend 
continues: a quarter of all residents are under the age of 15.  People resident in the district have a median age of 32.9 years, lower than the national 
median age of 35.9. 

Between 2001 and 2006 Papakura’s population increased 11.1 per cent. 

 

Papakura People 
Based on 2006 Census information, if Papakura district were 100 people: 

61 would be of European origin 

26.5 would identify as Māori 

10 would be of Pacific Island origin 

8 would be Asian 

1 would be of Middle Eastern origin 

1 person would identify themselves as being from another ethnic background 

25 would be under 15 years of age 

10 would be over 65 

48 would be men 

52 would be women 

4 would be unemployed 

2 would have an income over $100,000 per year 

35 would have an income of less than $10,000 per year 
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75 would speak one language 

14 would speak two languages 

2 would speak three or more languages 

7 would speak Māori 

 

Ethnic groups 
From the middle of last century, people of European descent have been the most numerous ethnic group in Papakura. At the 2006 Census, a wide 
range of ethnic backgrounds were reported by respondents. 

Ethnic groups (total responses)  

European 26,223 

Māori 11,376 

Pacific peoples 4,380 

Asian 3,501 

Middle Eastern, Latin American, African 480 

Other 3,783 

NB: Some respondents identify as being from more than one ethnic group, hence the total number of recipients is higher than the district’s total population. 

 

Families 
At the 2006 Census, there were 11,778 families in Papakura district.  

 

Households 
At the 2006 Census, there were 14,823 households in Papakura.  The average household size in Papakura is 3.0 people. 

 

Education 
There are 43 pre-school and early childhood centres, 22 primary, intermediate and secondary schools and one composite school in Papakura district. 

Papakura is growing fast, and as it does the standard of education among people of working age is rising. At the 2006 Census, 5,136 people aged 15 
years and over in Papakura district had a post-school qualification.   

Planning for Papakura District’s population growth includes proposals for several new schools in the Takanini area over the coming decade. 

As levels of education increase, the skills needed by new and existing businesses are becoming readily available among the local community. 

 

Business 
In 2006, there were 3,695 business locations (geographic units) in Papakura district compared with 309,749 for all of New Zealand.  
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Message from the chief executive  
 
 
 
This is the final annual report of Papakura District Council, one of eight former councils which were amalgamated to form the 
Auckland Council group on 1 November 2010. 

This report tracks the performance of the council for the 16-month period 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 and reports 
progress made against its long-term council community plan (long-term plan) and annual plans.  

Auckland Council, Watercare Services Limited and six new council controlled organisations assumed the responsibilities and 
powers held by the former city, district and regional authorities.  

Final annual reports have also been produced for: 

• Auckland City Council  
• Auckland Regional Council 
• Franklin District Council 
• Manukau City Council 
• North Shore City Council 
• Rodney District Council 
• Waitakere City Council. 
 

This document has been prepared on the assumption of continuity of activities and responsibilities under Auckland Council. 
No adjustment has been made in the financial statements to reflect the dissolution of the former councils.  

With Mayor Len Brown, I acknowledge the work of the former Papakura District Council mayor, councillors and staff, who 
have left a strong foundation for us to build upon. 

I look forward to producing the first annual report for Auckland Council later this year, which will report on our achievements 
for the period 1 November 2010 to 30 June 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Doug McKay 

Chief executive  

Auckland Council 
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Overview 
 

The past 16 months have been challenging, but also rewarding.  Running the district successfully and continuing to deliver our services to 
our residents during a time of enormous change. 

Entering its final year the council identified a number of initiatives that were important to our community and targets were set for completion 
prior to the end of October.  Some of the key achievements were 

• Hawkins Theatre – interior refurbishment and building repairs were completed allowing the programming of a wide range of 
productions and movie nights. 

• Sir Edmund Hillary Library – the library moved to new and expanded street level premises in October and there has been the 
development of further programmes including Wiggle and Rhyme; active movement for early education. 

• Massey Park development – the objective of this was to create a premier sports park for Papakura with sand fields, increased 
car parking and refurbished grandstand.  The construction has now commenced with completion scheduled for July 2011. 

• Art Gallery upgrade – the refurbished art gallery opened in May 2010 and provided more functional space, improved access 
and an upgrade to the air conditioning. 

The council has also focused on continuing to improve its infrastructure assets with key improvements to stormwater, roading and 
community assets all occurring.  Two years of planning saw the replacement of the Clevedon Road rail bridge, in conjunction with Kiwirail 
to support the rail electrification programme.  Footpath upgrades has been a key focus of the council with the continuation of the upgrading 
programme that aims to replace all footpaths in poor condition. 

Events bring a community together and the council and the community events programme is firmly established and continues to receive 
positive feedback from our residents.   

Along with these major projects, the council has also invested in many small projects, such as playground renewals, toilet upgrades, 
walkways and reserves development and upgrades.  These are the projects that our residents value and use every day. 

 

Financial 

Despite the continued financial challenges of the local and international economies the council has continued to perform well financially.  
These challenges have resulted in the council experiencing significant reductions in the level of development in the district’s residential and 
commercial sectors. While this has contributed to reduced development-related revenue in areas such as building and resource consents, 
the council has still recorded a net operating surplus of $28.7m against its budget of $15.2m.   

Revenue for the period was $91.0m against a budget of $72.8m with rates continuing to be the main income source for council.  Revenue 
was boosted through the inclusion of $24.6m of assets vested to council following the completion of significant developments.  This was 
partially offset by a $5.2m shortfall to budget in capital subsidies for roading projects due the reduction in NZTA subsidy rate and timing of 
projects. 

Council’s expenditure was generally in line with our budget expectations and movements generally reflected the challenging operating 
environment both in terms of the economy and transition to Auckland Council. 

At its conclusion the council is in a sound financial position and able to contribute assets of $603m (2009: $546m) while having debt of only 
$66m (2009: $42m) and other liabilities of $30m (2009 $26m). 
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Papakura is still growing at a fast rate.  The long term plans now being implemented by the Auckland Council will ensure the integration of 
new growth areas into existing areas and ensuring the provision of open spaces and community facilities. 

 

Summary of Performance Measures 

Group of activity area 
Service levels 

achieved over the 
16 month period 

How we did 

Democracy and planning 7 of 12 Performance in this activity was adversely impacted by the 
transition to Auckland Council resulting in some initiatives 
being placed on hold.  Voter numbers at the local body 
election were increased over the prior elections. 

Business and promotion 2 of 6 The economic downturn has affected the business activity 
within the district, but encouraging news is the gap in growth 
in businesses and employment between Papakura and the 
Auckland region is lessening compared to previous years. 

Community development 6 of 9 Community safety initiatives such as Community crimewatch, 
Neighbourhood support and graffiti removal have all 
exceeded expectations over the 16 month period.  Properties 
receiving energy efficiency retrofits have more than doubled 
expectation with the growing awareness of this scheme. 

Regulatory services 13 of 16 Council continue to perform well in the regulatory ensuring 
that residents life in a safe environment.  Economic 
conditions mean that volumes of resource and building 
consents were less than anticipated. 

Waste management and minimisation 
3 of 5 

Current economic conditions mean that less disposable 
income is spent on packaged goods.  This means less waste 
to landfills, but also a drop in recycling.  

Water supply and wastewater 6 of 9 Water and wastewater supply is contracted out by the council 
who closely manage the contract.  Water continues to meet 
the high standards required. 

Stormwater 8 of 8 The integrated catchment management plan was completed 
which provides the framework for ongoing improvements to 
the storm water system. 

Arts and culture 8 of 11 A new library was opened and the art gallery refurbished.  
Due to these changes visitor numbers were down but are 
expected to recover with the new facilities. 
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Group of activity area 
Service levels 

achieved over the 
16 month period 

How we did 

Parks and recreation 11 of 14 A number of parks developments were completed in the year 
along with the refurbishment of the acquatic centre.  Due to 
the refurbishment visitor numbers did not meet expectation. 

Transport and roading 

14 of 22 

Roading infrastructure continued to be developed to support 
future growth.  A number of road safety initiatives were also 
completed and council performed well in ensuring reactive 
maintenance requests were completed quickly. 

 

Achieved Total Result 

78 112 70% 

 

Residents’ Survey 2010 

Each year Council commissions a Residents’ Survey (‘Residents Views on Council Performance’) to provide data required to report on the 
measures and performance objectives outlined in the LTCCP and Annual Plan documents, and presented later in this report. 

The main objective of this survey is to gather customer and resident feedback required to complete a number of largely satisfaction-related 
measures. 

Sample Size 

A total of 300 interviews were conducted 

Sample Spread 

The sample was spread randomly across the District 

Interview Type 

The interview was carried out by telephone.  An assumption is made that the views expressed by telephone owning households are similar 
to those held by households without telephones. 

Sample Selection 

A Telecom telephone listing of all residential households in the District was used as the sample frame with every xth number selected.  A 
list of the streets and roads in the District was used to confirm that the household qualified and respondents were also asked whether they 
lived within the District. 

Respondent 

All residents aged 18+ were eligible for interview.  The interviewer initially asked to speak to the person who had the last birthday within the 
household.  That person was the chosen respondent in European households.  For Maori, Pacific Island, Asian and other ethnicity 
households a check was also made as to whether it was more appropriate for the interview to be conducted with the key speaker of leader 
of the house. 

This approach was taken as research has indicated that better data results are achieved if culturally appropriate methods of data collection 
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are undertaken.  In some non-European households it is not culturally appropriate for younger people to speak. 

Call Timings 

All calls, other than those made after an appointment was agreed upon, were made during weekday evenings from 5.30pm to 8.30pm and 
at weekends between 9.00am and 8.30pm to ensure the working population was correctly represented. 

Call Backs 

Two call backs were made to each number before it was replaced in the sample (i.e. a total of three calls were made).  Call backs were 
either on a different day or at least four hours later. 

Interviewers 

Interviewing was carried out by the specialist field company Reid Research Ltd.  The interviewers were personally briefed and provided 
with full written briefing notes on the conduct of the survey. 

Data Weighting 

No survey sample is a perfect match for the population.  The data has been weighted on age to reflect the true proportion of the different 
groups tin the city’s adult population as determined by the National Census 2006. 

Reporting at Ward Level 

Each respondent was asked for the name of the street where they lived in order to create a list which was used to allocated respondents to 
the correct Ward. 

Understanding the Statistical Significance of the Results 

As a result of using a survey sample of the population (as opposed to interviewing the entire population) a margin of error is introduced.   

The maximum margin of error for a sample of 300 at 90% confidence level is + 4.7% and at the 95% confidence level + 5.7%.  This means 
that if we took the entire population and divided it into separate samples of 300, the difference in results for 95 out of 100 of these samples 
would lie within the range of + 5.7%.  This difference is greatest where the population is divided 50:50 on a particular question and 
decreases as the division becomes greater. 

The margin of error for different sample sizes is as follows: 

Sample Size 90% confidence level 95% confidence level * 

300 + 4.7% + 5.7% 

200 + 5.8% + 6.9% 

100 + 8.2% + 9.8% 

45 + 12.2% + 14.7% 

30 + 15.0% + 17.9% 

* In line with normal practice the differences highlighted in the report (‘Residents Views on Council Performance – October 2010) are at the 

95% confidence level. 

Timings 

Interviews were conducted between September 20 and October 5, 2010. 
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Obtaining a copy 

A copy of the report ‘Residents Views on Council Performance – October 2010 can be obtained by contacting the Auckland Council. 

 

Auckland Council Amalgamation 

From 1 November 2010, a new Auckland Council was established to undertake all the former responsibilities of the Papakura District 
Council.   

During the course of the 2009/10 financial year (extended to cover 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010) Council experienced significant 
increased demand on its resources in order to prepare and transition into the new structure. 

Reprioritisation of work from the LTCCP 2009-19 (as outlined in the Annual Plan 2010/11) allowed Council to continue to meet Service 
levels and deliver on a number of legacy projects, despite the increased demand on resources required for the transitional process. 

 

What all this means 

More detail of the above results is explained in the statements of service performance section on pages 67 to 150.  
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Statement of compliance and responsibility 
 

Responsibility 

Auckland Council is authorised and required by the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 to complete and adopt 
an annual report for Papakura District Council and group.  The Council and management of Auckland Council accept responsibility for the 
completion of the Financial Statements and the judgements used in them and hereby adopt the financial statements as presented.  When 
completing the annual report and financial statements Auckland Council has relied on the system of internal control maintained by 
Papakura District Council and group and the confirmations received from management of Papakura District Council and group. 

In the opinion of the Auckland Council the financial statements for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 fairly reflect the financial 
performance, financial position and service performance of Papakura District Council and group. 

 

Statement of compliance 

The Council and management of Auckland Council confirm that all the statutory requirements of section 98 of the Local Government Act 
2002 have been met. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    
 

          
Len Brown     Doug McKay 
Mayor      Chief Executive  
Auckland Council      Auckland Council 
31 March 2011     31 March 2011  
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Audit Report 
To the readers of 

Papakura District Council and group’s 
financial statements and service performance information 

for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Papakura District Council and group. The Auditor-General has appointed me, F Caetano, using the staff 
and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit on her behalf. The audit covers the financial statements, the service performance 
information and the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that are included in the report of Papakura 
District Council and group for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010. 

Papakura District Council and group’s financial statements, service performance information and other requirements have been completed 
by Auckland Council pursuant to the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009.  

Unqualified Opinion  

In our opinion:  

• The financial statements of Papakura District Council and group on pages 16 to 66 that are prepared on a 
dissolution basis: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 fairly reflect : 

• Papakura District Council and group’s financial position as at 31 October 2010; and 

• the results of operations and cash flows for the 16-month period ended on that date.  

• The service performance information of Papakura District Council on pages 67 to 149: 

 complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 fairly reflects Papakura District Council’s levels of service performance for the 16-month period ended 
31 October 2010, including: 

• the levels of service performance as measured against the intended levels of service 
performance adopted in Papakura District Council’s long-term council community plan; 
and 

• the reasons for any significant variances between the actual service performance and the 
expected service performance.  

• The report complies with the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that are 
applicable to the report. 

The audit was completed on 31 March 2011, and is the date at which our opinion is expressed.  

The basis of our opinion is explained below and refers to the financial statements being appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis due 
to the new local government structure for the Auckland region from 1 November 2010. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of 
Papakura District Council, Auckland Council, and the Auditor, and explain our independence. 
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Basis of Opinion 

We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing 
Standards.   

We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary in order to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements, the service performance information and the other requirements did not have material 
misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.  

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a reader’s overall understanding of the 
financial statements, the service performance information and the other requirements. If we had found material misstatements that were 
not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.  

The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the financial statements, the service performance information 
and the other requirements. We assessed the results of those procedures in forming our opinion. 

Audit procedures generally include: 

• determining whether significant financial and management controls are working and can be relied on to produce 
complete and accurate data; 

• verifying samples of transactions and account balances; 

• performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported financial and service performance data; 

• reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by Papakura District Council and Auckland Council; 

• confirming year-end balances;  

• determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied; 

• determining the appropriateness of the reported service performance information within Papakura District 
Council’s framework for reporting service performance; and 

• determining whether all required disclosures are adequate. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements, the service performance 
information and the other requirements. 

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements, the service performance information and 
the other requirements. We obtained all the information and explanations we required to support our opinion above.  

The financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis due to the new local government structure for the 
Auckland region from 1 November 2010 

On 1 November 2010 the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Papakura District Council. Its 
functions, duties, and powers were transferred to Auckland Council. As a consequence of that reorganisation all the assets and liabilities of 
Papakura District Council and group have vested in Auckland Council and its controlled entities. 

In forming our opinion, we considered: 

• the accounting policy on page 24 about the financial statements being prepared on a dissolution basis; and 

• the disclosures regarding the effects of dissolution in note 31. 

We consider the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the related disclosures to be appropriate to Papakura 
District Council and group’s circumstances. 
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Responsibilities of the Papakura District Council, Auckland Council and the Auditor 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 required the report of Papakura District Council for the 16-month 
period ended 31 October 2010 to be prepared by Papakura District Council and completed by Auckland Council. 

Therefore, Auckland Council is responsible to ensure that the report of Papakura District Council includes financial statements and service 
performance information that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The financial statements must fairly reflect 
the financial position of Papakura District Council and group as at 31 October 2010. They must also fairly reflect the results of operations and 
cash flows for the 16-month period ended on that date. The service performance information must fairly reflect Papakura District Council’s 
levels of service performance for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010. 

Auckland Council is also responsible to ensure that the report of Papakura District Council includes the other requirements of Schedule 10 of 
the Local Government Act 2002.  

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements, the service performance information and the other 
requirements and reporting that opinion to you. This responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 99 of the 
Local Government Act 2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence 
requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants.  

Other than the audit of Papakura District Council’s report, and the Auditor-General being the auditor of Auckland Council, we have no 
relationship with or interests in Papakura District Council or any of its subsidiaries, or Auckland Council.  

 

F Caetano 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
 

Matters relating to the electronic presentation of the audited financial statements, service performance information and the other 
requirements 

This audit report relates to the financial statements, service performance information and the other requirements of Papakura District 
Council and group for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010 included on Auckland Council’s website. The Council is responsible for 
the maintenance and integrity of Auckland Council’s website. We have not been engaged to report on the integrity of Auckland Council’s 
website. We accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements, service performance information 
and the other requirements since they were initially presented on the Auckland Council website. 

The audit report refers only to the financial statements, service performance information and the other requirements named above. It does 
not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to or from the financial statements, service performance 
information and the other requirements. If readers of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data 
communication they should refer to the published hard copy of the audited financial statements, service performance information and the 
other requirements as well as the related audit report dated 31 March 2011 to confirm the information included in the audited financial 
statements, service performance information and the other requirements presented on this website. 

Legislation in New Zealand governing the preparation and dissemination of financial information may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

           

          Council and 

Council Group    Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Notes Actual   Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to    16 Months to   16 Months to  16 Months 

30 June  30 June       31 October   31 October    31 October 

2009 2009    2010   2010  2010 

$ $    $   $  $ 

   INCOME        

26,647,762 26,647,762  Rates Revenue 15 40,066,119   40,066,119  40,137,576 

6,014,528 6,018,884  Charges and Other Revenue 16 9,775,847   9,815,070  8,409,354 

4,326,477 4,459,329  Government Grants/Subsidies/Sponsorships  7,459,532   7,404,622  12,738,568 

155,024 157,888  Finance Income   183,976   186,339  66,667 

197,575 197,575  Petroleum Tax  273,386   273,386  253,333 

10,729,554 10,729,554  Financial and Development Contributions 17 7,801,192   7,801,192  7,291,716 

490,891 512,024  Miscellaneous Income  138,059   128,654  0 

2,609,278 2,609,278  Assets Vested in Council 18 24,583,358   24,583,358  3,860,518 

163,105 163,105  Gain on Sale of Property  714,279   714,279  0 

           

               
51,334,194 51,495,399  Total Income  90,995,748   90,973,019  72,757,732 

           

   EXPENDITURE        

2,667,463 2,667,520  Finance Costs 12 3,846,580   3,847,587  5,101,559 

10,790,767 10,794,390  Depreciation and Amortisation 13 15,610,511   15,624,777  13,842,518 

8,390,716 8,708,973  Employee Benefits 14 12,468,792   12,999,195  11,565,133 

681,041 681,041  Museum Levies  876,764   876,764  1,303,028 

259,160 259,160  MOTAT Levies  528,414   528,414  533,068 

0 0  Regional Amenities Act Levy  575,172   575,172  570,134 

20,101,354 19,922,401  Other Expenditure 14 28,395,040   27,869,488  24,651,805 

           

                
42,890,501 43,033,485  Total Operating Expenditure  62,301,273   62,321,397  57,567,245 

                

           
8,443,693 8,461,914  Net Surplus/(Deficit) before Tax  28,694,475   28,651,622  15,190,487 

           

0 0  Income Tax Expense  0   0  0 

            

                
8,443,693 8,461,914  NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX  28,694,475   28,651,622  15,190,487 

                

           

           

           

           

           
 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

The accompanying statement of accounting policy and notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 17

         Council and 

Council Group         Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Notes       Actual      Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to    16 Months to   16 Months to   16 Months to 

30 June  30 June     31 October   31 October     31 October 

2009 2009    2010   2010  2010 

$ $    $   $  $ 

   OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME        

0 0  Increase in asset revaluation reserve 9 0   0  0 

6,518,610 6,518,610  Increase/(Decrease) in fair value through equity reserve   6 63,688   63,688  1,422,491 

           

               
6,518,610 6,518,610  Total Other Comprehensive Income  63,688   63,688  1,422,491 

               

                
14,962,303 14,980,524  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  28,758,163   28,715,310  16,612,978 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

 

          

          Council and 

Council Group    Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Notes Actual   Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to    16 Months to   16 Months to  16 Months to 

30 June  30 June     31 October      31 October    31 October 

2009 2009    2010   2010  2010 

$ $    $   $  $ 

           

           

463,393,537 463,464,355  Equity as at 1 July  478,355,840   478,444,879  480,339,367 

           

14,962,303 14,980,524  Total Comprehensive Income for the Period  28,758,163   28,715,310  16,612,978 

           

              

14,962,303 14,980,524  TOTAL RECOGNISED REVENUES AND  28,758,163   28,715,310  16,612,978 

       EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR        

              

478,355,840 478,444,879  EQUITY AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2010 11 507,114,003   507,160,189  496,952,345 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2010 

          Council and 

Council Group    Council   Group  Group 

Actual as at Actual as at   Notes Actual as at   Actual as at  Budget as at 

30 June 2009 30 June 2009    31 October 2010   31 October 2010  31 October 2010 

$ $  ASSETS  $   $  $ 

   Current Assets        
710,624 787,720  Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 2,156,136   2,206,911  2,630,901 

10,854,189 10,880,197  Debtors and Other Receivables 3 14,907,635   15,033,841  10,189,865 

10 10  Non-current Assets Held for Sale 7 10   10  10 

           

                
11,564,823 11,667,927  Total Current Assets  17,063,781   17,240,762  12,820,776 

           

   Non-current Assets        
78,267 78,267  Debtors and Other Receivables 3 77,336   77,336  80,518 

197,630 197,630  Intangible Assets 8 107,250   107,250  186,845 

53,916,183 53,916,183  Other Financial Assets 6 53,979,871   53,979,871  55,098,340 

480,266,470 480,298,622  Property Plant and Equipment 9 531,484,126   531,524,340  548,853,421 

           

                
534,458,550 534,490,702  Total Non-current Assets  585,648,583   585,688,797  604,219,124 

           

                

546,023,373 546,158,629  TOTAL ASSETS  602,712,364   602,929,559  617,039,900 

              

   LIABILITIES        
   Current Liabilities        

12,608,889 12,644,523  Creditors and Other Payables 4 15,984,152   16,134,904  19,131,489 

43,211 43,211  Provisions 5 43,627   43,627  47,225 

633,460 644,043  Employee Entitlements 5 789,043   809,300  650,048 

31,064,246 31,064,246  Borrowings 10 35,562,142   35,562,142  17,756,470 

           

                
44,349,806 44,396,023  Total Current Liabilities  52,378,964   52,549,973  37,585,232 

           

   Non-current Liabilities        

11,517,381 11,517,381  Creditors and Other Payables 4 12,393,416   12,393,416  10,798,602 

659,413 659,413  Provisions 5 773,356   773,356  709,583 

11,140,933 11,140,933  Borrowings 10 30,052,625   30,052,625  70,994,138 

           

                

23,317,727 23,317,727  Total Non-current Liabilities  43,219,397   43,219,397  82,502,323 

           

                

67,667,533 67,713,750  TOTAL LIABILITIES  95,598,361   95,769,370  120,087,555 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2010 
 

          Council and  

Council Group    Council   Group  Group 

Actual as at Actual as at    Actual as at   Actual as at  Budget as at 

30 June 2009 30 June 2009    31 October 2010   31 October 2010  31 October 2010 

$ $    $   $  $ 

           

           
478,355,840 478,444,879  NET ASSETS  507,114,003   507,160,189  496,952,345 

           

           
   REPRESENTED BY        

311,824,046 311,913,085  Retained Earnings  342,126,324   342,172,510  333,054,516 

163,830,435 163,830,435  Restricted Reserves  162,628,177   162,628,177  162,959,620 

2,701,359 2,701,359  Council Created Reserves  2,359,502   2,359,502  938,209 

           

                

478,355,840 478,444,879  EQUITY 11 507,114,003   507,160,189  496,952,345 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

         Council and 

Council Group   Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Actual   Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to   16 Months to   16 Months to  16 Months to 

30 June 2009 30 June 2009  31 October 2010   31 October 2010  31 October 2010 

$ $ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $   $  $ 

  Cash provided from:        

25,627,320 25,627,320 Rates  42,489,575   42,489,575  38,390,616 

7,527,872 7,530,681 Charges for Services  9,431,226   9,471,582  10,381,483 

3,813,339 3,922,282 Government Subsidies  7,181,870   7,006,000  13,940,865 

155,024 157,888 Investment Income  183,976   183,976  66,667 

688,478 720,650 Petrol Tax and Other Receipts  444,909   464,391  287,374 

2,647,160 2,647,160 Development Contributions  3,940,370   3,940,370  8,769,713 

(74,365) (74,365) GST (Net)  (407,986)   (407,986)  0 

                 

          

40,384,828 40,531,616   63,263,940   63,147,908  71,836,718 

  Cash applied to:        

31,230,938 31,380,756 Payments to Suppliers and Employees  43,732,962   43,622,300  34,677,906 

2,780,014 2,780,014 Interest Paid  3,558,015   3,558,506  4,931,616 

598,431 598,431 Deposits Repaid  155,658   155,658  811,397 

          

               

34,609,383 34,759,201   47,446,635   47,336,464  40,420,919 

               

          

5,775,445 5,772,415 NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM   15,817,305   15,811,444  31,415,799 

    OPERATING ACTIVITIES        

          
  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       

  Cash provided from:        

981 981 Investments  844   844  1,411 

391,866 391,866 Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 4,430,394   4,430,394  0 

    Equipment        

               
392,847 392,847   4,431,238   4,431,238  1,411 

  Cash applied to:        

29,367,477 29,387,598 Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment  42,303,031   42,323,491  61,075,458 

108,443 108,443 Additions to Intangible Assets  0   0  37,000 

             

             
29,475,920 29,496,041   42,303,031   42,323,491  61,112,458 

               

          

(29,083,073) (29,103,194) NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM   (37,871,793)   (37,892,253)  (61,111,047) 

    INVESTING ACTIVITIES        
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

         Council and 

Council Group   Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Actual   Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to   16 Months to   16 Months to  16 Months to 

30 June 2009 30 June 2009  31 October 2010   31 October 2010  31 October 2010 

         

$ $ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $   $  $ 

  Cash provided from:        

97,500,000 97,500,000 Borrowings Raised   98,000,000   98,000,000  31,195,429 

               

          

97,500,000 97,500,000   98,000,000   98,000,000  31,195,429 

          

  Cash applied to:        

74,000,000 74,000,000 Borrowings Repaid  74,500,000   74,500,000  0 

          

               

74,000,000 74,000,000   74,500,000   74,500,000  0 

          

               

23,500,000 23,500,000 NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM   23,500,000   23,500,000  31,195,429 

       FINANCING ACTIVITIES           

          
192,372 169,221 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held  1,445,512   1,419,191  1,500,181 

518,252 618,499 Opening Cash at 1 July   710,624   787,720  1,130,720 

               

          

710,624 787,720 CLOSING CASH BALANCE AT PERIOD END  2,156,136   2,206,911  2,630,901 

          

          
  This is represented by;        

710,624 787,720 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 2,156,136   2,206,911  2,630,901 

          

               

710,624 787,720   2,156,136   2,206,911  2,630,901 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

         Council and 

Council Group   Council   Group  Group 

Actual Actual   Actual   Actual  Budget 

12 Months to 12 Months to   16 Months to   16 Months to  16 Months to 

30 June 2009 30 June 2009  31 October 2010   31 October 2010  31 October 2010 

  

$ $   $   $  $ 

     

          

8,443,693  8,461,914 Net Surplus for the Year  28,694,475    28,651,622  15,190,487  

          

  Add/(Deduct) Non-Cash Items:        

10,790,767 10,794,390 Depreciation and Amortisation  15,610,511   15,634,585  13,842,518 

(2,609,278) (2,609,278) Assets Vested in Council  (24,583,358)   (24,583,358)  (3,860,518) 

(4,118,985) (4,118,985) 
Assets transferred to Council in lieu of Development   
Contributions (5,074,342)   (5,074,342)  1,850,110 

166,096 166,096 Movement in Provisions   114,359   114,359  276,562 

(98,625) (98,625) Movement in Fair Value Assets (90,412)   (90,412)  237,123 

92,732 92,732 Other Non-cash Expenditure 0   0  0 

          

          
4,222,707 4,226,330   (14,023,242)   (13,999,168)  12,345,795 

  Add/(Deduct) movements in Working Capital:        

(588,438) (610,564) (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables  (4,052,515)   (4,158,817)  594,964 

(5,417,437) (5,422,036) Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable/Other Liabilities 4,562,539   4,681,759  6,678,706 

(598,431) (598,431) Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits  (155,658)   (155,658)  (811,397) 

          

          
(6,604,306) (6,631,031)   354,366   367,284  6,462,273 

  Add/(Deduct) Items classified as Investing or Financing Activities:      

(143,036) (141,185) Net (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Assets  491,484   491,484  0 

(169,850) (169,850) 
Movement in Accounts Payable relating to Plant, 
Property and Equipment  301,066   301,066  (2,584,556) 

26,237 26,237 
Movement in Accounts Receivable relating to Investing 
Activities  (844)   (844)  1,800 

          

          
(286,649) (284,798)   791,706   791,706  (2,582,756) 

          

             

5,775,445 5,772,415 Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities  15,817,305   15,811,444  31,415,799 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
1 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

REPORTING ENTITY 

Papakura District Council is a territorial local authority domiciled in New Zealand and governed by the Local Government Act 2002.  The Papakura District 
Council group (PDC) consists of Papakura District Council and its 100% owned subsidiary, the Safer Papakura Trust. 

The primary objective of PDC is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit rather than making a financial return.  Accordingly, PDC 
has designated itself and the group as public benefit entities for the purposes of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 
(NZ IFRS). 

The financial statements of PDC and group are for the period ended 31 October 2010. PDC’s and group’s report, which includes the financial statements, 
performance information and other requirements have been completed by the new Auckland Council pursuant to the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau 
Reorganisation) Act 2009.  The financial statements were authorised for issue by Auckland Council on 31 March 2011. 

 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of PDC have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2002: Part 6, section 98 and Part 3 
of Schedule 10, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP). 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP.  They comply with NZ IFRS, and other applicable Financial Reporting 
Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities. 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of infrastructural assets, investment property and some 
financial instruments (Including derivative instruments). 

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar.  The functional currency of PDC is New 
Zealand dollars. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

AUCKLAND REORGANISATION - GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009, dissolved Papakura District Council and group on 31 October 2010. The functions, 
duties and powers of Papakura District Council and group became the functions, duties and powers of the Auckland Council – the single unitary authority 
responsible for governing the Auckland region from 1 November 2010. All of Papakura District Council and group’s assets, rights, liabilities, contracts, 
entitlements and engagements vested in the Auckland Council group at that date.  

The dissolution of Papakura District Council and group requires the financial statements to be prepared on a dissolution basis, not the normal going-concern 
basis. All the services Papakura District Council and group delivered continue to be delivered by the Auckland Council group. Because the operations, 
assets and liabilities of Papakura District Council and group have been transferred to the Auckland Council group, no adjustments have been made in the 
financial statements resulting from the dissolution of the Council and Group other than as set out in Note 31. 

 

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

All accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements. 
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The Council and group has adopted the following revisions to accounting standards during the period ended 31 October 2010, which have had only a 
presentational or disclosure effect: 

• NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007) is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.  The revised 
standard requires information in financial statements to be aggregated on the basis of shared characteristics and introduces a statement of 
comprehensive income. The statement of comprehensive income will enable readers to analyse changes in equity resulting from non-owner 
changes separately from transactions with owners.  The Council and group has decided to prepare a single statement of comprehensive income 
for the period ended 31 October 2010 under the revised standard. Financial statement information for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been 
restated accordingly. Items of other comprehensive income presented in the statement of comprehensive income were previously recognised 
directly in the statement of changes in equity. 

• Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:Disclosures. The amendments introduce a three-level fair value disclosure hierarchy that 
distinguishes fair value measurements by the significance of valuation inputs used. A maturity analysis of financial assets is also required to be 

prepared if this information is necessary to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of liquidity risk. The 
transitional provisions of the amendment do not require disclosure of comparative information in the first year of application. The Council and 
group has elected to disclose comparative information. 

 

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN EARLY ADOPTED 

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and have not been early adopted, and which are relevant to the Council and group 
include: 

• NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being 
replaced through the following 3 main phases: Phase 1 Classification and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge 
Accounting. Phase 1 on the classification and measurement of financial assets has been completed and has been published in the new financial 
instrument standard NZ IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a new financial asset is measured at amortised cost or 
fair value, replacing many different rules in NZ IAS 39. The approach in NZ IAS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments (its 
business model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to 
be used, replacing the many different impairment methods in NZ IAS 39. The new standard is required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 
2014. The Council has not yet assessed the effect of the new standard and expects it will not be early adopted. 

• NZ IAS24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009) replaces NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Issued 2004). The revised standard 

simplifies the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating inconsistencies from the definition. The new standard is 
required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

As the above standards come into effect after the dissolution of Council and group on 1 November 2010, the Council and group has not assessed the 
effect of the new standards and it will not be early adopted. 

• NZ IAS 23 (Amendment) Borrowing Costs replaces NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (issued 2004) and requires an entity (other than a public benefit 
entity) to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of that asset.  
Effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The mandatory adoption of NZ IAS 23 by public entities was deferred 
pending the completion of the Financial Reporting Standard Board’s research project into the application of NZ IAS 23 by public entities. The 
council is able to elect to expense borrowing costs and has elected to do so. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES 

PDC consolidates as subsidiaries in the group financial statements all entities where PDC has the capacity to control their financing and operating policies 
so as to obtain benefits from the activities of the subsidiary.  This power exists where PDC controls the majority voting power on the governing body or 
where such policies have been irreversibly predetermined by PDC or where the determination of such policies is unable to materially impact the level of 
potential ownership benefits that arise from the activities of the subsidiary. 



Papakura District Council 

 26 

PDC measures the cost of a business combination as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or 
assumed, in exchange for control of the subsidiary plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. 

Any excess of the cost of the business combination over PDC’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is 
recognised as goodwill.  If PDC’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised exceeds the cost of the 
business combination, the difference will be recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

The purchase method is used to prepare the consolidated financial statements, which involves adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses on a line-by-line basis.  All significant intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 

PDC’s investment in its subsidiaries are carried at cost in the PDC’s own “parent entity” financial statements. 

 

ASSOCIATES OR JOINT VENTURES 

PDC has no associate companies or joint venture entities. 

 

REVENUE 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 

Rates revenue 

Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and relate to a financial year.  All ratepayers are invoiced within the financial year to which the rates 
have been set.  Rates revenue is recognised when payable.  The amalgamation of the eight Auckland council groups occurred on 1 November 2010.  
Legislation allowed for each group to set rates for the full period 2010/11 based on existing rating policies.  Penalties and discounts relating to rates are 
included where applicable. 

Other revenue 

Traffic and parking infringements are recognised upon receipt of payment. 

PDC receives government grants from the New Zealand Transport Agency, which subsidises part of PDC’s costs in maintaining the local roading 
infrastructure.  The subsidies are recognised as revenue upon entitlement as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled. 

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at balance date, based on the actual service 
provided as a percentage of the total services to be provided. 

Sales of goods are recognised when a product is sold to the customer.  Sales are usually in cash.  The recorded revenue is the gross amount of the sale, 
including any fees payable for the transaction.  Such fees are included in other expenses. 

Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration the fair value of the asset received is recognised as revenue.  Assets vested in PDC are 
recognised as revenue when control over the asset is obtained. 

Where revenue is derived by acting as an agent for another party, the revenue that is recognised is the commission or fee on the transaction. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment has been established. 

 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

 27

FINANCIAL AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 

The revenue recognition point for development and financial contributions is at the later of the point when PDC is ready to provide the service for which the 
contribution was levied, or the event that will give rise to a requirement for a development or financial contribution under the legislation. 

 

BORROWING COSTS 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

GRANT EXPENDITURE 

Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified criteria, and are recognised as expenditure when an 
application that meets the specified criteria for the grant has been received. 

Discretionary grants are those grants where PDC has no obligation to award on receipt of the grant application and are recognised as expenditure when a 
successful applicant has been notified of the PDC’s decision. 

 

INCOME TAX 

Income tax expense in relation to the surplus or deficit for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable surplus for the current year, plus any adjustments to income tax payable in respect of 
prior years.  Current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by balance date. 

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary differences and unused tax losses.  Temporary 
differences are differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable surplus. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset and liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable surplus. 

Deferred tax is recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except 
where the company can control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, using tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by balance date. 

Current tax and deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to 
equity, in which case the tax is dealt with in equity. 

 

LEASES 

Finance leases 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset, whether or not title is 
eventually transferred. 

At the commencement of the lease term, PDC recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at the lower of the fair 
value of the leased item or the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
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The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over its useful life.  If there is no certainty as to whether PDC will obtain ownership at the end of the 
lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life. 

Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset.  Lease payments under an 
operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

 

DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Debtors and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
provision for impairment. 

Loans, including loans to community organisations made by PDC at nil, or below-market interest rates are initially recognised at the present value of their 
expected future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar asset/investment.  They are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  The difference between the face value and present value of expected future cash flows of the loan is recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income as a grant. 

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that PDC will not be able to collect all amounts due according to 
the original terms of receivables.  The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows, discounted using the effective interest method. 

 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

PDC classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity investments, loans 
and receivables and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the 
investments were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every 
reporting date. 

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried at fair value through profit or loss in which 
case the transaction costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date, the date on which PDC commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the PDC has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance date.  The quoted market price used is the 
current bid price.  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques.  PDC uses a 
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date.  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for 
similar instruments are used for long-term debt instruments held.  Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair 
value for the remaining financial instruments. 
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The four categories of financial assets are: 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.  A financial 
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management.  Derivatives are also 
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.  Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for 
trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance date.  After initial recognition they are measured at their fair values.  Gains or losses 
on remeasurement are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  

• Loans and receivables 

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Gains and losses when the asset is impaired or 
derecognised are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  Loans and receivables are classified as “debtors and other receivables” in the 
statement of financial position. 

• Held to maturity investments 

Held to maturity investments are assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that PDC has the positive intention and ability to hold to 
maturity. 

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Gains and losses when the asset is impaired or 
derecognised are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are those that are designated as fair value through other comprehensive income or are 
not classified in any of the other categories above. 

This category encompasses: 

• Investments that PDC intends to hold long-term but which may be realised before maturity.  These are recognised at fair value which is deemed 
to equate to net asset backing; and 

• Shareholdings that PDC holds for strategic purposes.  PDC’s investments in its subsidiary and associate companies are not included in this 
category as they are held at cost (as allowed by NZ IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and NZ IAS 28 Investments in 
Associates) whereas this category is to be measured at fair value. 

After initial recognition these investments are measured at their fair value. 

Gains and losses are recognised directly in equity except for impairment losses, which are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. In the 
event of impairment, any cumulative losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income will be removed from equity to profit and loss even though 
the asset has not been derecognised. 

On derecognition the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

At each balance sheet date PDC assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Any 
impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Impairment of a loan or a receivable is established when there is objective evidence that PDC will not be able to collect amounts due according to the 
original terms. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor/issuer, probability that the debtor/issuer will enter into bankruptcy, and default in payments are 
considered indicators that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest rate. For debtors and other receivables, the carrying amount of the asset is 
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reduced through the use of a provision account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When the receivable is 
uncollectible, it is written off against the provision account.  Overdue receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as current (i.e. not past due).  

Impairment of term deposits, local authority stock, government stock, and related party and community loans is established when there is objective evidence 
that PDC will not be able to collect amounts due to the original terms of the instrument.  Significant financial difficulties of the issuer, probability the issuer 
will enter into bankruptcy, and default in payments are considered indicators that the instrument is impaired. Impairment losses are recognised directly 
against the carrying amount.  Impairment of these assets are recognised directly against the instruments carrying amount. 

 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Non-current assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction, not through 
continuing use.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Any impairment losses for write-downs of non-current assets held for sale are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell) are recognised up to the level of any impairment losses that have been previously recognised. 

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and 
other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised. 

 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment consists of: 

Infrastructure assets — Infrastructure assets are the fixed utility systems owned by PDC.  Each asset class includes all items that are required for the 
network to function, for example, sewer reticulation includes reticulation piping and sewer pump stations. 

Rights to franchise assets — Rights to franchise assets are the fixed utility systems owned by Council and operated by the franchise holder United Water 
International Pty Ltd for the provision of water and sewerage services in the district.  Under the franchise agreement United Water International Pty Ltd is 
responsible for upgrading and maintaining the network so that at the end of the contract period (initial term 30 years), the network shall be in a better overall 
condition than the condition at the time the contract was commenced.  Each asset type includes all items that are required for the network to function. 

Finance lease assets — Finance lease assets arise under a finance lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset, whether or not title is eventually transferred.  

Restricted assets — Restricted assets are parks and reserves owned by PDC which provide a benefit or service to the community and cannot be disposed 
of because of legal or other restrictions. 

Operational assets — These include land, buildings, landfill post closure, library books, plant and equipment, and motor vehicles. 

Work in progress — Work in progress consists of property, plant and equipment projects commenced but not yet completed and available for use at 
balance date.  Assets in this class are not depreciated.  Upon completion, the total cost of the asset will be transferred to its relevant asset class and be 
depreciated. 

Additions 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to PDC and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost.  Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is 
recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
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Disposals 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset.  Gains and losses on disposals are 
included in the statement of comprehensive income.  When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those 
assets are transferred to retained earnings. 

Subsequent costs 

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
item will flow to PDC and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than land and motor vehicles, at rates that will write off the cost 
(or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives.  The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of 
assets have been estimated as follows: 

 

Roading Infrastructure  

• Land and formation 0% 

• Sub base 1.7% straight line 

• Basecourse and unsealed roads 1.7-4.8% straight line 

• Road surfacing 1.7-14.9% straight line 

• Bridges and retaining walls 1% straight line 

• Footpaths 3.1-6.3% straight line 

• Kerb and channel, catch pits and minor culverts 1.1-2.1% straight line 

• Streetlighting 4-10% straight line 

• Traffic signals and signs 4-10% straight line 

Stormwater Infrastructure  

• Pipe assets 1.2% straight line 

• Other non-pipe assets 0-3.3% straight line 

• Studies and Flowpath Mapping 10% straight line 

Sewerage and Water Infrastructure 0.83-4% straight line 

Finance Lease Assets 20-33% straight line 

Buildings 1-15% straight line 

Office Furniture and Equipment 10-20% straight line 

Plant and Machinery 5-20% straight line 

Motor Vehicles 20% diminishing value 

Library Books 15% straight line 

 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at the end of each financial period. 

Revaluation 

Infrastructure assets and rights to franchise assets are revalued on a three yearly valuation cycle on the basis described below.  All other asset classes are 
carried at depreciated historical cost.  The carrying values of revalued items are reviewed at each balance date to ensure that those values are not 
materially different to fair value. 

Infrastructure Assets and Rights to Franchise Assets 

Assets in these classes are roads, stormwater, water reticulation and sewerage reticulation systems. They are revalued at fair value determined on a 
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depreciated replacement cost basis by an independent valuer.  In non-revaluation years PDC assesses the carrying values of its infrastructural and rights to 
franchise assets at balance date to ensure that they do not differ materially from the assets’ fair values.  If there is a material difference, then the off-cycle 
asset classes are revalued.  Assets vested in Council in non-revaluation years are recognised at the higher of fair value and cost.  All other additions in non-
revaluation years are recognised at cost. 

Finance Lease Assets 

Finance Lease assets are valued at the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

Restricted Assets and Operational Assets 

Land and buildings owned prior to 1 October 1991 have been valued by Valuation New Zealand as at that date.  Subsequent additions have been recorded 
at cost.  Reserves vested in Council by subdividers have been recorded at the amount determined by the cost to the subdivider. 

Office furniture and equipment, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and library books are stated at historical cost less depreciation.  Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash 
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. 

Work In Progress 

Work in progress is valued at cost. 

Accounting for Revaluations 

PDC accounts for revaluations of property, plant and equipment on a class of asset basis.  The results of revaluing are credited or debited to other 
comprehensive income and are accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset.  Where this results in a debit balance in the 
asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive income but is recognised in the surplus or deficit.  Any subsequent 
increase on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to 
the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Software acquisition and development 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. 

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred.  Costs that are directly associated with the development 
of software for internal use by PDC, are recognised as an intangible asset.  Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an 
appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

Easements 

Easements are recognised at cost, being the costs directly attributable in bringing the asset to its intended use.  Easements have an indefinite useful life and 
are not amortised, but are instead tested for impairment annually. 

Amortisation 

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.  Amortisation begins when the asset is 
available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.  The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.  The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows: 

Computer software 3 to 5 years. 

 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Properties leased to third parties under operating leases are classified as investment property unless the property is held to meet service delivery objectives, 
rather than to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.  Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. 
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After initial recognition, PDC measures all investment property at fair value as determined annually by an independent valuer. 

Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair value of investment property are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.  Assets that have a finite useful 
life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset are not primarily dependent 
on the assets ability to generate net cash inflows and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or 
service potential. 

The value in use for cash-generating assets is the present value of expected future cash flows. 

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the recoverable amount. For 
assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

PDC accounts for impairments of property, plant and equipment on a class of asset basis.  The results of impairment are credited or debited to other 
comprehensive income and are accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset.  Where this results in a debit balance in the 
asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive income but is recognised in the surplus or deficit.  Any subsequent 
increase on impairment that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to 
the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in other comprehensive income. 

For assets not carried at a revalued amount (other than goodwill) the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 

 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short-term benefits 

Employee benefits that PDC expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at nominal values based on accrued entitlements at 
current rates of pay.  These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, long service 
leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave. 

PDC recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are expected to be greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in 
the coming year.  The amount is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that PDC 
anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future absences. 

Long-term benefits 

PDC does not have any long service leave entitlements. 

Superannuation schemes 

Defined contribution schemes 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation schemes are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as 
incurred. 

Defined benefit schemes 

PDC belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is managed by the Board of Trustees of the National Provident Fund.  
The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. 
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Insufficient information is available to use defined benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determine from the terms of the scheme, the extent to which the 
surplus/deficit will affect future contributions by individual employers, as there is no prescribed basis for allocation.  The scheme is therefore accounted for 
as a defined contribution scheme. 

 

PROVISIONS 

PDC recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.  The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as an interest expense. 

 

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires PDC to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified 
debtor fails to make payment when due. 

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value. If a financial guarantee contract was issued in a stand-alone arm's length transaction to 
an unrelated party, its fair value at inception is equal to the consideration received. When no consideration is received a provision is recognised based on 
the probability PDC will be required to reimburse a holder for a loss incurred, discounted to present value. The portion of the guarantee that remains 
unrecognised, prior to discounting to fair value, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 

Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the initial recognition amount less any amortisation, however if PDC assesses that it is probable that 
expenditure will be required to settle a guarantee, then the provision for the guarantee is measured at the present value of the future expenditure. 

 

CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 

BORROWINGS 

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value net of transaction costs incurred. After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

EQUITY 

Equity is the community’s interest in PDC and is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities.  Equity is disaggregated and classified 
into a number of reserves. 

The components of equity are: 

• Retained Earnings 

• Council Created Reserves 

• Restricted Reserves (including fair value, hedging reserves and asset revaluation reserves) 

 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

 35

Restricted reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity have been assigned. Reserves may 
be legally restricted or created by PDC. Legally restricted reserves are subject to specific conditions accepted as binding by PDC and which may not be 
revised by PDC without reference to the Courts or a third party.  Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or when 
certain specified conditions are met. 

Council created reserves are reserves restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter them without references to any third party or the Courts.  
Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion of the Council. 

 

GOOD AND SERVICE TAX (GST) 

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are stated on a GST inclusive basis.  Where 
GST is not recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. 

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the 
statement of cash flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

 

BUDGET FIGURES 

The budget figures are those approved by the Council at the beginning of the year in the Annual Plan. The budget figures have been prepared in 
accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by PDC for the preparation of the financial statements.   

 

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 requires Auckland Council to complete a report and financial statements of Papakura 
District Council and group for the 16 month period to 31 October 2010.  Actual and budget financial information covers the 16 month period.  Comparative 
information for the preceding financial period covers 12 months. The two periods are therefore not directly comparable. 

 

COST ALLOCATION 

PDC has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of PDC using the cost allocation system outlined below. 

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity.  Indirect costs are those costs, which cannot be identified in an economically feasible 
manner, with a specific significant activity. 

Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities.  Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using appropriate cost drivers such as actual 
usage, staff numbers and floor area. 

 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

In preparing these financial statements PDC has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from 
the subsequent actual results. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
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Infrastructural Assets 

There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing depreciated replacement cost valuations over infrastructural assets. These 
include: 

• the physical deterioration and condition of an asset, for example, the Council could be carrying an asset at an amount that does not reflect its actual 
condition. This is particularly so for those assets which are not visible, for example stormwater, wastewater and water supply pipes that are 
underground. This risk is minimised by Council performing a combination of physical inspections and condition modelling assessments of underground 
assets; 

• estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and 

• estimates are made when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will be depreciated. These estimates can be impacted by the 
local conditions, for example weather patterns and traffic growth. If useful lives do not reflect the actual consumption of the benefits of the asset, then 
PDC could be over or under estimating the annual deprecation charge recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. To 
minimise this risk PDC’s infrastructural asset useful lives have been determined with reference to the New Zealand Infrastructural Asset Valuation and 
Depreciation Guidelines published by the National Asset Management Steering Group, and have been adjusted for local conditions based on past 
experience. Asset inspections, deterioration and condition modelling are also carried out regularly as part of the PDC’s asset management planning 
activities, which gives PDC further assurance over its useful life estimates. Experienced independent valuers perform or review the Council’s 
infrastructural asset revaluations. 

Landfill Post-Closure Provision 

Note 5 discloses an analysis of the exposure of PDC in relation to the estimates and uncertainties surrounding the landfill post-closure provision. 

 

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING PDC’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying the PDC’s accounting policies at balance date. 

Classification of Property 

PDC owns a number of properties, which are maintained primarily to provide housing to pensioners.  The receipt of market-based rental from these 
properties is incidental to holding these properties.  These properties are held for service delivery objectives as part of the PDC’s social housing policy.  
These properties are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

The following definitions have been used for the preparation of the Statement of Cash Flows; 

Cash   

Coins, notes, demand deposits, or highly liquid investments for which there is a recognised ready market and which are unconditionally convertible to coins 
and notes at Council’s option, within 3 months or less and which Council regards as part of its day-to-day cash management. 

Operating Activities 

Transaction and other events that are not investing or financing activities.  The GST component of operating activities reflects the net GST paid and 
received.  The net GST is presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial statement purposes. 

Investing Activities 

Activities relating to the acquisition, holding and disposal of fixed assets and of investments, such as securities, not falling within the definition of cash. 

Financial Activities 

Activities resulting in changes in the size and composition of the capital structure of Council, both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash. 
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   Effective  Carrying  Fair  
    Interest  Amount  Value 
 (i) As at 31 October 2010   Rate (%)  $  $ 
 Council        
 Cash at Bank and on Hand   2.1  2,156,136  2,156,136 
 Call Deposits   N/A  0  0 
 Short Term Deposits maturing three months or less from acquisition  N/A  0  0 
 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents     2,156,136  2,156,136 
         
         
 Group        
 Cash at Bank and in Hand   2.1  2,206,911  2,206,911 
 Call Deposits   N/A  0  0 
 Short Term Deposits maturing three months or less from acquisition  N/A  0  0 
 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents     2,206,911  2,206,911 
         
         
         
    Effective  Carrying  Fair  
    Interest  Amount  Value 
 (ii) As at 30 June 2009   Rate (%)  $  $ 
 Council        
 Cash at Bank and in Hand   1.6  710,624  710,624 
 Call Deposits   N/A  0  0 
 Short Term Deposits maturing three months or less from acquisition  N/A  0  0 
 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents     710,624  710,624 
         
         
 Group        
 Cash at Bank and in Hand   1.6  787,720  787,720 
 Call Deposits   N/A  0  0 
 Short Term Deposits maturing three months or less from acquisition  N/A  0  0 
 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents     787,720  787,720 
         

 

 
Cash at bank and in hand and call deposits are highly liquid and show at cost which is equivalent to fair value.  The carrying value of Short Term Deposits 
with maturity dates of three months or less approximates their fair value.  The effective interest on cash balances varies between 1.5% and 2.15%.  (2009 
1.0%-1.65%)  Council also has the use of a $100,000 overdraft facility (2009 $100,000).  This facility is unsecured, with an interest rate at balance date of 
10.65% (2009 10.15%).   At 31/10/10 the amount of overdraft drawn down was $0 (2009 $0).Council policy is to manage its funds so as to avoid incurring 
overdraft charges, reducing the effective rate of interest for the year to 0% (2009 0%). 

         

 

The Council only places its investments with institutions with a high credit rating.  It also reduces its exposure to risk by giving preference to conservative 
investment policies. Average Interest earned for the year was 2.6% (2009 5.6%) 
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  Council  Group 

  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 

  2010  2009  2010  2009 

  $  $  $  $ 

3. DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES        

         
 Rates Receivable 6,498,981  3,200,062  6,498,981  3,200,062 
 General Debtors 2,731,704  3,560,282  2,868,515  3,587,809 
 Prepayments 2,520,072  2,089,718  2,520,072  2,089,718 
 GST Receivable 2,213,093  374,979  2,213,507  374,979 
 New Zealand Transport Agency Subsidy 1,205,088  1,773,095  1,205,088  1,773,095 
 Community Loans 78,464  79,308  78,464  79,308 
         
             
  15,247,402  11,077,444  15,384,627  11,104,971 
         
 Less Provision for Impairment of Receivables (262,431)  (144,988)  (273,450)  (146,507) 
         
             
 Total Receivables 14,984,971  10,932,456  15,111,177  10,958,464 
             
         
 Less Non-current Portion        
 Community Loans 77,336  78,267  77,336  78,267 
         
             
 Total Non-current Portion 77,336  78,267  77,336  78,267 
         
             
 Total Current Portion 14,907,635  10,854,189  15,033,841  10,880,197 
             
         

 

 
The carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximates their fair value.  There is no concentration of credit risk as general rates and general debtors 
covers a large number of customers.  No provision for impairment is made for rates receivable as Council has various powers under the Local Government 
(Rating) Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debt.  Should a debt be outstanding longer than 6 years the council is no longer legally able to collect the 
outstanding amount. 

         

 

The face value of Community Loans is $81,718 (2009 $83,120).  Fair value of $78,464 (2009 $79,308) has been determined using cash flows discounted at a 
rate based on variable first mortgage housing rates applicable at the time the loan interest rates were last reviewed being 6.39% (2009 6.44%).  Council 
believes this rate fairly reflects the loan recipient's risk factors. 

         

 

As of 31 October 2010 and 30 June 2009 all overdue receivables, except for rates receivable, have been assessed for impairment and appropriate provisions 
applied.  Council holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired.  The impairment provision 
has been calculated based on expected losses for Council's pool of debtors.  Expected losses have been determined based on a review of specific debtors. 
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The status of receivables as at 31 October 2010 and 30 June 2009 are detailed below: 
 

 31 October 2010  30 June 2009 
 Gross Impairment Net  Gross Impairment Net 
 $ $ $  $ $ $ 
Council        
Not past due 10,930,901 0 10,930,901  7,547,489 0 7,547,489 
Past due 1-60 days 956,910 0 956,910  876,814 (621) 876,193 
Past due 61-90 days 80 0 80  5,219 (402) 4,817 
Past due > 90 days 3,359,511 (262,431) 3,097,080  2,647,922 (143,965) 2,503,957 
        
               
Total 15,247,402 (262,431) 14,984,971  11,077,444 (144,988) 10,932,456 
               
        
        
Group        
Not past due 11,057,107 0 11,057,107  7,573,497 0 7,573,497 
Past due 1-60 days 956,910 0 956,910  876,814 (621) 876,193 
Past due 61-90 days 80 0 80  6,063 (1,246) 4,817 
Past due > 90 days 3,370,621 (273,450) 3,097,171  2,648,597 (144,640) 2,503,957 
        
               
Total 15,384,718 (273,450) 15,111,268  11,104,971 (146,507) 10,958,464 
               
        

 

  Council  Group 
  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
  2010  2009  2010  2009 
  $  $  $   $ 
Analysis of Impaired Debtors         
Individual Impairment  89,411  89,086  100,430  90,605 
Collective Impairment  173,020  55,902  173,020  55,902 
         
             
Total Provision for Impairment of 
Receivables  262,431  144,988  273,450  146,507 
             
         
Individually impaired receivables have been determined to be impaired because of significant financial difficulties being experienced by the debtor.  An analysis of 
these individually impaired debtors are as follows: 

         
  Council  Group 
  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
  2010  2009  2010  2009 
  $  $  $   $ 
Analysis of Individually Impaired Debtors         
Past due 1-60 days  0  428  0  1,947 
Past due 61-90 days  0  0  0  0 
Past due > 90 days  89,411  88,658  100,430  88,658 
         
             
Total Individual Impairment  89,411  89,086  100,430  90,605 
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  Council  Group 
  31 October 30 June 31 October 30 June
  2010 2009 2010 2009
  $ $ $  $
Movement in the Provision for Impairment of Receivables       
At 1 July  144,988  221,607  146,507  221,607
Additional provisions made during the year  117,443  18,548  128,462  20,067
Provisions reversed during the year  0  (95,167)  (1,519)  (95,167)
Receivables written-off during the period  0  0  0  0
         
             
  262,431  144,988  273,450  146,507
             
         

       PDC holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired. 
 

  Council  Group 
  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
  2010  2009  2010  2009 
  $  $  $  $ 
4. CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES        
         
 Trade Payables 5,717,693  6,332,121  5,742,293  6,360,529 
 Rates in Advance 5,785,310  429,482  5,785,310  429,482 
 Payments in Advance 6,042,467  5,871,645  6,148,217  5,871,645 
 Deposits and Bonds 1,298,765  1,613,022  1,298,765  1,613,022 
 GST 0  0  20,402  7,226 
 Deferred Franchise Fee Income 9,533,333  9,880,000  9,533,333  9,880,000 
         
             
 Total Accounts Payable  28,377,568  24,126,270  28,528,320  24,161,904 
             
         
 Less Non-current Portion        
 Deferred Franchise Fee Income 9,273,333  9,620,000  9,273,333  9,620,000 
 Developers Contributions in Advance 3,120,083  1,897,381  3,120,083  1,897,381 
         
             
 Total Non-current Portion 12,393,416  11,517,381  12,393,416  11,517,381 
         
             
 Total Current Portion 15,984,152  12,608,889  16,134,904  12,644,523 
             
         

 

Creditors and Other Payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value approximates their fair value. 
5,192,120 

 

Contractors' deposits and other monies are held by the Council as security for damage contingencies.  Developer Performance Bonds are held pending satisfactory 
completion or performance of approved works. 
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 Movement in Deferred Franchise Fee Income Liability       
         
 Opening Balance 9,880,000  10,140,000  9,880,000  10,140,000 
 Finance Charge 0  0  0  0 
 Less Revenue Recognised (346,667)  (260,000)  (346,667)  (260,000) 
         
             
 Closing Balance 9,533,333  9,880,000  9,533,333  9,880,000 
             
         

 

The above liability is for the deferred future income of the franchise fee received from United Water International Ltd for the right to use Council's water and 
wastewater assets.  The $13,000,000 fee received at the commencement of the agreement covers the right to use the assets for a 50 year period and is 
recognised as revenue evenly over this time. 

         
  Council  Group 

  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 

  2010  2009  2010  2009 

  $  $  $  $ 

5. A) PROVISIONS        
 Landfill Aftercare Provision 816,983  702,624  816,983  702,624 
         
             
 Total Provisions 816,983  702,624  816,983  702,624 
              
 Less Non-current Portion        
 Landfill Aftercare Provision 773,356  659,413  773,356  659,413 
         
             
 Total Non-current Portion 773,356  659,413  773,356  659,413 
         
             
 Total Current Portion 43,627  43,211  43,627  43,211 
             
         
         
 Movement in Landfill Post-Closure Provision        
         
 Opening Balance 702,624  536,528  702,624  536,528 
 Effect of Unwinding of Discount 43,211  35,250  43,211  35,250 
 Effect of Change in Interest Rate 40,806  23,952  40,806  23,952 
 Movement in Estimated Future Post-closure Costs 30,342  106,894  30,342  106,894 
         
             
 Closing Balance 816,983  702,624  816,983  702,624 
             
         

 

The landfill post-closure provision is for the estimated future costs of ongoing maintenance and monitoring of the closed landfills at Hunua Gorge, Piggott's, 
Waimana and Elliott Street.  The provision includes the best estimate of future costs for the landfills through to the year 2032, discounted at 5.34% (2009 6.15%) 
being the 10 year bond rate at the time of calculation plus Council's margin.  The provision is reviewed annually and was last reviewed in November 2010. 

          

 As at 31 October 2010 and 30 June 2009 Council was not acting as guarantor for any community organisation bank loans. 
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  Council  Group 

  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 

  2010  2009  2010  2009 

  $  $  $  $ 

 B) EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS        
 Annual Leave and Deferred Redundancy Liability 789,043  633,460  809,300  644,043 
         
             
 Total Current Employee Entitlements 789,043  633,460  809,300  644,043 
             
         

 

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS          
           
        Council and Group 

 (i) As at 31 October 2010       Carrying  Fair  
        Amount  Value 
        $  $ 
           
 Shares in Watercare Services Ltd       53,866,744  53,866,744 
 Shares in New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation     113,127  113,127 
           
           
 Total Other Financial Assets       53,979,871  53,979,871 
           
           
        Council and Group 

 (ii) As at 30 June 2009       Carrying  Fair  
        Amount  Value 
        $  $ 
           
 Shares in Watercare Services Ltd       53,804,874  53,804,874 
 Shares in New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation     111,309  111,309 
           
           
 Total Other Financial Assets       53,916,183  53,916,183 
           
           
 Shares are shown at net asset backing of the entity concerned which equates to fair value.  

           
 Watercare Services Limited          

 

During the 1998/9 year Council was vested with 9,667,225 of the total 260,693,164 shares in Watercare Services Limited.  These shares have been valued in Council's 
accounts at $5.5721 per share being the net asset backing of the shares at 30 June 2010 (2009 $5.5657).  A net asset backing approach is considered appropriate as 
Watercare Services Ltd is a public benefit entity and therefore a discounted cash flow approach to valuation would not be meaningful.  Also, the majority of the 
Company's assets are carried at fair value and those not at fair value are not materially different to fair value.  The legislation vesting the shares stipulates that council 
cannot sell their shares, and that Watercare Services Limited is prohibited from paying a dividend to its shareholders.  Council's shareholding is 3.71% of the total 
shares issued. 

           

 

Papakura District Council in conjunction with the five other shareholding councils of Watercare Services Limited has provided a guarantee amounting to 3.71% of the 
Company's debt.  Further information regarding the guarantee is provided in note 22 (e).  

           

 New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Ltd  

 Council has 37,103 shares valued at net asset backing of $3.049 per share (2009 $3.000). Council's shareholding is 0.58% of the total shares issued. 
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 Movement in Other Financial Assets     Council and Group 

      31 October  30 June 
      2010  2009 
      $  $ 
 Opening Balance     53,916,183  47,397,573 
         
 Movement in Watercare Services Ltd Fair Value     61,870  6,518,610 
 Movement in New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Ltd Fair Value  1,818  0 
         
         
 Net Movement for the period     63,688  6,518,610 
         
           
 Closing Balance     53,979,871  53,916,183 
           
         
 

  Council  Group 

  31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 

  2010  2009  2010  2009 

  $  $  $  $ 

7. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE        
         
 Land 10  10  10  10 
         
             
  10  10  10  10 
             
         
         

 The balance comprises the agreed sale price of property at the Hunua Gorge Landfill.  Under the terms of the contract the sale is to be completed prior to June 2014.   
 

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS         
           
 2010 COUNCIL AND GROUP        

  
Opening 

Cost 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortisation 

and 
Impairment 

Opening 
Carrying 
amount 

Current 
Period 

Additions 

Current 
Period 

Disposals 

Current 
Period 

Impairment/ 
Amortisation 

Charges 
(Net) Closing Cost 

Closing 
Accumulated 
Amortisation 

and 
Impairment 

Closing 
Carrying 
Amount 

           

 Computer Software 1,405,457 (1,207,827) 197,630 0 (1,000) (89,380) 1,404,457 (1,297,207) 107,250 
           
                    
  1,405,457 (1,207,827) 197,630 0 (1,000) (89,380) 1,404,457 (1,297,207) 107,250 
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 2009 COUNCIL AND GROUP        

  
Opening 

Cost 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortisation 

and 
Impairment 

Opening 
Carrying 
amount 

Current Year 
Additions 

Current 
Year 

Disposals 

Current Year 
Impairment/ 
Amortisation 

Charges 
(Net) Closing Cost 

Closing 
Accumulated 
Amortisation 

and 
Impairment 

Closing 
Carrying 
Amount 

           

 Computer Software 1,302,012 (1,121,570) 180,442 103,445 0 (86,257) 1,405,457 (1,207,827) 197,630 
           
                    
  1,302,012 (1,121,570) 180,442 103,445 0 (86,257) 1,405,457 (1,207,827) 197,630 
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT            

 

2010 Council and Group 
Opening 

Cost/ 
Revaluation 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Depreciation/ 
Impairment 

Charges 

Opening 
Carrying 
amount 

Current 
Period 

Additions 

Current 
Period 

Disposals/ 
Transfers 

Current 
Period 

Impairment 
Charges 

Current 
Period 

Depreciation 
net of 

disposals 
Revaluation 

Surplus 

Closing 
Cost/ 

Revaluation 

Closing 
Accumulated 
Depreciation/ 
Impairment 

Charges 

Closing 
Carrying 
Amount 

 Council Infrastructure Assets            
 Roading System 240,090,912 (5,241,153) 234,849,759 23,738,201  0 (7,954,025) 0 263,829,113 (13,195,178) 250,633,935 
 Stormwater System 95,470,130 (1,849,428) 93,620,702 15,190,005  0 (2,573,532) 0 110,660,135 (4,422,960) 106,237,175 
 Total Infrastructure Assets 335,561,042 (7,090,581) 328,470,461 38,928,206 0 0 (10,527,557) 0 374,489,248 (17,618,138) 356,871,110 
             
 Council Rights to Franchise Assets            
 Sewerage System 43,852,874 (1,044,596) 42,808,278 2,496,606 0 0 (1,403,219) 0 46,349,480 (2,447,815) 43,901,665 
 Water System 40,209,346 (936,387) 39,272,959 2,084,232 0 0 (1,262,448) 0 42,293,578 (2,198,835) 40,094,743 
 Total Rights to Franchise Assets 84,062,220 (1,980,983) 82,081,237 4,580,838 0 0 (2,665,667) 0 88,643,058 (4,646,650) 83,996,408 
             
 Council Finance Lease Assets            
 Computers and Photocopiers 276,816 (71,637) 205,179 0 (44,394) 0 (46,018) 0 232,422 (117,655) 114,767 
 Total Finance Lease Assets 276,816 (71,637) 205,179 0 (44,394) 0 (46,018) 0 232,422 (117,655) 114,767 
             
 Council Restricted Assets            
 Land  30,602,357 0 30,602,357 8,612,318 (160,000) 0 0 0 39,054,675 0 39,054,675 
 Buildings 18,707,711 (3,394,656) 15,313,055 1,879,443 (21,779) 0 (569,479) 0 20,565,375 (3,964,135) 16,601,240 
 Total Restricted Assets 49,310,068 (3,394,656) 45,915,412 10,491,761 (181,779) 0 (569,479) 0 59,620,050 (3,964,135) 55,655,915 
             
 Council Operational Assets            
 Land 1,948,168 0 1,948,168 19,000 0 0 0 0 1,967,168 0 1,967,168 
 Buildings 14,725,980 (3,065,215) 11,660,765 350,174 (6,407,884) 0 1,303,654 0 8,668,270 (1,761,561) 6,906,709 
 Office Furniture and Equipment 2,427,369 (1,840,531) 586,838 5,367,993 (43,769) 0 (171,676) 0 7,751,593 (2,012,207) 5,739,386 
 Plant and Machinery 6,078,316 (3,041,681) 3,036,635 1,696,023 (5,329) 0 (692,258) 0 7,769,010 (3,733,939) 4,035,071 
 Motor Vehicles 373,233 (123,284) 249,949 17,104 (107,156) 0 (9,320) 0 283,181 (132,604) 150,577 
 Library Books 1,842,898 (1,283,022) 559,876 338,963 (442,206) 0 176,337 0 1,739,655 (1,106,685) 632,970 
 Total Operational Assets 27,395,964 (9,353,733) 18,042,231 7,789,257 (7,006,344) 0 606,737 0 28,178,877 (8,746,996) 19,431,881 
             
 Council Work in Progress            
 Work in Progress 5,551,950 0 5,551,950 14,155,416 (4,293,321) 0 0 0 15,414,045 0 15,414,045 
 Total Work in Progress 5,551,950 0 5,551,950 14,155,416 (4,293,321) 0 0 0 15,414,045 0 15,414,045 
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 Total Council Property Plant and Equipment 502,158,060 (21,891,590) 480,266,470 75,945,478 (11,525,838) 0 (13,201,984) 0 566,577,700 (35,093,574) 531,484,126 
                        
             
 Subsidiaries Property, Plant and Equipment            
 Office Furniture and Equipment 35,775 (3,623) 32,152 20,459 (241) 0 (12,156) 0 55,993 (15,779) 40,214 
 Total Subsidiaries 35,775 (3,623) 32,152 20,459 (241) 0 (12,156) 0 55,993 (15,779) 40,214 
             
                        
 Total Group Property, Plant and Equipment 502,193,835 (21,895,213) 480,298,622 75,965,937 (11,526,079) 0 (13,214,140) 0 566,633,693 (35,109,353) 531,524,340 
                        

 

2009 Council and Group 
Opening 

Cost/ 
Revaluation 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Depreciation/ 
Impairment 

Charges 

Opening 
Carrying 
amount 

Current Year 
Additions 

Current Year 
Disposals/ 
Transfers 

Current Year 
Impairment 

Charges 

Current Year 
Depreciation 

net of 
disposals 

Revaluation 
Surplus 

Closing 
Cost/ 

Revaluation 

Closing 
Accumulated 
Depreciation/ 
Impairment 

Charges 

Closing 
Carrying 
Amount 

 Council Infrastructure Assets            
 Roading System 221,381,000 0 221,381,000 18,288,570 421,342 0 (5,241,153) 0 240,090,912 (5,241,153) 234,849,759 
 Stormwater System 92,443,115 0 92,443,115 3,027,015 0 0 (1,849,428) 0 95,470,130 (1,849,428) 93,620,702 
 Total Infrastructure Assets 313,824,115 0 313,824,115 21,315,585 421,342 0 (7,090,581) 0 335,561,042 (7,090,581) 328,470,461 
             
 Council Rights to Franchise Assets            
 Sewerage System 42,822,486 0 42,822,486 1,030,388 0 0 (1,044,596) 0 43,852,874 (1,044,596) 42,808,278 
 Water System 39,405,197 0 39,405,197 804,149 0 0 (936,387) 0 40,209,346 (936,387) 39,272,959 
 Total Rights to Franchise Assets 82,227,683 0 82,227,683 1,834,537 0 0 (1,980,983) 0 84,062,220 (1,980,983) 82,081,237 
             
 Council Finance Lease Assets            
 Computers and Photocopiers 209,013 (44,636) 164,377 112,209 (44,406) 0 (27,001) 0 276,816 (71,637) 205,179 
 Total Finance Lease Assets 209,013 (44,636) 164,377 112,209 (44,406) 0 (27,001) 0 276,816 (71,637) 205,179 
             
 Council Restricted Assets            
 Land  22,227,403 0 22,227,403 8,374,954  0 0 0 30,602,357 0 30,602,357 
 Buildings 18,011,115 (3,048,884) 14,962,231 578,672 117,924 0 (345,772) 0 18,707,711 (3,394,656) 15,313,055 
 Total Restricted Assets 40,238,518 (3,048,884) 37,189,634 8,953,626 117,924 0 (345,772) 0 49,310,068 (3,394,656) 45,915,412 
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 Council Operational Assets            
 Land 1,653,442 0 1,653,442 369,726 (75,000) 0 0 0 1,948,168 0 1,948,168 
 Buildings 14,489,062 (2,718,284) 11,770,778 326,918 (90,000) 0 (346,931) 0 14,725,980 (3,065,215) 11,660,765 
 Office Furniture and Equipment 2,308,252 (1,683,382) 624,870 119,117 0 0 (157,149) 0 2,427,369 (1,840,531) 586,838 
 Plant and Machinery 5,394,200 (2,565,488) 2,828,712 652,301 31,815 0 (476,193) 0 6,078,316 (3,041,681) 3,036,635 
 Motor Vehicles 350,006 (110,047) 239,959 98,204 (74,977) 0 (13,237) 0 373,233 (123,284) 249,949 
 Library Books 1,745,760 (1,213,407) 532,353 193,827 (96,689) 0 (69,615) 0 1,842,898 (1,283,022) 559,876 
 Total Operational Assets 25,940,722 (8,290,608) 17,650,114 1,760,093 (304,851) 0 (1,063,125) 0 27,395,964 (9,353,733) 18,042,231 
             
 Council Work in Progress            
 Work in Progress 3,873,822 0 3,873,822 2,702,920 (1,024,792) 0 0 0 5,551,950 0 5,551,950 
 Total Work in Progress 3,873,822 0 3,873,822 2,702,920 (1,024,792) 0 0 0 5,551,950 0 5,551,950 
             
                        
 Total Council Property Plant and Equipment 466,313,873 (11,384,128) 454,929,745 36,678,970 (834,783) 0 (10,507,462) 0 502,158,060 (21,891,590) 480,266,470 
                        
             
 Subsidiaries Property, Plant and Equipment            
 Office Furniture and Equipment 25,599 (8,094) 17,505 20,139 (9,963) 0 4,471 0 35,775 (3,623) 32,152 
 Total Subsidiaries 25,599 (8,094) 17,505 20,139 (9,963) 0 4,471 0 35,775 (3,623) 32,152 
             
                        
 Total Group Property, Plant and Equipment 466,339,472 (11,392,222) 454,947,250 36,699,109 (844,746) 0 (10,502,991) 0 502,193,835 (21,895,213) 480,298,622 
                        
             

 

There are no restrictions over the title of property, plant and equipment.  No property, plant and equipment are pledged as security for liabilities. 
 
Revaluations 
Council's Infrastructure and Rights to Franchise Assets were valued at fair value as determined from market-based evidence.  The most recent valuations were performed as follows:  
 

• Roading System infrastructure assets were valued by J Thompson and G Morrow of Opus International Consultants Limited as at 30 June 2008, and independently reviewed by J Vessey of Opus International Consultants Limited.  The 
valuation established the depreciated replacement cost of the assets, being the assessed cost of replacing the existing assets with replacement assets able to perform all the existing assets service outcomes.  Roading land is valued 
based on the average land value of the Papakura District as assessed by Quotable Value New Zealand Ltd in September 2000.  Council does not intend to revalue roading land in the future.   

• Stormwater system infrastructure assets were independently valued by A Singh of ANA Group Ltd as at 30 June 2008.  The valuation established the depreciated replacement cost of the assets, being the assessed cost of replacing the 
existing assets with replacement assets able to perform all the existing assets service outcomes.  
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• Sewerage and Water infrastructure assets were valued by the franchise holder, United Water International Pty Ltd, as at 30 June 2008, and independently reviewed by valuers MWH New Zealand Ltd.  The valuation established the 
depreciated replacement cost of the assets, being the assessed cost of replacing the existing assets with replacement assets able to perform all the existing assets service outcomes.   

 

 Total fair value of property, plant and equipment valued by each valuer:          

 Valuer     
Council and Group 

31 October 2010        
 J Thompson and G Morrow of Opus International Consultants Limited   221,381,000        
 A Singh of ANA Group Ltd   92,443,115        
 United Water International Pty Ltd     82,227,683        
             
 No classes of property, plant and equipment were revalued in 2009 or 2010.      
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   Council and Group  Council and Group 
   Carrying Amount  Fair Values 
   31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
  Notes 2010  2009    2010  2009 

   $  $   $  $ 
10. BORROWINGS         

  
Effective Interest 

Rate        
 Current %        
 Bank Overdraft 0 0  0  0  0 
 Secured Loans 4.04-4.14 17,000,000  0  17,000,000  0 
 Secured Loans 4.82 6,500,000  0  6,500,000  0 
 Secured Loans 5.17 5,000,000  0  5,000,000  0 
 Secured Loans 8.25-8.60 7,000,000  0  7,000,000  0 
 Secured Loans 3.04-3.09 0  9,500,000  0  9,500,000 
 Secured Loans 3.73-3.76 0  18,500,000  0  18,500,000 
 Secured Loans 6.74-6.75 0  3,000,000  0  3,000,000 
 Finance Lease Liability  62,142  64,246  62,142  64,246 
          
              
 Total Current Borrowings  35,562,142  31,064,246  35,562,142  31,064,246 
              
          
 Non-Current         
 Secured Loans         
  - Amounts due between one and two years  8.18% 4,000,000  0  4,000,000  0 

 
 - Amounts due between two and three years 
(Floating rate) 4.07% 12,000,000  0  12,000,000  0 

  - Amounts due between two and three years 8.25% 0  4,000,000  0  4,000,000 
  - Amounts due between two and three years 8.60% 0  3,000,000  0  3,000,000 
  - Amounts due between three and four years 8.18% 0  4,000,000  0  4,000,000 
  - Amounts due between four and five years 6.28% 14,000,000  0  14,000,000  0 
  - Amounts due in five years or more 0% 0  0  0  0 
 Finance Lease Liability         
  - Amounts due between one and two years  47,575  68,368  47,575  68,368 
  - Amounts due between two and three years  5,050  49,154  5,050  49,154 
  - Amounts due between three and four years  0  23,411  0  23,411 
  - Amounts due between four and five years  0  0  0  0 
          
              
 Total Non-current Borrowings  30,052,625  11,140,933  30,052,625  11,140,933 
              
          
           
          
 Bank Overdraft         

 

Council has the use of a $100,000 overdraft facility (2009 $100,000).  This facility is unsecured, with an interest rate at balance date of 10.65% (2009 10.15%) Council 
policy is to manage its funds so as to avoid incurring overdraft charges, reducing the effective rate of interest for the year to 0% (2009 0%). 

          
 Secured Loans         

 

The council's borrowing is secured over the rates levied by the council.  The council has entered into a Debenture Trust Deed whereby Perpetual Trustees were appointed 
trustee to act for the benefit of stockholders. 
 
Interest rates range from 4.04% to 8.60% (2009 3.04% to 8.60%), with a weighted average of 5.42% (2009 5.00%). Council has floating interest rate debt of $12,000,000 
(2009 $0).  Council manages its borrowings in accordance with its Treasury Policy adopted as part of its Long Term Council Community Plan for 2009-2019. All secured 
loans are carried at amortised cost and therefore their carrying value is deemed to equate to fair value.  

          
 Fair Value         

 

The fair value of secured loans is based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rates above. The fair value of the 2010 year secured loans of 
$65,500,000 is $61,200,311 (2009 carrying value $42,000,000 fair value $41,794,969).  The carrying amounts of borrowings repayable within one year approximate their 
fair value as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
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   Council and Group 
   31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009 
 Movement in Secured Loans during the period  $  $ 
 Opening Balance at 1 July  42,000,000  18,500,000 
 Plus Loans Raised   98,000,000  97,500,000 
 Less Loans Repaid  (74,500,000)  (74,000,000) 
      
         
 Closing Balance of Secured Loans  65,500,000  42,000,000 
         
        
 Finance Lease Liability     
 Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.    
      
   Council and Group 
   31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009 
   $  $ 
 Analysis of Finance Lease Liability     
 Total Minimum lease payments are payable     
 Not later than one year     96,312          117,205  
 Between one and two years      62,988          108,152  
 Between two and three years                  5,249             71,497  
 Between three and four years  0            26,246  
 Between four and five years  0  0 
      
      
 Total minimum lease payments              164,549            323,100  

 Future finance charges            (49,782)       (117,921) 
      
         
 Present value of minimum lease payments  114,767  205,179 
         
      
      
 Present value of minimum lease payments are payable     
 Not later than one year  62,142  64,246 
 Between one and two years  47,575  68,368 
 Between two and three years  5,050  49,154 
 Between three and four years  0  23,411 
 Between four and five years  0  0 
      
      
 Total  114,767  205,179 
      
 Current  62,142  64,246 
 Non-Current  52,625  140,933 
      
         
 Total  114,767  205,179 
         
      

      

 

Finance leases are for various items of office equipment.  The net carrying amount of the leased items is disclosed in note 9.  The finance leases can be renewed at the 
Council's option, with rents set by reference to current market rates for items of equivalent age and condition.  The Council does not have the option to purchase the assets 
at the end of the lease terms.  There are no restrictions placed on Council by any of the financing leasing arrangements. 
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11. RATEPAYERS EQUITY          
          

 

Ratepayers Equity is the community's interest in the Council and is measured as being the value of total assets less total liabilities.  To enable the specified uses Council 
makes of its equity to be identified, ratepayers equity is classified into a number of component parts as follows: 

          
   Council  Group 
   31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009  2010  2009 
   $  $  $  $ 
 RETAINED EARNINGS         
          
 Movement in the Retained Earnings during the period         
 Opening balance as at 1 July  311,824,046  305,678,997  311,913,085  305,749,815 
          
 Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year  28,694,475  8,443,693  28,651,622  8,461,914 
 Increase (Decrease) in Asset Revaluation Reserve  0  0  0  0 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Fair Value Through Equity Reserve  63,688  6,518,610  63,688  6,518,610 
          
 Appropriations (to)/from Reserves         
 Asset Revaluation Reserve  0  0  0  0 
 Fair Value Through Equity Reserve  (63,688)  (6,518,610)  (63,688)  (6,518,610) 
 Other Restricted Reserves  1,265,946  (1,886,816)  1,265,946  (1,886,816) 
 Council Created Reserves  341,857  (411,828)  341,857  (411,828) 
          
               
 Total Movement in the Retained Earnings during the period  30,302,278  6,145,049  30,259,425  6,163,270 
               
          
 Closing Retained earnings  342,126,324  311,824,046  342,172,510  311,913,085 
               
          
          
 COUNCIL CREATED RESERVES         
          
 Opening Balance as at 1 July  2,701,359  2,289,531  2,701,359  2,289,531 
          
 Transfers (to)/from Retained Earnings  (341,857)  411,828  (341,857)  411,828 
          
                
 Closing Council Created Reserves  2,359,502  2,701,359  2,359,502  2,701,359 
                
          
 RESTRICTED RESERVES         
          
 Restricted Reserves comprise:         
          
 Asset Revaluation Reserve         
 Opening Balance as at 1 July  119,430,277  119,430,277  119,430,277  119,430,277 
          
 Revaluation Gains/(Losses)  0  0  0  0 
          
                
 Closing Balance  119,430,277  119,430,277  119,430,277  119,430,277 
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   Council  Group 
   31 October  30 June  31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009  2010  2009 
   $  $  $  $ 
 Fair Value Through Equity Reserve         
 Opening Balance as at 1 July  26,037,475  19,518,865  26,037,475  19,518,865 
          
 Valuation of Shares-Gains/(Losses) taken to Equity  63,688  6,518,610  63,688  6,518,610 
          
                
 Closing Balance  26,101,163  26,037,475  26,101,163  26,037,475 
                
          
          
 Other Restricted Reserves         
 Opening Balance as at 1 July  18,362,683  16,475,867  18,362,683  16,475,867 
          
 Net Increase in Other Reserves  (1,265,946)  1,886,816  (1,265,946)  1,886,816 
           
                
 Closing Balance  17,096,737  18,362,683  17,096,737  18,362,683 
                
          
                
 Closing Restricted Reserves  162,628,177  163,830,435  162,628,177  163,830,435 
                
          
          
                
 TOTAL EQUITY  507,114,003  478,355,840  507,160,189  478,444,879 
                
          
          
 Other Restricted Reserves Comprise:         
 Cemetery Reserves  222,675  285,463  222,675  285,463 
 Financial Contribution Reserves  4,219,114  4,926,114  4,219,114  4,926,114 
 Development Contribution Reserves  12,296,069  11,089,548  12,296,069  11,089,548 
 Depreciation Reserves  293,990  1,601,854  293,990  1,601,854 
 Arts and Culture Reserve  0  394,815  0  394,815 
 Other Reserves  64,889  64,889  64,889  64,889 
          
                
   17,096,737  18,362,683  17,096,737  18,362,683 
                
 
 

   Council  Group 
   16 months to  12 Months to  16 months to  12 Months to 
  Notes 31 October 2010  30 June 2009  31 October 2010  30 June 2009 
   $  $  $  $ 
12. FINANCE COSTS         
 Interest on Bank Borrowings  3,694,424  2,523,027  3,695,431  2,523,084 
 Unwinding Discount/Interest change on Landfill Provision 5 84,017  59,202  84,017  59,202 
 Finance Lease Interest  68,139  85,234  68,139  85,234 
          
              
 Total Finance Costs  3,846,580  2,667,463  3,847,587  2,667,520 
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   Council  Group 

  Notes 

16 months to 
31 October 

2010  
12 months to 30 

June 2009    

16 months to 
31 October 

2010  
12 months to 
30 June 2009 

   $  $   $  $ 
          
13. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION         
 Net Depreciation after disposals 9 13,201,984  10,507,462  13,214,140  10,502,991 
 Net Amortisation after disposals 8 89,380  86,257  89,380  86,257 
 Plus depreciation on disposals  2,319,147  197,048  2,321,257  205,142 
          
              
 Total Depreciation and Amortisation  15,610,511  10,790,767  15,624,777  10,794,390 
              
 

   Council  Group 

   

16 months to 
31 October 

2010  

12 months 
to 30 June 

2009    

16 months to 
31 October 

2010  
12 months to 
30 June 2009 

   $  $   $  $ 
          
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND OTHER EXPENDITURE         
 Employee Benefits         
 Salaries and Wages  12,285,533  8,281,784  12,815,936  8,600,041 
 Employer contribution to defined benefit superannuation schemes  27,676  129,437  27,676  129,437 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefit Liabilities  155,583  (20,505)  155,583  (20,505) 
          
              
 Total Employee Benefits  12,468,792  8,390,716  12,999,195  8,708,973 
              
          
 Other Expenditure         
 Fees paid to Principal Auditor for Financial Statement Audit  172,885  120,050  181,887  126,050 
 Fees paid to Principal Auditor for LTCCP  0  85,500  0  85,500 
 Local Grants  215,734  165,581  215,734  165,581 
 Lease Charges for Operating Leases  134,464  117,582  134,464  117,582 
 Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment  0  0  0  0 
 Impairment of Intangible Assets  0  0  0  0 
 Insurance  334,348  166,206  334,348  167,630 
 Loss on Sale of Assets  1,205,763  20,069  1,205,763  21,758 
 Other Operating Expenditure  26,331,846  19,426,366  25,797,292  19,238,300 
          
              
 Total Other Expenditure  28,395,040  20,101,354  27,869,488  19,922,401 
              

 

   Council  Group 
   16 months to  12 Months to  16 months to  12 Months to 
   31 October 2010  30 June 2009    31 October 2010  30 June 2009 

   $  $   $  $ 
          
15. RATES REVENUE         
 General Rates  37,567,113  25,233,175  37,567,113  25,233,175 
 Auckland Museum Target Rate  1,309,040  685,144  1,309,040  685,144 
 MOTAT Targeted Rate  529,518  259,622  529,518  259,622 
 Commercial Promotion Rate  277,629  109,594  277,629  109,594 
 Karaka Hall Rate  35,501  10,750  35,501  10,750 
 Rates Penalties  1,290,111  650,933  1,290,111  650,933 
 Rates Discount Allowed  (570,715)  (221,738)  (570,715)  (221,738) 
 Penalties Remitted  (97,441)  (47,987)  (97,441)  (47,987) 
 Other Remissions  (274,637)  (31,731)  (274,637)  (31,731) 
          
              
 Net Rates Revenue  40,066,119  26,647,762  40,066,119  26,647,762 
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Rates revenue is shown net of rates remissions.  The Council's rates remission policy allows rates to be remitted on condition of a ratepayer’s extreme financial hardship, 
land used for sport and land protected for historical or cultural purposes. 

 

   Council  Group 
   16 months to  12 Months to  16 months to  12 Months to 
   31 October 2010  30 June 2009    31 October 2010  30 June 2009 
   $  $  $  $ 
16. CHARGES FOR SERVICES         
 User Charges  2,142,398  2,013,362  2,181,621  2,017,718 
 Deferred Franchise Fee Revenue  346,667  260,000  346,667  260,000 
 Impairment of Receivables  117,443  76,619  117,443  76,619 
 Regulatory Revenue  6,467,557  3,085,481  6,467,557  3,085,481 
 Infringements and Fines  701,782  579,066  701,782  579,066 
          
              
   9,775,847  6,014,528  9,815,070  6,018,884 
              

 

    Council and Group 
    Carrying Amount 

    
16 months to 31 

October 2010  
12 months to 
30 June 2009 

    $  $ 
17. FINANCIAL AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS      
        
 Resource Management Act 1991      
 Subdivision Reserve Contributions   861,278  595,307 
 Stormwater Levy Reserve Contributions   1,455,980  0 
 Local Government Act 2002      
 Development Contributions   5,483,935  10,134,247 
       
          
 Total Financial and Development Contributions   7,801,192  10,729,554 
          
       
       

    
16 months to 31 

October 2010  
12 months to 
30 June 2009 

18. ASSETS VESTED IN COUNCIL   $  $ 
 Roading System   11,736,978  705,319 
 Stormwater System   7,359,508  339,625 
 Water System   2,084,232  909,468 
 Sewerage System   2,496,606  548,342 
 Reserves and Amenities   906,034  106,524 
       
         
 Total Assets Vested in Council   24,583,358  2,609,278 
         
       

 

Assets vested in Council are water, sewerage and stormwater reticulation systems, roads and public reserves constructed by subdividers as part of the development of 
subdivisions and subsequently transferred to Council ownership.  The value of assets included in Council's assets register this year is larger than previous years due to 
significant developments in Takanini, Hingaia, and Drury having progressed to the stage where the infrastructure assets are completed and able to be transferred to 
Council ownership. 

          

 

The value of the assets received is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  As the amount included in the statement is represented by assets received, it 
does not represent funds available to Council to offset future expenditure. 
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     Council and Group 
19. REMUNERATION    Carrying Amount 
          
       16 months to  12 Months to 
       31 October 2010  30 June 2009 
 Chief Executive remuneration      $  $ 
 Salary and other short term employee benefits      386,550  233,278 
 Post employment benefits      7,331  2,384 
 Other long term benefits      0  0 
 Termination benefit - redundancy payment      209,759  0 
          

          
       603,640  235,662 
          

          

 

The chief executive received a salary, use of vehicle (Value for FBT $20,000, 2009:$15,000) and contributions to Kiwisaver.  The termination benefit represents a 
redundancy payment arising from the dissolution of Papakura District Council, paid in accordance with the Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 2010. 

          
 Severance payments         

 

In accordance with Schedule 10, section 19 of the Local Government Act 2002 the Council is required to disclose the number of employees who received severance 
payments during the year and the amount of each payment made as defined by the legislation. For the 16 months to 31 October 2010 the Council made a severance 
payment to one employee totalling $5,901 (Previous Year 2009 $0). 

          
 Termination Benefits         

 

In accordance with Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 2010 Council incurred termination benefits in the form of redundancy payments totalling 
$745,706. (Previous Year 2009 $0)  The value of each redundancy payment was $70,361, $145,844, $24,753, $8,679, $48,273, $61,615, $22,155, $209,759, $31,181, 
$76,038, $47,048.  

  
 Remuneration to Elected Members      16 months to  12 Months to 
       31 October 2010  30 June 2009 
 Total payments made to elected members of Council were as follows:     $  $ 
          
 Mayor      (16 months)  (12 months) 
 C Penrose       108,545  78,744 
 Councillors         
 F Auva'a       53,797  40,951 
 B Catchpole       54,325  39,866 
 C Conroy      59,820  43,740 
 P Goldsmith      66,093  46,849 
 P Jones      57,877  39,048 
 M O'Connor       50,952  34,918 
 K Piggott      53,394  39,328 
 O Pringle       53,663  37,367 
          
             
       558,466  400,811 
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20 EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET    
         
Explanations for major variances from the councils figures compared to the 16 month planned figures are as follows 
       Refer Council 
        $'000 
Statement of Comprehensive Income       
Annual plan operating surplus      16,613 
         
Operating variances       
Charges and other revenue     A 1,367 
Government grants / subsidies / sponsorships    B (5,280) 
Vested assets      C 14,871 
Gain on sale of property     D 714 
Finance costs      E 1,255 
Depreciation and amortisation     F (1,768) 
Employee benefits      G (904) 
Other expenditure      H (3,498) 
Levies       I (528) 
         

Net surplus       22,842 
         
         

A 
Increase is largely due to timing of levying licence fees with the revenue being recognised in the period but the budget assuming spread to June 
2011 

B Spending on capital projects subsidised by NZTA were less than budget combined with a reduction in the subsidy rate payable by NZTA 
C Vested assets were higher than budget due to a number of significant developments vesting assets to Council this accounting period 
D Gain on sale of pump station land      
E Finance costs were budgeted at 7% which was more than the council’s effective interest rate of 5.4%  
F Increased depreciation due to impacts of asset revaluations in the prior period being higher than expected when the budget was set 
G Employee benefits include termination payments totalling $641k which were not budgeted   
H Includes loss on sale of library building on $1.1m, increased costs preparing for Auckland Council and general price escalation 
I Includes a reduction in the Museum levy of $426k from that anticipated in the budget 

         
       
Statement of Financial Position       
Current assets are higher than budget due to the unusually large rates balance outstanding at the end of the period.  This is due to the timing of the financial period end 
of 31 October 2010 being in the middle of the rating year rather than at the end of the year as usual. 
 
Non current assets are under budget as the asset development programme was underspent. The balance of the programme will be completed by Auckland Council. 
 
While the total borrowings are lower, the split between current and non current reflects short term refinancing in the period prior to the amalgamation into the new 
Auckland Council.  Overall borrowing is lower as capital works were slowed down in line with reduced development activity. 

         
Statement of movements in equity      
There are no major variances in the Statement of Movements in Equity    
         
Statement of Cash Flows       
There are no major variances in the Statement of Cash Flows     

 

 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

 57

 

21. STATEMENT OF COMMITMENTS  Council and Group 
   31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009 
 (a) Capital Commitments  $  $ 
 Artillary Drive Tunnel  0  235,000 
 Bridge Upgrades  990,000  0 
 Bus Shelter Installations  42,200  0 
 Cameras at Signalised Intersections  0  190,000 
 Drury Industrial Flood Mitigation  0  210,000 
 Gobi Block Replacement  316,111  95,000 
 Great South Road Beach Road Intersection  199,748  0 
 Greenhaven Flood Protection  0  227,000 
 Hingaia Peninsula Road Network Improvements  3,048,796  1,150,000 
 Improvement Projects and Signage  415,200  0 
 Kelvin Road Upgrade  0  60,000 
 Massey Park Upgrade  4,477,105  0 
 Mill Road Corridor  0  211,000 
 Pavement Rehabilitation  978,000  0 
 Railway Street Reconnection  1,146,763  0 
 Raingauges  0  35,000 
 Risk Mangement/Critical Assets  0  170,000 
 Stormwater Network Upgrades and Renewals  308,248  565,000 
 Stormwater Planning, Investigation and Design  1,920,725   
 Takanini North Treatment Pond   0  30,000 
 Walking and Cycling Routes  299,320  240,000 
 Walters Airfield Corridor Improvements  1,654,768  0 
      
         
 Total Capital Commitments  15,796,984  3,418,000 
          
      
 (b) Operating Lease Commitments on Office Equipment and Property    

 

Council leases property, plant and equipment in the normal course of its business.  The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 
are as follows: 

   Council and Group 
   31 October  30 June 
   2010  2009 
   $  $ 
 Not later than one year  621,481  63,904 
 Later than one year but not later than two years  602,613  19,550 
 Later than two years but not later than five years  1,797,039  1,414 
 Later than five years  2,827,084  0 
      
         
 Total Operating Commitments  5,848,217  84,868 
         

 

      
22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES     
      

 

(a) Council owns the Hunua Landfill which was operated on behalf of Council by contractors who are still managing the monitoring.  One of the conditions of the resource 
consent Council was granted to operate the Hunua Landfill was the provision of a cash bond in favour of the Auckland Regional Council.  This is to provide for early 
closure, environmental remediation and postclosure care, and to ensure compliance with the performance and monitoring programmes and standards under the terms of 
the consent.  With the impending amalgamation of Papakura District Council and the Auckland Regional Council into the new Auckland Council, this bond was not renewed 
when it expired during the period. 

      

 

(b) In certain circumstances the Council is liable to pay for repairs on buildings which received a code of compliance certificate but where building defects meant they were 
not weathertight.  
 
The Weathertight Homes Resolution Service has received two building defect claims after 31 October 2010 for buildings where the Council issued code of compliance 
certificates. As these are new claims it is not yet known whether these claims will ultimately require settlement by the new Auckland Council or any possible value of the 
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claims. The Council also acknowledges it may be liable for claims in future years (which would be processed by the new Auckland Council) relating to weathertightness 
building defects not yet identified. 
 
In common with most Council's it is not possible to obtain insurance cover against these claims.  The limited amount of historical claim data specific to the Council and the 
broad assumptions that would have to be applied in utilising claim data from other councils make it impracticable to meaningfully estimate the financial effect of the two 
claims received. 

      

 
(c) Council, along with other councils in the Auckland Region, is part of the Civil Defence Emergency Management Group.  The Group has agreed to enter into a $10 
million bank facility that would be drawn upon in the event of an emergency event occurring in the region.  Council's share of the facility is 3.5%. 

      

 
(d) In prior years Papakura District Council become aware of a potential legal issue regarding the charging of trade waste.  This issue is dependent upon the interpretation 
of legislation.  On the basis of legal advice obtained, Council considers the likelihood of any financial impact to be remote. 

      

 

(e) As at 24 July 2008 the council joined the five other shareholding councils of Watercare Services Limited (Watercare) to provide the creditors of Watercare and its 
subsidiaries with a guarantee of Watercare's debt.   Auckland City Council firstly provided a guarantee for the debt with back to back indemnities by the other shareholding 
councils in proportion to their shareholding.  Papakura District Council's percentage of any liability called under this guarantee is therefore 3.71 per cent.  If any Council, 
other than Auckland City (who own 41.64 per cent), is unable to pay their share, all the other councils are required to make up the defaulting amount based upon the 
shareholding formula.  This arrangement was put in place by the shareholding council's in order to minimise long term price increases for bulk water and wastewater 
services purchased from Watercare. 
 
The council's share of the indemnity would be called upon if Watercare defaulted on its debt. Papakura District Council's financial exposure is projected to be a maximum 
of $21m for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 (2009 $21m).  The risk of default is considered to be remote. 
 
The guarantee provision will remain in place from 31 October 2010 provided by the new Auckland Council. 

      

 

(f) In prior years, Council had received a total of $720,000 from Housing New Zealand Corporation for the upgrade of the Housing for the Elderly units in Don Street.  Under 
the terms of the agreement with Housing New Zealand Corporation, this amount plus interest calculated at the Corporations floating residential mortgage lending rate, will 
become payable if, within 20 years from the date of drawdown, Council abandons or does not complete the project, or significantly alters or withdraws from the provision of 
social housing. 

      

 

(g) Council may have potential liability to remediate council land it owns.  This potential liability is dependent upon the degree of contamination from previous use of the 
land and its future use by Council.  Individual contamination and remediation assessments plans of council land are made and reflected in the provision at the time when 
that particular piece of lands' future use has been determined and the results of the contamination tests enable an estimated cost to be determined. 

      
      
23. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE     
  
 The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Papakura District Council and group on 31 October 2010. 
 The Reorganisation Act provides that:     

 
-  the functions, duties, powers of Papakura District Council became the functions, duties and powers of the Auckland Council, which is responsible for governing the 
Auckland Region from 1 November 2010. 

 - all property belonging to Papakura District Council vested in the Auckland Council and group    
 - all money payable to or by Papakura District Council became payable to or by the Auckland Council and group   

 

- all rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of Papakura District Council became the rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements and engagements of the 
Auckland Council and group 
 
Other than the impacts of the reorganisation noted above there are no other material events post balance date. 
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS     
      
 There were no material related party transactions requiring disclosing between the Council and its related parties during the period, apart from those shown below. 
      

 a) Subsidiaries  31 October 2010  30 June 2009 

   16 Months  12 months 
   $  $ 
 Watercare Service Limited     
 Amount owing by Papakura District Council  0  0 
 Services provided by Watercare Services Limited   20,734  78,258 
 Services provided by Papakura District Council  675,000  0 
      
 Safer Papakura Trust     
 Amount owing by Papakura District Council   0  0 
 Services provided by Safer Papakura Trust  680,916  265,665 
 Services provided by Papakura District Council  2,436  46,033 
      
      
 b) Key Management Personnel compensation     
 Salary and other short term employee benefits  2,217,464  1,568,886 
 Post employment benefits  22,648  7,543 
 Other long term benefits  0  0 
 Termination benefits  464,820  0 
      
        
 Total Key Management Personnel compensation  2,704,932  1,576,429 
        
      

 

Key management include the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive and staff reporting to the Chief Executive.  The termination benefits represent redundancy payments 
arising from the dissolution of Papakura District Council, paid in accordance with the Local Government (Auckland Transition Provisions) Act 2010. 
 
During the 16 months of this annual report, Councillors and senior management, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions with PDC 
such as payment of rates etc. 
 
During the 16 months of this annual report, Council paid the sum of $1,390 (2009 $640) to Councillor Auva'a in her role as musical director for Carols in the Park.  These 
services were provided on normal commercial terms. 
 
During the 16 months of this annual report, Council sold a motor vehicle to Theresa Stratton the PDC Chief Executive. The amount received was $18,260 being the 
independent valuation provided by Papakura Toyota Ltd. 

 

25. STATEMENT OF INVOLVEMENT IN COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS    
      

 
The Safer Papakura Trust is a council-controlled organisation in terms of the Local Government Act 2002.  The Trust commenced in November 2008 and subsequent to 
balance date will continue in its existing form as a council-controlled organisation of the Auckland Council. 

 

     
     
26. PROCESSES FOR MAORI TO CONTRIBUTE TO THE DECISION-MAKING PROCESSES OF COUNCIL    
  

 

The Local Government Act 2002 sets out principles and requirements for local authorities to facilitate participation by Maori in Council decision making processes.  These 
principles and requirements are intended to show recognition for the Crown’s responsibility to take account of the Treaty of Waitangi/Te Tiriti o Waitangi. Papakura District 
Council has enabled a number of mechanisms which enhance its partnership with Maori and provide opportunity for Mana Whenua and the Maori community to input into 
the decision making process of the Council. 
 
Council and Mana Whenua have an established forum, Te Roopu Kaitiaki o Papakura, for discussion of issues of mutual interest.  The forum consists of four appointed 
elected Council members and two representatives from each of the District’s five iwi and hapu.  While the Forum is a collaborative meeting, with all parties responsible for 
their own decision making, the minutes of the Forum are received by the Council as part of the formal agenda. 
 
Under the auspices of Te Roopu Kaitiaki o Papakura, Council facilitates the work of the officers of the iwi so that they can work together collectively on issues of concern to 
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the Council.  This arrangement includes the provision of office space and technical support as necessary and is formalised through a work programme and performance 
agreement. 
 
Council also continues to engage with the wider Maori community through hui-a-iwi and through discussion with a Maori community group known as Whaitiaki.  This group 
formed though the 2006 community outcomes process.  Council contributes to and supports the Maori Outcomes Plan developed by Whaitiaki.  This sits alongside and is 
aligned to the Long Term Council Community Plan. 
 
In broader terms, Council supports the development of Maori capacity to contribute to its decision-making processes through the position of a Kaitakawaenga (Maori 
Liaison Officer).  The role includes an outreach function in relation to key Council decision making processes. 

 
 

 
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT  Council  Group 

   
31 October    

2010  
30 June       

2009  
31 October 

2010  
30 June       

2009 

   $  $  $  $ 

 A  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CATEGORIES       

        

 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

       

 FINANCIAL ASSETS         

 Loans and Receivables         

 Cash and cash equivalents  2,156,136  710,624  2,206,911  787,720 

 Debtors and other receivables         

  - Community loans  78,464  79,308  78,464  79,308 

  - Other debtors and receivables  14,906,507  10,853,148  15,043,318  10,879,156 

   
 

   
 

  

              
 Total Loans and Receivables  17,141,107  11,643,080  17,328,693  11,746,184 

          
          

 Fair Value through Comprehensive Income         

 Other financial assets         

  - Unlisted shares  53,979,871  53,916,183  53,979,871  53,916,183 

          

              
 Total Fair Value through Comprehensive Income  53,979,871  53,916,183  53,979,871  53,916,183 

              
          

 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES         

 Financial Liabilities Amortised at Cost         

 Creditors and other payables  28,377,568  24,126,270  28,528,320  24,161,904 

 Borrowings         

  - Secured Loans  65,500,000  42,000,000  65,500,000  42,000,000 

  - Finance Leases  114,767  205,179  114,767  205,179 

          
              
 Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  93,992,335  66,331,449  94,143,087  66,367,083 
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 B  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISKS         

 

Council is risk adverse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities.  Council's finance function in relation to treasury activity is a risk management function 
and does not undertake any treasury activity that is unrelated to the underlying cashflows and exposures of Council, or is purely speculative in nature. 

          

 Market Risk         

 Price Risk         

 
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.  At balance date Council held no financial instruments 
subject to price risk. 

          

 Currency Risk         

 

Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.  Council is not exposed to currency risk as it does 
not enter into foreign currency transactions. 

          

 Fair Value Interest Rate Risk         

 

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  Borrowing issued at fixed rates, and 
investments made at fixed interest rates, expose Council to fair value interest rate risk.  The interest rates on Council's investments are disclosed in note 2 and on 
borrowings in note 10. 

          

 Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk         

 

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  Borrowing and investments 
issued at variable interest rates would expose Council to cash flow interest rate risk.  Council has no borrowing or investments at variable interest rates. 

          

 Credit Risk         

 

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to Council, causing it to incur a loss.  Due to the timing of its cash inflows and outflows, Council invests 
surplus cash into call and/or term deposits as appropriate which gives rise to credit risk. 

      

      

 Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk  Council  Group 

   
31 October    

2010  
30 June       

2009  
31 October 

2010  
30 June       

2009 

   $  $  $  $ 

 Council's maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is as follows:       

          

 Cash at bank  2,156,136  710,624  2,206,911  787,720 

 Debtors and other receivables exclusive of community loans 14,906,507  10,853,148  15,043,318 
 

10,879,156 

 Community loans  78,464  79,308  78,464  79,308 

   
 

      

   
  

         

 Total Credit Risk  17,141,107  11,643,080  17,328,693  11,746,184 

              

          

  

 

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to Standard and Poor's credit ratings (if available) or to historical 
information about counterparty default rates: 
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   Council  Group 

  Rating 
31 October    

2010  
30 June       

2009  
31 October 

2010  
30 June       

2009 

   $  $  $  $ 

 Counterparties with Credit Ratings         

 Cash at bank AA 2,156,136  710,624  2,206,911  787,720 

          

 Counterparties without Credit Ratings         

 Community loans with no defaults in the past  78,464  79,308  78,464  79,308 

          

 Debtors and Other Receivables exclusive of Community Loans        

 

Debtors and other receivables exclusive of community loans mainly arise from Council's statutory functions, therefore there are no procedures in place to monitor or report 
the credit quality with reference to internal or external credit ratings.  Council has no significant concentrations of credit risk in relation to debtors and other receivables, as it 
has a large number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and Council has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts from 
ratepayers. 

          

 Liquidity Risk         

 Management of Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due.   To meet its liquidity requirements Council has a 
committed credit line of $60,000,000 (2009 $60,000,000) and manages its investments and borrowings in line with its Treasury Management Policy adopted as part of its 
Long Term Council Community Plan. Council has a maximum amount that can be drawn down against its overdraft facility of $100,000 (2009 $100,000).  There are no 
restrictions on the use of this facility. 

          

 Contractual Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities         

 

The table below analyses Council's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

          

        

 Carrying Contractual  Less than   More Than 

 Amount Cash Flows  1 Year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 5 Years 

 $ $  $ $ $ $ 

2010 Council        

Creditors and Other Payables 28,377,568 18,844,235  18,844,235 0 0 0 

Secured Loans 65,500,000 77,145,958  39,404,300 6,126,126 31,615,532 0 

Finance Leases 114,767 164,550  96,312 62,989 5,249 0 

        

              

 93,992,335 96,154,743  58,344,847 6,189,115 31,620,781 0 

              

        

2010 Group        

Creditors and Other Payables 28,528,320 18,994,987  18,994,987 0 0 0 

Secured Loans 65,500,000 77,145,958  39,404,300 6,126,126 31,615,532 0 

Finance Leases 114,767 164,550  96,312 62,989 5,249 0 

        

              

 94,143,087 96,305,495  58,495,599 6,189,115 31,620,781 0 
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 Carrying Contractual  Less than   More Than 

 Amount Cash Flows  1 Year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 5 Years 

 $ $  $ $ $ $ 

2009 Council        

Creditors and Other Payables 24,126,270 14,246,270  14,246,270 0 0 0 

Secured Loans 42,000,000 44,788,180  32,320,597 915,200 11,552,383 0 

Finance Leases 205,179 323,101  117,208 108,153 97,740 0 

        
              
 66,331,449 59,357,551  46,684,075 1,023,353 11,650,123 0 

              
        

2009 Group        

Creditors and Other Payables 24,161,904 14,281,904  14,281,904 0 0 0 

Secured Loans 42,000,000 44,788,180  32,320,597 915,200 11,552,383 0 

Finance Leases 205,179 323,101  117,208 108,153 97,740 0 

        
              

 66,367,083 59,393,185  46,719,709 1,023,353 11,650,123 0 

              
 

 Sensitivity Analysis         

 

Council has a potential surplus and deficit impact for reasonably possible market movements, with all other variables held constant, based on its exposures at balance date. 
This exposure for the Council relates to: 

• the asset cash and cash equivalents of $2,156,136 (2009 $710,624)  where a movement of plus or minus 1% would result in an increase or decrease in net surplus of 
$21,561 (2009 $7,106).  The group exposure relates to the asset cash and cash equivalents of $2,276,257 (2009 $787,720) where a movement of plus or minus 1% 
would result in an increase or decrease in net surplus of $22,763 (2009 $7,877). 

 
• the floating rate portion of the liability secured loans for the Council and group of $12,000,000 (2009 $0) where a movement of plus or minus 1% would result in an 

increase or decrease in net surplus of $120,000 (2009 $0).  All other secured loans are at a fixed rate and not subject to impact by any possible market movement. 

          

 Fair Value Hierarchy disclosures         

 
For those instruments recognised at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position, fair values are determined according to following hierarchy 
(i)  Quoted market price (level 1) - financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets 

 
(ii)  Valuation technique using observable inputs (level 2) - financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in markets or quoted prices for identical or similar 
instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable. 

 (iii)  Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3) - financial instruments valued using models where one or more significant inputs are not observable. 

 The following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. 

 
 

   Valuation Technique 

 
Council  

Total 
 

Quoted 
Market Price 

(Level 1) 
 

Observable 
Inputs (Level 

2) 
 

Significant 
Non 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) 
 

Community Loans 
 

78,464 
 

0 
 

0 
 

78,464 
 

Shares 
 

53,979,871 
 

0 
 

53,979,871 
 

0 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
          
 Total  54,058,335  0  53,979,871  78,464 
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Reconciliation from the opening balance for the level 3 fair value measurements.    

31 October 
2010       
$000  

30 June 
2009       
$000 

 
Balance at 1 July  

        
 

Gains and losses recognised in the surplus 
     79,308   53,071  

 
Repayments of Community Loans 

     (844)  26,237  
 

Allocation of Community Loans 
     0   0  

       0   0  
          

          
       78,464  79,308 
          

          

 There has been no movement in or out of level 3.         

 
28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT         

  

 

The Council's capital is its equity, or ratepayers funds, which comprise retained earnings and reserves.  Equity is represented by net assets.  

The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act), requires Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial 
dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community.  Ratepayer's funds are largely managed as a by-
product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.  

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and applied by Council.  
Intergenerational equity requires today's ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council's assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost of 
long term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations.  Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major asset 
groups. 

The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) and in its Annual Plan 
(where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans.  The Act also sets out the factors Council is required to consider when 
determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities.  The sources and levels of funding are set out in the Treasury policy in 
Council's LTCCP. 

As a part of Ratepayers Equity in note 11, Council has established council created reserves whereby funds are set aside for future expenditure such 
as motor vehicle and computer replacements and loan repayments.  At balance date these funds totalled $2.3m (2009 $2.7m). 

Capital risk Management 
The Council’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns 
to ratepayers and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
The Council’s liability management policy sets the following limits: 
 

 Limit 31 October 
2010 

30 June  
2009 

Note 

Borrowing limits     

Gross interest expense as percentage of annual rates income Maximum – 20% 9.2% 9.5%  

Net debt as percentage of total revenue Maximum – 200% 69.6% 80.4%  

Ratio of earnings before interest and tax compared to net 
interest 

Minimum – 5: 1 8.8: 1 4.4: 1  

Ratio of net cash inflow from operating activities compared to 
gross annual interest expense 

Minimum – 4.5: 1 4.3: 1 2.3: 1 ** see 
below 

Liquidity and credit risk management     

Percentage of borrowing subject to refinancing in any 12 month 
period 

Maximum of 50% of 
total borrowing or $30 
million, whichever is 
greater. 

54.2% 
(Limit 50.0%) 

73.8% 
(Limit 71.4%) 

** see 
below 
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** Over the last year the treasury operations of the councils in the Auckland region, under the auspices of the Auckland Transitional Authority were 
managed collectively by the Integrated Treasury Group (a group of CFOs and Treasury officers from all the councils in the Auckland region).  The 
combined Auckland portfolio did not breach its treasury policy limits. Therefore it was not cost effective from an Auckland region perspective for PDC to 
establish a special funding facility to ensure that it was within its own policy limit given that the amalgamation was only months away. 

 
 
          

   Council     Group 
   

 31 October        30 June     31 October        30 June 
   

2010  2009  2010  2009 
   

      $       $        $        $ 

29. TAX 
        

          

 
Current tax 

 
0  0  0  0 

 
Deferred tax 

 
0  0  0  0 

 
Tax expense 

 
0  0  0  0 

 
 

        

 
 

        

 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit        

 
Surplus / (deficit) before tax 

 
28,694,475  8,443,693  28,651,622  8,461,914 

 
Tax at 30% 

 
8,608,343  2,533,108  8,595,487  2,538,574 

 
Plus / (less) tax effect of 

 
       

 
Non-taxable income 

 
(8,608,343)  (2,533,108)  (8,595,487)  (2,538,574) 

 
 

 
       

              
 

Tax expense 
 

0  0  0  0 
          
 

 
 

           
 

Local authorities are generally exempt from income tax and PDC has no taxable activity. 
   

       
 

Deferred tax arises from taxable temporary differences.  A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to tax losses of $11,387 (2009 $11,387). 
 
 
30. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION       

 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 requires Auckland Council to complete a report and financial statements of 
Papakura District Council and group for the 16 month period to 31 October 2010.  The period is expressed in the financial statements as 2009/2010.  
Actual and budget financial information for 2009/2010 covers the 16 month period.  Comparative information for the preceding financial period, 
2008/2009, covers 12 months.  The two periods are therefore not directly comparable. 

 

31. REORGANISATION OF AUCKLAND GOVERNMENT IN AUCKLAND      

 

a) Tracking of Transfers 

The reorganisation has impacted upon the entities within the group as follows: 

Papakura District Council and Group 

Assets and Liabilities 

• Right to Franchise Assets (sewerage and water systems) of $84million have vested in Watercare Services Limited. 

• Roading system infrastructure assets of $251million have vested in Auckland Transport. 
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• All other assets belonging to Papakura District Council have vested in Auckland Council and group. 

• All money payable to or by Papakura District Council has become payable to Auckland Council and group. 

• All rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements and engagements of Papakura District Council have become the rights liabilities, contracts, 
entitlements and engagements of Auckland Council. 

Operations 

United Water International (Pty) Limited is continuing to operate Council’s sewerage and water systems in accordance with the franchise agreement 
signed in 1997 and effective to 2027, with a possible extension to 2047. 

Auckland Transport will deliver the roading activity previously delivered by Papakura District Council. 

Auckland Council delivers all other services previously delivered by Papakura District Council. 

Safer Papakura Trust 

The Safer Papakura Trust continues in its existing form as a council-controlled organisation of the Auckland Council. 

b) Termination payments 

Salaries and wages as disclosed in Note 14 include $745,706 (2009 nil) of redundancies arising from the dissolution of Papakura District Council paid in 
accordance with the Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 2010. 

 

32. BREACH OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2002         

 

Section 98(3) of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the Council to complete and adopt by resolution its annual report, within four months after the 
end of the financial year to which it relates.  Papakura District Council did not comply with this requirement by the statutory date of 28 February 2011. 

The annual report was completed and adopted on 31 March 2011. 
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Democracy and Planning 
 

What we do 

This activity group focuses on future planning for the District and the decision making processes of Council.  There are four activities within this 
group of activities:  

Democracy Services;  

Policy Planning;  

Strategic Projects; and 

Civil Defence and Emergency Management. 

The Democracy Services activity is responsible for provision of advice and support to elected members and community engagement and 
consultation.   

The Policy Planning activity covers the development and management of changes to the District Plan and the statutory process associated with 
such changes, the preparation of structure plans and consultation associated with these processes and participation in projects that contribute to 
the land planning framework for the Auckland Region.  

The Strategic Projects activity encompasses a range of cross-organisation projects which have significant implications for the District.  There is an 
emphasis on the management of these projects as they move from conception to implementation.   

The Civil Defence and Emergency Management activity is concerned with planning to provide an effective emergency capability for the District 
as part of a regional system of defence and delivering a rural fire service. 

 

Why we do it 

The purpose of the Council, as expressed in the Local Government Act 2002 is to enable democratic local decision making and action by, and on 
behalf of, the community and to promote the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of the community, in the present and for the 
future.  

This purpose, and the ideals of democracy and sustainability which underpin it, are a significant driver of the activities in this group.  

The Planning activities are also underpinned by the objectives of the Resource Management Act 1991 and the Emergency Management and Civil 
Defence activity responds to the requirements expressed in the Civil Defence Emergency Management Act 2002. 

Negative effects 

It is considered that there are generally no negative consequences of these activities, although the opportunity cost may be considered a negative 
consequence.    
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Service Levels 

1. Council’s decision making processes will be widely communicated and easily accessible to the community. The level of service provided for in 
the LTCCP is that all Council information will be available in line with the statutory requirements. 

2. Requests to Council for plan changes (to the District Plan) will be processed to meet statutory requirements. 

3. Council will ensure a rural fire service is available to the rural area. 

 

Performance to Service Levels 

1. All Council information was made available in line with the statutory requirements as shown by the activity measures table on the following 
page. 

2. All Council District Plan changes were processed in line with statutory requirements.  It should however be noted that, with the impending 
Auckland Council amalgamation, no new District Plan changes were notified in the four month period 1 July 2010 - 31 October 2010. 

3. A rural fire service was again provided in line with Council's past service provision.   

 

Overview 

Rural Review – The western part of the Papakura District is bounded by the coastal inlets of the Manukau Harbour.  This coastal edge is one of the 
most accessible natural areas in the District and balancing the restoration of the coastal fringe vegetation, control of predators, and the provision of 
views and access is a key issue in the District.   

Recent subdivision and development of land along the edge of the Pahurehure inlet has changed the landscape context of the coastal edge 
considerably.  The need to preserve and protect the Harbour is also recognised through the policies in the New Zealand Coastal Policy Statement, 
and therefore appropriate recognition needs to be contained within the District Plan to avoid where possible the adverse effects of subdivision, use 
or development on the coastal environment.   

This review commenced in 2006 and was notified in November 2007.  The decision was released in August 2009 and was appealed by twelve 
parties.  Within the 16 months of this report, the majority of appeals were settled and good progress was made with the remainder.  

Ardmore Plan changes – Over the years, vacant industrial-zoned land has been taken up for development. The bulk of remaining vacant 
industrial-zoned land is in within the Ardmore Aerodrome Zone, which is zoned for aviation industry and related activities only.  

Furthermore, there are constraints which affect the suitability and availability of land for industrial development.  There are certain constraints to 
further industrial development in some parts of the District as a result of inadequate infrastructure.  

This situation requires careful management to ensure that the widest opportunities are available to developers while minimising the costs of 
development to the wider community.   

The review was undertaken and subsequent plan change was notified in April 2009.  The remaining appeals were resolved and the plan changes 
became operative on 27th September 2010, settling approximately 15 years of plan change issues at Ardmore.   

This has now provided flexibility for the use of under-utilised land at the Ardmore Aerodrome until it is required for aviation purposes. 

District Plan Review – in light of the impending changes to the governance of Auckland, the review of Papakura District Plan which was planned 
to start this year and extend over the 2009-2013 years was suspended.  The focus of work for the 2009/10 period was to complete the work already 
underway, which were largely changes that implement Papakura District’s commitments in the Regional Growth Strategy.  Further information on 
the Regional Growth Strategy is provided in the table below. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% Statutory requirements for the publication of agendas and minutes of 
Council meetings and public notices are met 100% 100% 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 
Council continued to perform to 

expectations in this area. 

12 month - 90% Not Achieved – 
76% 

Percentage of Agenda Items that are publicly available 88% 87% 

4 month - 90% Not Achieved – 
74% 

An increase in the need for Council to 
consider items in confidential session to 

discuss sensitive issues (such as contract 
negotiations) in preparation for the 

pending Auckland Council amalgamation 
has driven this result 

12 month - 70% Not Achieved – 
67% Percentage of residents that consider Council’s information is easy to 

understand 65% 70% 
4 month - Measured 

Annually 
Measured 
Annually 

Results are in line with prior years. 
Constant review is undertaken to ensure 

information is easy to understand. 

12 month - 60% Not Achieved – 
58% 

Percentage of residents that believe they are adequately informed 
about key issues relating to Council 55% 64% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

Council’s Positive improvement trend has 
fallen back from last year’s high, although 

the level is still higher than that seen in 
previous years.   

Council uses a number of mediums to 
inform ratepayers about key issues.  

These include website, inserts with local 
suburban newspapers and pamphlets 

included with rates mail outs. 

During the year there was a great deal of 
uncertainty as a result of the pending 

Auckland Council amalgamation which is 
likely to have impacted this result. 

Increase participation in Local Government Elections No Election this 
year 

No Election this 
year 12 month - No Election 

this year 
No Election this 

year 
There was no election held during this 

period. 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

4 month - 5% increase Achieved – 12.8% 
increase 

Papakura residents turned out in greater 
numbers than for previous local 

government elections. 

The voter turnout in 2010 was 47.5% 
compared to 34.7% in 2007.   

The increase in numbers is believed to be 
the result of publicity surrounding the 
establishment of the new Auckland 

Council and the associated election of its 
inaugural Mayor, Council and Papakura 

Local Board. 

12 month - Achieved Not Achieved 
District Plan Review process completed within statutory timeframes 6 6 

4 month - Achieved Not Achieved 

The District Plan Review process was 
discontinued as a result of the pending 

Auckland Council amalgamation 

12 month - Achieved Achieved 

Regional Growth Strategy targets updated by Plan Change No. 10 are 
met New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Achieved Achieved 

Plan Change No. 10 related to the 
transition of Hingaia from rural to urban 

residential.   

The Regional Growth Strategy targets 
were updated by this change.   These 

include sustainable use and protection of 
the region’s natural and physical 

resources (including infrastructure) and 
efficient access to activities and 

appropriate social infrastructure for all.   

Progress towards this included a purchase 
in September 2010 of rural land adjacent 
to the proposed school in Hingaia, to be 

used as active recreation space. 

Percentage of Mana Whenua groups that consider they have an 
appropriate relationship with the Council 

Not measured - 
have established 

formal 
relationships with 

Not measured - 
have established 

formal 
relationships with 

12 month - 75% Not Measured 

No new measure was developed as a 
result of the pending Auckland Council 

amalgamation.   

The interaction with Mana Whenua will 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

five iwi groups five iwi groups 
4 month - 75% Not Measured 

undergo significant restructuring as part of 
the Auckland Council 

12 month - Two Achieved – Two 

Number of District Plan changes notified per year 4 5 
4 month - None None 

Less development has taken place in the 
district due to the economic downturn.  

The full year target was two however no 
new district plan changes were notified 

during the four months to 31 October 2010 
as a result of the pending Auckland 

Council amalgamation 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 
Percentage of District Plan appeals resolved in the Environment Court 

that support the Council’s District Plan decisions 
No appeals 

decided 
No appeals 

decided 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

A number of plan changes were 
processed through the notification, 

submission, hearing, decision, and appeal 
processes.  8 plan change decisions were 

released, with all supporting Council’s 
District Plan decisions. 

12 month - 70% Achieved – 77% 
Percentage of residents satisfied with the state of the built environment 

in the District 71% 74% 
4 month - Measured 

Annually 
Measured 
Annually 

Measured as part of the Annual Residents 
views survey undertaken in late 
September/early October 2010. 

12 month - One Achieved – One 

The exercise held was regarding the 
scenario of a Welfare Based Exercise 

dealing with registration and management 
of evacuee needs within a Welfare Centre.   

Participants included: Emergency 
Management Office Staff & Salvation 

Army, all CDEM Welfare Teams, plus new 
recruits.   

Overall, the exercise was considered a 
success. 

Number of Civil Defence Emergency Coordinating Centre exercises per 
year One None 

4 month - One Not Achieved – 
None 

No exercise occurred during this period for 
which the Council could participate. 
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DEMOCRACY AND PLANNING 
 STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES  

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
       

           Actual        Actual           Budget  
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to  
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010  

            $                $ $  
  Activity Expenditure     
       

178,967  Civil Defence and Emergency Management  209,503 248,123  
1,313,499  Democratic Support  1,608,066 1,531,639  

455,265  Elected Member Costs  609,508 579,400  
1,554,412  Policy and Planning (1.)  2,226,117 1,806,520  

237,300  Strategic Projects  186,669 199,126  
5,274  Loss on Disposal of Assets  0 0  

       
          

3,744,717  Total Activity Expenditure  4,839,863 4,364,808  
          
       
       
  Funded by     
       

3,722,135  Rates (2.)  4,719,255 4,349,808  
16,802  Fees and Charges  199,955 95,000  
5,780  Grants and Subsidies  653 0  

0  Transfer from/(to) Reserves  (80,000) (80,000)  
       
          

3,744,717  Total Funding  4,839,863 4,364,808  
          
       

 
EXPLANATIONS FOR MAJOR VARIANCES FROM BUDGET 

 

1. Policy Planning 

Additional costs were incurred for resolving appeals relating to Ardmore Airport, the Rural Plan Change and the Takanini 

Structure Plan. 

 

2. Rates 

Additional rate funding was applied to this activity to meet the increased policy planning costs referred to above.  
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DEMOCRACY AND PLANNING 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

     
           Actual       Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to      16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009   31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $               $  
     

39,102  Vehicle 0 0 
0  Other Capital Expenditure 19,000 6,667 
     

25,600  Loan Repayments 88,333 88,333 
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves 0 0 

     
        

64,702  Total Capital Expenditure 107,333 95,000 
        
     
     

  Funded by   
     

25,600  Rates 107,333 95,000 
39,102  Funding from Reserves / Internal Borrowing 0 0 

     
        

64,702  Total Funding 107,333 95,000 
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Business and Promotion 
 

What we do 

This activity covers the provision of business support and information, including the website, facilitation of events, marketing and promotion of the 
District, and securing central government support for the District’s economic development needs. 

Council’s focus on the Town Centre includes the employment of a full time Town Centre Manager.  Some of the Business and Promotion activities 
are funded by a targeted rate paid by the Town Centre businesses.  There has been no increase in this rate for several years despite an increase in 
services and costs. This rate has been increased by 25 per cent this year. 

We have contracted the Safer Papakura Trust to provide ambassador services in the Town Centre and security personnel at the Farmers car park 
and the Papakura rail station park and ride car park.  A $2 per day charge was introduced for the secure parking at the park and ride car park; all 
other car park facilities remain free. 

Rugby World Cup  

In 2011, New Zealand will host the Rugby World Cup.  Auckland will be the location for some pool games, the semi-finals and final.  There are 
expected to be a huge number of visitors to the region over this time and the Councils of the region have been working together on projects to 
capitalise on this event.  

 

Why we do it 

This activity contributes to economic well-being as follows: 

• Providing business support and information contributes to business growth in the District enhancing the range of local employment 
opportunities for residents and building greater economic prosperity 

• provision and facilitation of events provides cultural, arts and recreational activities that have an economic impact for local businesses and 
residents and enriches the range of recreational activities in the District 

• marketing and promotion of the District fosters community pride and can contribute to greater economic prosperity through business 
attraction/retention 

• liaison and advocacy for District’s interests in inter-regional and national economic development projects and fora contributes to the effective 
targeting of resources to meet the District’s needs. 

In addition, this activity also contributes to a number of Community Outcomes: 

• Events contribute to a sense of community pride and belonging 

• marketing and promotion helps build a strong and positive identity 

• Town Centre as heart of the District: business support activities assist the development of a strong business presence. 
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Negative effects 

It is considered that there are generally no significant negative effects of the activity. As this activity is largely discretionary, the opportunity cost of 
the activity may be considered to be a negative effect. 

 

Service levels 

1. The Council will facilitate at least nine events per year. 

2. Security will be provided at the Papakura rail station park and ride car park between 8.00am and 8.00pm Monday to Friday, excluding 
statutory holidays. 

3. Security will be provided at the Farmers car park between 8.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday, excluding statutory holidays. 

4. Council will also publish additional information about its activities on a bi-monthly basis. This will be delivered to every household.  

 

Performance to Service levels 

1. Council exceeded the minimum service level this year by facilitating a total of 30 events during the 1 July 2009 – 30 June 2010, although 
falling short of the targeted 35 events for the same period. 

2. In line with past practices, basic security measures were provided at the Papakura rail station park and ride car park.  Benefits of security 
measures are likely to have affected residents’ satisfaction and safety perception, as shown in the table below. 

3. A security service was provided at the Farmers car park by the Safer Papakura Trust, meeting the Service Level requirements as indicated 
above. 

4. Council continued to publish additional information about its activities on a bi-monthly basis, however as a cost-saving mechanism the delivery 
of this information was varied from past practices and included online information (via website updates) and through the local Papakura 
Courier newspaper. 

 

Overview 

Town Centre Upgrade – this project was planned and implementation started during the term of the previous Council, however during 2009/10 the 
project came to fruition with significant improvement to both the underlying infrastructure  and the streetscape of the Town Centre; 

Drury South Business Project – a very comprehensive suite of technical studies have been completed by Stevenson Group, and currently, work 
by Stevenson Group is focussed on defining the scope of Notices of Requirement for the infrastructure services required to service the industrial 
development.  It is expected a Private Plan Change will be lodged with the Auckland Council as a result of this work; 

Outdoor Events Facility – a new facility was designed and built.  The Outdoor Events Facility is a purpose built stage area that replaced the old 
sound-shell in Central park.  It has already been used for a number of events, but also just as importantly is a feature of public art and adds interest 
to Central Park. 

Security at Papakura Rail Station and Farmers car parks – only 25% of respondents to the Papakura Residents’ Survey considered these car 
parks to be safe during the evening.  From 1 November the Auckland Council will become responsible for security measures in these facilities and 
will likely investigate alternatives to improve resident perception in terms of public safety.   
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Other Key Highlights 

Council takes an active role in facilitating events within the Community.  Among the successful events supported were the following:

• Franklin-Papakura Stevenson Business Excellence Awards Gala; 

• Dunlop Targa; 

• Fireworks Display; 

• Carols in the Park; 

• Santa Parade; 

• Movies in the Park; 

• Mayoral Bike Challenge; 

• Sounds at Sunset; 

• PIPS Canoe Day 

• Spring Carnival 2009 (2010 event cancelled due to poor weather); 

• Bluelight Trolley Derby; 

• Business Excellence Programme; 

• Rugby World Cup 2011 coordination and planning; 

• Commonwealth Games bid 2018. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 35 Not Achieved – 
30 

Bad weather resulted in cancellation of some 
Council supported events during this period, such 

as Canoe day (March 2010). 

The number of Council supported events held in the District 
per year 34 32 

4 month - 12 Not Achieved – 6 

The stated target for the four month period was 
equally phased over the year, so does not best 

represent actual performance to the annual target 
as provided in the LTCCP 2009-19. 

Key events undertaken during this period include: 
Community Volunteer Awards, Fresh Futures 

Duathlon, and the Bluelight Trolley Derby. 

Events remain an important function of the 
Auckland Council. 

12 month - 
Growth exceeds 

regional 
average 

Not Achieved – 
Papakura 0.2% 
Region 0.5% 

Percentage growth in the number of businesses in the 
District 

Papakura 1.0% 
Region 1.8% 

Papakura 0.7%  
Region 2.0% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

 This measure is provided as a high level indicator 
on the health of the local business within 

Papakura.   

While no key reasons have been identified for the 
smaller level of growth compared to the region for 

the same period, the gap between the region’s 
growth and Papakura’s is less than previous 

years. 

12 month - 
Growth exceeds 

regional 
average 

Not Achieved – 
Papakura -7.1% 

Region -3.6% 
Percentage growth in employment (Full Time Equivalents) Papakura 0.4% 

Region 2.5% 
Papakura 2.1% 

Region 2.4% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

Statistics NZ information states that the property 
and business services industry shed the most jobs 
due to a sharp fall in property market activity and a 

general slow-down in business activities.   

The slump in world demand for manufactured 
goods contributed to the decline in employment in 

manufacturing.  

The retail trade and accommodation, cafes and 
restaurants sectors have also shed jobs. 

Percentage of business owners that consider the District a 
good place to operate in 33% 70.2% 12 month - 60% Results 

unavailable 
This survey was not undertaken for the 2009/10 

year due to staff resource constraints.   
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

Previous year's result shows that 70.2% of 
business owners considered the District a good 

place to operate in. 

Council continued to work proactively with existing 
businesses to ensure that they found no major 

problems operating in the District. 

12 month - New Measure Daytime 80% 
Evening 25% 

Percentage of Papakura Rail Station car park users that 
consider the car park is safe New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

This is a new measure introduced for the 2009/10 
period as part of the Residents Survey undertaken 

late September/early October 2010.   

2009/10 was the first year this information was 
collected.  From 1 November Auckland Council will 

likely investigate alternatives to improve 
perceptions in terms of public safety.   

12 month - New Measure Daytime 80% 
Evening 25% 

Percentage of Farmers car park users that consider the car 
park is safe New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

2009/10 was the first year this information was 
collected and enables Council to set future targets.   

The car park is located in the centre of commercial 
area and is frequently used.  The car park can be 

a ‘hang out’ for youths and as such the Safer 
Papakura Trust has specific focus on this area to 

ensure residents feel safe. 
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BUSINESS AND PROMOTION 

STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual        Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to    16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

158,551  Business Assistance, Development and Promotion (1.) 468,374 357,567 
787,468  Economic Development Support (2.)  568,873 702,911 

84,001  Town Centre Promotion  230,883 230,667 
0  Loss on Disposal of Assets  1,200 0 

         
      

1,030,020  Total Activity Expenditure  1,269,330 1,291,145 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

897,854  Rates Revenue  977,111 1,006,845 
48,888  Grants and Subsidies  67,671 96,000 
83,278  Fees and Charges  88,720 116,000 

0  Transfer from/(to) Reserves  135,828 72,300 
         
      

1,030,020  Total Funding  1,269,330 1,291,145 
         
         

 

EXPLANATIONS FOR MAJOR VARIANCES FROM BUDGET 

 

1. Business Assistance, Development and Promotion 

Costs exceed budget this accounting period due to differences in the anticipated timing of Council's contribution to 

Rugby World Cup costs.  Total costs are expected to be within budget. 

2. Economic Development Support 

Costs were less than budget as a planned increase in staff resources was not implemented due to the impending 

transition to the new Auckland Council. 
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BUSINESS AND PROMOTION  

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010  

      
           Actual        Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to    16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

0  Plant and Machinery  38,317 32,000 
0  Other Capital Expenditure  6,956 0 
      

0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  6,400 6,400 
      
         

0  Total Capital Expenditure  51,673 38,400 
         
      
      

  Funded by    
      

0  General Rates  13,356 6,400 
0  Loan Funding  38,317 32,000 

      
         

0  Total Funding  51,673 38,400 
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Community Development 
 

What we do 

The Community Development activity group encompasses a wide range of community orientated activities. It oversees the community grants 
programme, youth leadership initiatives, social services network development, volunteer awards and community energy efficiency programmes. 
The Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) is funded from this area. The Safer Communities activity is also included in this activity group and provides a 
range of services and activities aimed at increasing safety and security, including neighbourhood support, graffiti prevention contracts and support 
for Community Crimewatch patrols. 

 

Why we do it 

This activity contributes to the social and cultural well-being of the District as described in the Local Government Act 2002. The accommodation, 
financial and network support given to volunteer groups, and the participation in organised programmes, continues to have a positive effect 
engendering a sense of belonging, safety and pride. 

In addition, this activity contributes to a wide range of the Community Outcomes themes as follows: 

• Safe and stable community: Safer Communities’ primary focus is on crime prevention and Community Development is about creating a 
sense of belonging for all 

• Pride in our community and heritage: crime erodes a sense of pride 

• A well planned built environment: Older Persons’ Housing provides a valuable social wellbeing and adds to the diversity of housing stock 
available in the District 

• Healthy Lifestyles: Support for a number of organisations with a health focus 

• Releasing the potential of our rangatahi: young people is one of the strategic priorities for Community Development.  The Local Crime 
Prevention Plan has a focus on truancy and youth crime. 

Specific community outcomes to which there is a contribution from these activities are: 

• There is minimal graffiti and littering in the District 

• Residents demonstrate commitment to the long-term wellbeing of the District 

• Papakura District has a strong and positive identity 

• The District’s infrastructure is sustainable and caters for the communities diverse needs and activities 

• People and communities have access to a range of appropriate health services and resources 

• Youth development is supported by role models and mentors 

• Quality facilities and events encourage youth participation in recreation and leisure activities 

• Youth initiatives within the District are encouraged and supported 
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Negative effects 

As this activity is largely discretionary the opportunity cost may be considered to be a negative effect. 

 

Service levels 

1. Community Development activities and services will mostly be delivered between 8.00am and 5.00pm Monday to Friday.  After hours and 
weekend service delivery occurs on an ad hoc basis. The CAB will be open on Saturday mornings. 

2. Graffiti will be removed from publicly owned sites within 24 hours. 

 

Performance to Service levels 

1. Council met the service level by providing Community Development services in line with the stated direction. 

2. Through the Council's CCO, the Safer Papakura Trust, Council met the Service level requirement to remove Graffiti from publicly owned sites 
within 24 hours.  This is also supported by measure number nine in the table below. 

 

Overview 

Community Development and Environmental Education – Council has continued to work with the community and assisted community capacity 
building by supporting existing and new organisations (e.g. PAPCOSS, Counties Manukau Active, Maori events and Ofa Club); 

Safer Papakura Trust – This trust was established in 2008/09 and combined the activities of the former Proudly Papakura Trust and Town Centre 
Association.  The trust provides a very good graffiti removal service with 100% of graffiti being removed from high priority publicly owned sites 
within 24 hours, an effective ambassador programme and a wide range of other initiatives to support their objectives. 

Further information on the Safer Papakura Trust is provided at the end of this report. 

Community Grants Programme – Council allocated $40,000 towards community groups providing beneficial services to the community of 
Papakura.  Requests totalling $75,382.99 were received, with the entire $40,000 being allocated.  The average amount requested was $1,794.83 
with the average grant allocated $952.38.  The largest grant amount allocated to a single applicant was $1,750, with the smallest being a declined 
application. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - 53 Not Achieved – 
43 

Council has a policy around providing funding to eligible community 
groups.   

In 2008/09 there were two funding rounds undertaken, an increase 
from prior years.  Only one round was undertaken in 2009/10.   

The decrease may be the result of reduced applications assuming 
that there would be a second funding round as in prior year. 

All available funds were allocated. 

Number of applications for community 
grants per year 53 103 

4 month - 53 Not Achieved – 
47 

The 2010/11 year's funding round was undertaken in the first four 
months of the financial year.   

As it took place earlier than prior years, extra communication was 
made to community organisations in an effort to notify potential 

applicants to the change of timeframe.  Therefore more applications 
were made than in the 2009/10 financial year. 

Council allocated $40,000 towards community groups providing 
beneficial services to the community of Papakura.   

Requests totalling $75,382.99 were received, with the entire 
$40,000 being allocated. 

12 month - 23 Not Achieved – 
21 

This was the first year of measurement for this performance target, 
and allows a basis for future measurement.   

The result is comparable to estimated target.  Most of this funding 
was allocated with the balance of $4,186.90 being carried forward 

for allocation by the Auckland Council. 
Number of applications to Creative 

Communities grants scheme New Measure New Measure 

4 month -  Not Measured 18 
Unlike prior years, only a single funding round was undertaken prior 

to 31 October 2010. 

12 month - Three Achieved – Five 

Number of youth initiatives led by Council New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Two Achieved – Five 

Initiatives led by Council include Youth Achievement awards, and 
eighty young people have participated in youth leadership 

programmes through the Council’s Youth Leadership forum.   

Twenty-six schools are now participating in waste reduction through 
working worm farms.   

Council continues to work with the community and assisted 
community building by supporting existing and new organisations.  



Papakura District Council 

 84 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

E.g. Counties Manukau Active, Maori events and Ofa Club. 

12 month - 60 Achieved – 113 

Up to 60 per cent grants through the EE CA’s ENERGYWISE™ 
programme has allowed residents to retrofit insulation in their 
ceilings and under floors, as well as draft-proof windows and 

external doors. 

Number of properties that have received 
energy efficiency retrofits New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 22 Not Measured 

The supporting data for this measure was not collected for the 4 
month period due to staff resource constraints, but anecdotal 

evidence suggests applications were still being received. 

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four month 
period; however the result was only measured for the 12 month 

period for this report. 

12 month - New Measure 61% 
Percentage of residents satisfied with level 

of provision of Community Halls New Measure New Measure 
4 month - Measured 

Annually 
Measured 
Annually 

Review of Council activities and service levels as part of the 2009-
19 LTCCP saw the introduction of this measure.  Council operates 6 

community halls around the district which are available for use to 
community groups. 

2009/10  was the first year this information was collected and 
enables Council to set future targets 

12 month - 13,000 Achieved – 
14,701 

There was higher than targetted use of the CAB again during 
2009/10, however this was in line with 2008/09 results which may 

indicate the need for the review of the target for future years. 
Number of people assisted by the Citizens 

Advice Bureau (CAB) 12,988 14,684 

4 month - 4,800 Not Achieved – 
3,535 

Equal phasing of the targetted attendance numbers suggests a drop 
in use of the CAB facility; however, based on historical monthly 

trends, attendance is likely to improve in following months. 

12 month - 2,406 Achieved – 2,766 

Number of patrol hours of Community 
Crimewatch New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 1,000 Not Achieved – 
672 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.   

Community Crimewatch is largely a volunteer based operation that 
works in conjunction with Council.   

As a result of transitional processes a marked decrease in 
enthusiasm and morale was noticed amongst volunteers. This is 

potentially reflected in a lower number of patrol hours. 

Number of Neighbourhood Support 
Groups New Measure New Measure 12 month - 250 Not Achieved – 

236 
The number of Neighbourhood Support Groups within the Papakura 

area fell slightly short of the target for both periods.   
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

4 month - 250 Not Achieved – 
231 

There was a slight decrease in the number of registered groups as 
the contact for the group either moved or discontinued being the 

contact for one reason or another. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 
Graffiti is removed from high priority 
publicly owned sites within 24 hours New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

The Safer Papakura Trust is the service provider for Graffiti removal. 
They provide an excellent graffiti removal service, and effective 

ambassador programme.   

Incidence of graffiti is tracking at 50% less than prior years.  With 
this reduction the Trust is able to remove all graffiti within 24 hours 

of it being reported. 
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual        Actual           Budget 
12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $    $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

83,065  Citizens Advice Bureau  164,956 187,379 
1,158,983  Community Development and Safer Communities  838,935 863,996 

154,731  Grants  277,278 210,748 
0  Loss on Disposal of Assets  2,513 0 

         
      

1,396,779  Total Activity Expenditure  1,283,682 1,262,123 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

807,537  Rates  1,111,696 1,137,789 
57,742  Fees and Charges  23,775 5,667 
78,171  Grants and Subsidies  148,211 118,667 

453,329  Loan Funding  0 0 
         
      

1,396,779  Total Funding  1,283,682 1,262,123 
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $ $ 
      

0  Awhi House  41,000 42,000 
0  Community Billboards (1.)  0 30,000 
0  Children and Families Hub (2.)  51,233 0 

4,330  Community House Project  0 0 
0  Target Hardening  43,601 40,000 

2,647  Hall Upgrades  0 0 
16,087  Other Capital Expenditure  0 1,440 

      
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  15,600 15,600 

      
         

23,064  Total Capital Expenditure  151,434 129,040 
         
      
      

  Funded by    
      

0  Rates  15,600 12,720 
7,464  Loans Raised  115,914 96,400 

15,600  Depreciation  19,920 19,920 
      
         

23,064  Total Funding  151,434 129,040 
         
      

 
EXPLANATIONS FOR MAJOR VARIANCES FROM BUDGET 

 

1. Community Billboards 

This project was deferred due to the impending transition to the new Auckland Council.  Future progress on this project 

will be subject to the approval of the new Auckland Council. 

 

2. Children and Families Hub 

This project was provided for but not undertaken in the 2008/09 year.  The budget and associated loan funding was been 

carried forward into this accounting period and the project has been completed subsequent to balance date. 
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Regulatory Services  

 

What we do 

The Regulatory Services activity group encompasses the education, information, consenting processes of Council and the enforcement of a range 
of legislation for which Council is responsible. There are five activities within this group: 

Resource Consents and Monitoring,  

Building Control,  

Environmental Health,  

Animal Control, and  

Parking Control. 

The Resource Consents and Monitoring activity administers the provisions of the District Plan and related Plan Changes, provides advice and 
information, processes resource consent applications (land use and subdivisions), assesses engineering plans, monitors resource consents and 
undertakes enforcement actions.   

The activity also ensures engineering assets created that will subsequently pass into Council ownership are of a quality that meets our 
Development Code and other standards of development.  

The Building Control activity provides information on building and consent processes, LIMs (Land Information Memoranda), PIMs (Property 
Information Memoranda), inspections of swimming pool fencing, enforcement related to illegal structures and other non-compliances under the 
Building Act. 

The building services provided are split between the requirements of Council and the Building Consent Authority (BCA).  

The BCA processes building consent applications and undertakes inspections to ensure compliance with approved plans and documents.  
Changes to the Building Act in 2004 have significantly increased levels of statutory assessment, quality management of processes and monitoring 
of building projects.  The new regulatory structure, which saw Council become a BCA in 2008, will continue to require changes in service through to 
2013.  This requirement is causing substantial cost increases. 

The Environmental Health activity carries out Council’s statutory public health and environmental responsibilities. The environmental health 
function includes the licensing and monitoring of premises where food is prepared, liquor licence reporting and inspection of premises, and 
controlling excessive noise.   

This activity faces significant service level changes due to new legislation and bylaws including changes to the Public Health Act, the proposed 
Food Safety programme, the Graffiti Act 2008 and draft changes to the Liquor Licensing Act.   The new regulatory structure required under the 
proposed Food Safety programme, is expected to require Council to be a registered and accredited Food Safety organisation by the end of 2010.   

The Animal Control activity carries out Council’s statutory responsibility for animal control with a particular focus on dogs.  Amendments to the 
Dog Control Act have increased the level of service required especially with regard to menacing, aggressive and unregistered dogs.  

The activity also undertakes the education of dog owners about their responsibilities of owning and caring for dogs.  Funding for the Animal Control 
activity is mainly from registration fees and fines, but there is also an element of rates funding. 

The Parking Control activity carries out Council’s statutory parking enforcement responsibilities under the Transport Act 1962 and other relevant 
statutes and Council bylaws.  The focus is on enforcement of parking compliance and achieving increased traffic and vehicle safety by changing 
behaviour through education and enforcement.   
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Why we do it 

These activities contribute particularly to the Community Outcomes that focus on a sustainable natural environment, well-planned neighbourhoods 
and quality of housing and infrastructure within the built environment.  They make a major contribution to public health and safety through the 
inspection and control of food and liquor premises, monitoring of swimming pool fencing and by noise and animal control. 

The activities within this group contribute to the Community Outcome themes relating to: 

• Accessible and cared for natural environment 

• healthy lifestyles 

• releasing the potential of our rangatahi 

• fostering involvement in arts and recreation 

• pride in our community identity and heritage 

• a well-planned built environment. 

 

Negative effects 

Failure to adequately provide regulatory services would be contrary to the mandatory duties of Council. They are in place, in most cases, to 
manage and minimise adverse and negative effects of other activities and their absence would have a negative impact on community well-being. 

There are generally no significant negative effects of this activity, although it is important that Council resources and manages the activity to deliver 
a service that meets its statutory requirements especially related to timely and quality services so as not to impact on social, environmental and 
economic well-being.  Delays in processing applications can have a negative economic impact.  The regulatory services are largely funded from 
applicants using the services or, in the case of Animal Control, by the dog registration fees and charges.   

 

Service levels  

1. Resource consents will be processed within statutory timeframes. 

2. Building consents will be processed within statutory timeframes. 

3. All food handling premises will be inspected twice per year. 

4. 100% of noise complaints will be responded to within 90 minutes. 

5. All swimming pools will be checked for compliance on a three yearly cycle. 

 

Performance to Service levels 

1. Almost all Resource consents within the scope of this report were processed within statutory timeframes, with less than 2% of consents not 
meeting this Service level.  Reasons for not meeting this Service level include staff resource issues and consent processing complications. 

2. Almost all Building consents within the scope of this report were processed within statutory timeframes, with the small number not being 
processed within this timeframe not being great enough to generate a variance in the percentage shown below.  In similar fashion to 
Resource consents, reasons for not meeting this Service level include staff resource issues and consent processing complications. 

3. Only 95% of food handling premises were inspected twice per year for the full year 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010, slightly short of the desired 
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Service level.  Reasons for not meeting this Service level include staff resource issues and also the prioritisation of high risk facilities above 
other premises less likely to generate health and safety issues. 

4. Through Councils contracted service provider Animal Control Services (ACS) Ltd, Council met this Service level. 

5. In line with the stated Service level, Council continued its work (i.e. inspections and monitoring) to ensure all swimming pools within the district 
have been checked on a three yearly cycle.  Council maintains a database of all swimming pool facilities within the district and inspections 
conducted in order to monitor and ensure this Service level is met. 

 

Overview 

Streamlining – Significant effort has been put in over the last three years to improve processes and performance in this area.  Some of the process 
changes were driven by legislation (i.e. the changes to the Building Act and the ‘streamlining’ of the Resource Management Act) however, 
significant process change in the Resource Consent area came about as a result of a review of the major development consenting processes.  
Some statistics that highlight the key improvements are provided below. 

First Building Consent Authority in Auckland and 5th in New Zealand to be fully accredited under Building Act 2005 & Regulations - The 
BCA accreditation and registration scheme is among a suite of Building Act 2004 reforms designed to help improve the control of, and encourage 
better practice and performance in, building design, regulatory building control and building construction.  More information about Building Consent 
Authorities and relevant legislation/regulations can be found on the New Zealand Department of Building and Housing website (www.dbh.govt.nz); 

Improvement in building consent processing - with almost all consents issued within 20 working days (99.6% - including two quarters during 
2009/10 where 100% of consents were issued within 20 working days), despite the fact that the introduction of new legislation has increased 
inspection requirements.  This has resulted in an increase in the average processing time from 12.53 working days in 2006/07 to 13.8 working days 
2009/10; 

Improvement in resource consent processing - with average days to process a consent dropping from 23.2 working days in 2006/07 to 16 
working days in 2009/10, and percentage of consents issued within 20 working days increasing dramatically from 69% in 2006/07 to 98.4% in 
2009/10; 

New Development Engineering Code was completed – the Development Code includes engineering guides, requirements and standards for 
subdivisions and development within the Papakura District – the full document is available on the Papakura District Council website; 

96% of Food Premises receiving a B grade equivalent or higher – further information is provided in the table below; 

Dog Policy and Bylaw reviewed – as a result of the process a new Bylaw was drafted and adopted by Council and became operative on the 25th 
of November 2009. 
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Activity Statements 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - 100% Not Achieved 
– 98.4% 

Resource consents are processed within statutory deadlines 74% 80% 

4 month - 100% Not Achieved 
– 99% 

There were fewer resource consents processed (125) than 
expected with the economic downturn; leading to faster 

processing of consents and an increase from prior year’s 
results.   

Improvements are continuing and review of processes will 
continue with the Auckland Council.  The resource consent 

process review and changes were implemented in June 
2009.  As a result the average days to process a consent has 

reduced from 23.2 working days in 2006/07 to 16 working 
days in 2009/10. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Resource consents are monitored for compliance with conditions 
of consent 100% 100% 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

The community can rely on Council monitoring compliance of 
land-use consents to ensure the character of the district is 

retained and that environmental effects are remedied, 
avoided or mitigated. 

There were 316 Resource consents issued and 993 
compliance inspections undertaken in the year to 30 June 

2010. 

If a consent is monitored and subsequently identified that 
conditions have not been met, Council’s monitoring officer(s) 

will initially try to work with consent holders to achieve 
compliance. 

Unfortunately, if this method is not successful enforcement 
action is required and undertaken, which can result in 

prosecution under the relevant legislation. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Vested infrastructure comply with relevant development code and 
acceptable solutions 

New 
Measure 

New 
Measure 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

As a requirement of any development, a developer may, 
under the terms of their resource consent, pay developer 

contributions to Council.  This may either be in terms of cash, 
or infrastructural assets (roads, stormwater, water etc…) 

which are vested in Council.  

This was a new measure introduced as part of the review of 
performance measures completed with the LTCCP 2009-19. 

Council has successfully met the target of 100%. 



Papakura District Council 

 92 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - 100% Not Achieved 
– 99.6% 

Building consents are processed within statutory deadlines 80% 98.8% 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Continued improvement within the Building Control area (as 
highlighted above in the Overview section) coupled with a 

down turn in the number of consents has seen an 
improvement in consents processed within statutory 

deadlines.   

If a complaint has been received regarding unconsented or 
non-compliant works, it is investigated and the owner is either 
issued with a notice to remove the works or given a certificate 

of acceptance.  It provides a limited assurance in certain 
circumstances that the council has inspected unauthorised, 

completed building work and found no obvious defects. 

12 month - Achieved Achieved 
Maintain Building Consent Authority accreditation New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - Achieved Achieved 

In May 2009 Papakura was the first building consent authority 
in Auckland to be fully accredited under the Building Act 2005 

and Regulations.  This status was not reviewed prior to 31 
October 2010.   

12 month - 100% Not achieved 
– 95% 

Of the 178 food premises within Papakura, 168 premises 
received an A grading, 9 received a B grading and one 

received a D grading. 

Council’s policy requires that A grade premises are inspected 
at least twice a year, while those with a lower grading are 
inspected more frequently to assist them in achieving an A 

grade.   

A total of 509 inspections in total were undertaken over the16 
month period, with some premises being inspected more than 

once. 

Percentage of food handling premises inspected twice per year 66% 100% 

4 month - 100% Not Achieved 
– 35% 

The target for this measure was incorrectly stated in the 
Annual Plan 2009/10 as 100% is the annual target rather 

than the 4 month target.   

Based on past results and an annual target of 100%, the 4 
month target is approximately 40%. 

Percentage of licensed premises (liquor, excluding club licenses) 
visited to ensure compliance with licensing conditions twice per 

year 
77% 76% 12 month - 100% Not Achieved 

– 76% 

As part of normal process licenced premises are inspected at 
least once per year.  

Council actively works with Police and the Safer Papakura 
Trust to identify and monitor hotspots.  Once a hotspot is 

identified Council work with Police around intervention 
strategies. 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

 93

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

4 month - 100% Not Achieved 
– 50% 

The target for this measure was incorrectly stated in the 
Annual Plan 2009/10 as 100% is the annual target rather 

than the 4 month target. 

Based on past results and an annual target of 100%, the 4 
month target is approximately 55%. 

12 month - 95% Achieved – 
99.4% Percentage of retail food premises graded above B or equivalent New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - 96% Achieved – 
99.4% 

There were 178 food premise licences issued in 2009/10.  
168 received A grading, 9 received a B grading and 1 

received a D grading. These figures remained static for the 4 
month period. 

12 month - 95% Achieved – 
100% Percentage of urgent noise control complaints outside of office 

hours within 60 minutes 100% 100% 
4 month - 95% Achieved – 

100% 

Performance has continued to meet required timeframes 
even though there was an increase of 23.5% in after-hours 
noise complaints compared to the period to 30 June 2009. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% Percentage of retailers that comply with Graffiti Act 2008 New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Compliance with the Graffiti Act means that retailers have not 
objected to or obstructed graffiti removal by Council 

contractors, Safer Papakura Trust 

12 month - 95% Achieved – 
100% Percentage of urgent animal control complaints responded to 

within one hour 
New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - 95% Achieved – 
95% 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% Percentage of non-urgent animal control complaints responded to 

within 90 minutes 
New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Council’s contractor for this service, Animal Control Services 
(ACS), monitors and responds to animal complaints.   

There were 573 dogs impounded during 2009/10 and 258 
euthanized. , a significant reduction from figures in 

2006/07where 849 were impounded and 380 euthanized. 

12 month - 90% Achieved – 
91% 

There are 4,234 known dogs in the District of which 3,853 
were registered in 2009/10. 

Percentage of known dogs that are registered New 
Measure 

New 
Measure 

4 month - 95% Achieved – 
98% 

Work continued over the 4 months to identify, contact and 
ensure all known dogs were registered. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% Town centre parking is patrolled 8 hours daily Monday - Friday 

within the period 8am - 6pm, and 4 hours on Saturday within the 
period of 9am - 3pm 

New 
Measure 

New 
Measure 4 month - 100% Achieved – 

100% 

The parking activity is managed through meetings with the 
contractor Animal Control Services (ACS) Ltd and patrols are 
organised on a rostered basis to ensure effective coverage. 

Parking outside each school is patrolled at least once every 2 
weeks 

New 
Measure 

New 
Measure 12 month - 100% Achieved – 

100% 
Achieved. Patrols are organised on a rostered basis by 
Council’s contractor ACS to ensure this performance is 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

achieved. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% Areas outside the Town Centre are patrolled, including weekly 

night truck patrols for at least 10 hours per week 
New 

Measure 
New 

Measure 4 month - 100% Achieved – 
100% 

Achieved. Patrols are organised on a rostered basis by 
Council’s contractor ACS to ensure performance is achieved. 
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REGULATORY SERVICES 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    

      
672,425  Animal Control  864,621 915,891 

1,623,997  Building Control  2,216,154 2,126,503 
447,230  Environmental Health, Liquor, Dangerous Goods  606,934 665,755 
450,463  Parking Control  574,448 469,212 

1,964,911  Resource Consents and Monitoring  (1.)  2,839,804 2,533,675 
      
         

5,159,026  Total Activity Expenditure  7,101,961 6,711,036 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

1,470,506  Rates  634,404 1,439,532 
3,688,520  Fees and Charges  (2.)  6,467,557 5,271,504 

      
         

5,159,026  Total Funding  7,101,961 6,711,036 
         
      

 

 
EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

1. Resource Consents and Monitoring 

Additional costs were incurred implementing Resource Management Act changes and process improvements arising 

from key customer feedback to the development review process. 

2. Fees and Charges 

Additional fees were received due to partial recovery from customers of the additional costs referred to above and as a 

result of annual licence revenue for the 2010/11 year being paid in full within the period covered by this Annual Report.   

.
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REGULATORY SERVICES 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

0  Dog Pound Expansion  (3.)  0 100,000 
1,015  Other Capital Expenditure  0 0 

      
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  18,800 18,800 

      
         

1,015  Total Capital Expenditure  18,800 118,800 
         
      
      

  Funded by    
      

1,015  Rates Revenue  18,800 18,800 
0  Loans Raised  (3.)  0 100,000 

      
         

1,015  Total Funding  18,800 118,800 
         
         

 

EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

3. Dog Pound Expansion 

The dog pound is a joint facility shared with Manukau City Council.  This project was not proceeded with due to 

impending amalgamation of the Councils into the new Auckland Council. 
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Waste Management and Minimisation  

 

What we do 

The Waste Management and Minimisation activity comprises waste minimisation projects, waste services and closed landfills.  

Waste minimisation projects are outlined in the Waste Management Plan. This involves application of the waste management hierarchy to all 
commercial and Council waste collections in the District. Organic, paper and construction/demolition wastes are priority waste types for 
minimisation projects.  

Council outsources its solid waste collection contracts including collection and disposal of refuse bags, recycling, inorganic refuse, illegal 
dumping, litter from bins, loose litter and abandoned vehicles. 

Council manages all four of the Council owned closed landfills. 

 

Why we do it 

Solid waste collection and ensuring safe disposal is a longstanding activity of urban councils and a necessary activity to ensure public health. 
These activities therefore respond to both legislation and community expectations.   

While the Council has some legal obligations regarding waste minimisation, the level of activities undertaken such as recycling are more 
discretionary, but the current levels reflect the Papakura community’s expectations.  

These activities contribute to the following Community Outcomes: 

• People take collective responsibility for our natural environment; 

• our physical environments enhance personal safety; 

• there is minimal graffiti and littering in the District. 

 

Negative effects 

The following are potential negative effects of this activity: 

Environmental 

Council contracts result in 8,000 tonnes of waste being landfilled with a further 4,000 tonnes recycled. About 80 per cent of waste to landfill could 
be diverted to reuse, recycling or recovery. Once in a landfill, leachate and greenhouse gasses are generated as a result of organic and liquid 
materials in waste.  

Economic 

Papakura District residents and businesses spend an estimated $7.9m per annum on solid waste disposal. $5.8m of this is for collection and 
disposal of commercial waste outside the control of Council. Council spends a further $1.9m on its own collections and $170,000 on landfill after-
care costs per annum.  

Social and cultural 

Tangata Whenua and many other residents are offended to have landfills occupying sites of former natural beauty and significance. Two of the four 
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Council closed landfills occupy former tributaries of the Pahurehure Inlet.  

 

Service levels  

Levels of service for waste services are: 

• Council will provide weekly collection of rubbish in official rubbish bags  

• licensed operators will provide weekly collection of private household rubbish 

• recycling will be collected weekly 

• litter from bins in parks will be collected weekly or more as necessary 

• litter from bins on roads will be collected daily or more as necessary 

• loose litter, urban - weekly 

• loose litter, rural - monthly 

• illegal dumpings of a type that does not cause sanitary concern will be collected within a week of the dumping being reported to Council 

• illegal dumping sanitary concern- 24 hours 

• abandoned vehicles will be collected as per the requirements of the Abandoned Vehicles Act, meaning vehicles are usually disposed of within 
three to seven days  

• inorganic rubbish will be disposed of in an annual collection. 

Waste management services are largely funded through user pays as residents must purchase either official refuse bags or contract for services 
with a licensed operator.  Recycling costs are part funded by the new waste minimisation levy imposed on all waste to landfills.  All other costs of 
this activity are rates funded.  

 

Performance to Service levels 

Service levels within this activity are presented slightly differently to other activity areas, however all levels are met as part of one of three Contracts 
with Waste Management Ltd (Refuse, Loose litter, Inorganic collection) and/or StreetSmart Ltd (Recycling).  Further information is presented in the 
table below. 
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Overview 

Key Contract Service Levels met or exceeded – The Refuse and Litter Service Contract, Recycling Contract and Refuse Bag Manufacture and 
Distribution Contract met and/or exceeded the contracted performance indicators for the period.  Performance indicators for these contracts include 
a variety of measures and checks to ensure a high quality of service delivery within the relevant area.  The specific measures in the table on the 
following page provide statistics that focus on the key aspects for these areas.  Regular meetings are held with the Contractors to monitor and 
discuss their performance; 

Inorganic Collection – the 2010 inorganic collection commenced on 26th July 2010 and was completed on 28th August 2010.  Comparisons on 
past collections are tabled below: 

Year 2008 2009 2010 

Tonnage 1,394 1,091 1,262 

 

Recycling Collection Volume Decrease – An overall decrease in the amount of waste to landfill has resulted in a lower percentage of household 
recycling waste diverted from landfill than previous years.  The decline in recycling is due to in large part to the recession, since most alcohol (glass 
recycling) is a luxury item, also less pages in the Papakura Courier, less junk mail delivered etc to lower paper tonnage. 

Refuse Collection Volume Decrease – From 2007/08 to 2008/09 Papakura District Waste tonnages increased by 2.4%, however as stated above, 
there was an overall decrease in the amount of waste to landfill from 2008/09 to 2010/11 of approximately 0.5%. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

Response to missed rubbish or recycling collections Not Achieved 100% 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

100% of missed rubbish or recycling was 
collected within 24 hours of notification.  

Council contractors return to the property 
concerned to complete the rubbish collection.  

Council’s performance in this area was again 
very high – consistent with performance in 

2008/09. 

StreetSmart are the service providers for 
recycling and Waste Management Ltd collect 

the rubbish and other refuse on a weekly basis.   

12 month - Increase Not Achieved – 
-7% 

Household recycling waste diverted from landfill New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Increase Not Achieved –  
-13% 

An overall decrease in the amount of waste to 
landfill has resulted in a lower percentage of 

household recycling waste diverted from landfill 
than previous years.   

(Raw Tonnage Jul 09 – Jun 10 4,112 tons; Jul 
08 – Jun 09 4,393 tons). 

Decline in recycling is likely to be due to in part 
to the recession, since most alcohol (glass 

recycling) is a luxury item, also less pages in 
the Papakura Courier, less junk mail delivered 

etc to lower paper tonnage. 

12 month - 17 Achieved – 18 

An additional school signed onto the waste 
minimisation programmes during this period, 
which includes teaching children on recycling 

and composting. Number of schools participating in waste minimisation 
programmes 17 16 

4 month - Maintain or 
Increase Achieved – 18 

All 18 schools maintained their registered status 
during this period. 

12 month - 90% Not Achieved – 
87% Percentage of residents satisfied with the Inorganic 

collection New Measure New Measure 
4 month - Measured 

Annually 
Measured 
Annually 

A new question was added to the 2010 
Residents Survey to identify satisfaction levels 

with the Inorganic Collection.   

The survey result was reasonably consistent 
with expectations. 
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12 month - Achieved Achieved 
Council closed landfills are managed according to 

consent conditions Achieved Achieved 
4 month - Achieved Achieved 

There are four closed landfills in the District at 
Hunua Gorge, Piggots, Waimana and Elliot 
Street.  Council completed the maintenance 

and monitoring of all closed landfills within the 
Papakura District according to consent 

conditions. 
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WASTE MANAGEMENT AND MINIMISATION 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

669,645  Administration and Overheads (1.)  912,963 683,951 
297,510  Annual Inorganic Collection  536,609 627,268 
407,582  Household Recycling Collection (2.)  550,119 663,029 
661,047  Household Refuse Collection (2.)  901,031 1,045,453 
351,404  Landfill Aftercare (3.)  140,942 400,962 
435,004  Litter and Illegal Dumping Collection  792,675 831,203 

      
         

2,822,192  Total Activity Expenditure  3,834,339 4,251,866 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

2,000,122  Rates Revenue  2,489,710 2,680,299 
822,070  Fees and Charges (2.)  1,344,629 1,571,567 

      
         

2,822,192  Total Funding  3,834,339 4,251,866 
         
         

 
EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

 
1.  Administration and Overheads 

The increase is the result of an increase in overhead charges allocated to this activity.  These charges included costs 

incurred relating to the establishment of Auckland Council, none of which were budgeted for.  These included 

redundancy and termination payments to staff and costs of providing staff time and information required by the Auckland 

Transition Agency. 

2. Household Recycling collection/Household Refuse Collection/Fees and Charges 

Revenue was below budget as a result of decreasing volumes of household rubbish collected and therefore a reduction 

in rubbish bag sales. 

3. Landfill Aftercare 

The budget provided for a one off adjustment in anticipated future landfill monitoring costs.  These costs were however 

accounted for in the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2009 and therefore costs for this 16 month period are now 

less than anticipated. 
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WASTE MANAGEMENT AND MINIMISATION 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual               Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

4,800  Litter Bin Replacement (4.)  9,274 43,167 
      

7,754  Internal Loan Principal Repayments  0 0 
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  40,300 40,300 

      
         

12,554  Total Capital Expenditure  49,574 83,467 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

7,754  Rates Revenue  40,300 58,967 
4,800  Loans Raised  9,274 24,500 

      
         

12,554  Total Funding  49,574 83,467 
         
         

 
EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 
 
4.  Litter Bin Replacement 
 
A change to the style of litter bins in the District has resulted in a reduced need for replacements from that originally 

anticipated in the budget. 
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Water Supply and Wastewater Monitoring 
 

What Council does 

Council does not operate a water supply or a sewerage reticulation and disposal system.  Council’s role is limited to one of monitoring delivery of 
services to the consumers by United Water International (UWI) and coordination with other services and infrastructure.   

Operation of the franchise agreement is primarily monitored by undertaking an annual review of UWI’s compliance with their key contractual 
obligations and five-yearly reviews of the condition of the assets.  

The water and wastewater network assets (namely the pipes, pumps and associated equipment) remain in public ownership. 

 

What United Water does  

Water and wastewater services to the District’s consumers are delivered by way of a commercial contract: the Papakura District Water and 
Wastewater Franchise Agreement.   

Under this contract UWI is responsible for all aspects of delivering these services within the District (including administration and billing).  

The contract was signed in 1997 and has a term of 30 years with provision for renewal for a further 20 years.   

The agreed objectives of the franchise are to: (abridged) 

“…maximise the benefits accruing to the customers of the supplier 

consistent with a fair commercial return to the supplier and the resumption 

of possession of the infrastructural assets by PDC at the end of the term 

in an overall condition better than the initial condition…” 

“…exercising its commercial judgement act as a good steward of the 

infrastructural assets…for the benefit of the ratepayers of Papakura 

District”. 

 

Why we do it 

The provision of water and wastewater services supports Council’s responsibilities in the social, economic and environmental well-beings. 

As these consumer services have been “outsourced”, Council’s monitoring role is designed to ensure that the UWI delivers the necessary services 
and manages the assets appropriately.   

This directly supports the Community Outcomes particularly with respect to:  

• a well-planned built environment,  

• promoting healthy lifestyles, and  

• ensuring the District’s infrastructure is sustainable and caters for the community’s needs. 
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Negative effects  

The provision of potable water to residents may have a negative impact on the environment through the depletion of water resources.  The impact 
of the disposal of wastewater from the urban population may have an impact on the quality of water in the Manukau Harbour with a subsequent 
impact on marine life.  

While the water and wastewater services may generate some negative effects, Council’s role in monitoring delivery of these services is not 
considered to have a negative effect.   

It is considered that the absence of this activity would have a negative impact on community well-being. 

 

Demand management 

Increase in household demand for water and wastewater services is proportional to population growth and changes in water consumption patterns 
and can be measured directly as the services are charged on a volumetric user pays basis. Commercial and industrial demand can be correlated to 
actual and planned land use. 

The monitoring and management function is essentially fixed as it is predetermined by Council’s contractual and legal obligations and does not vary 
with demand for the underlying services. 

The franchise holder is responsible for all maintenance, renewals and replacement costs which are funded by the franchise holder from income 
received from user charges or retained earnings. 

 

Service levels  

Water services 

The service level to the consumer is determined by the contractual relationship between UWI and the account holder. The franchise agreement 
focuses on the following high level measures: 

1. Pricing tariff will not exceed the regional average 

2. water will be provided to every household in the reticulated area at the Aa standard 

3. assets will be returned to Council in an overall condition better than at the start of the franchise 

4. UWI, as the service provider, has developed a customer charter which sets out their service targets as follows: 

• Quality of drinking water is maintained with respect to taste, odour and colour  

• planned interruptions to supply will be notified at least three days in advance 

• unplanned interruptions to supply will be restored within three hours 

• flow greater than 12 litres per minute and static pressure greater than 200 kPa to all new connections. 

Wastewater services 

Council is not the provider of the wastewater service but it sets the service standard that the supplier must meet: a wastewater service must be 
provided to all households in the urban area. 

UWI’s service level targets as expressed in their customer charter are: 

1. Overflows or blockages in the public wastewater main will be responded to within one hour 

2. restoration of service within three hours where possible 
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Performance to Service levels 

Water services 

1. The pricing tariff for water services within the Papakura area did not exceed the regional average for the scope of this report.  Further 
information is reported in the table below. 

2. Water is provided to every household in the reticulated area at the Aa standard as set out in the Service level above. 

3. Assets will be returned to Council at the ceasing of the franchise agreement.  The contract was signed in 1997 and has a term of 30 years 
with provision for renewal for a further 20 years. 

4. To Council's knowledge this Service level has been met by the service provider UWI. 

Wastewater services 

1. To Council's knowledge this Service level has been met by the service provider UWI. 

2. Only 77% of burst and leak events were resolved within three hours.  This result however is partly to be expected as in some cases significant 
remedial work may be required to resolve an issue (e.g. earthworks) while at times identification of the cause of the burst and leak event may 
require significant investigation. 

 

Overview 

Disestablishment of the Drury Wastewater Treatment facility to enter in to an agreement with Watercare Services Limited (WSL) to provide 
wastewater treatment services for the Hingaia peninsula.  This has been met by the way of a regional pump station and connections to the trunk 
sewers that go to the regional treatment facility at Mangere.  The land the Drury Wastewater Treatment was situated on has now been fully 
reinstated to its original condition and onsold to WSL; 

Funding Growth Related Infrastructure – an agreement has been established between Council and UWI for the funding of growth related 
infrastructure through the mechanism of Developer Contributions; 

Managed expansion of the network for the Hingaia area – The water supply and wastewater network was expanded to service the new Hingaia 
subdivision area; 

Strategic review of wastewater services – the development of strategic information enables improved future service delivery by allowing the 
provider (in this case a mix of United Water and Watercare Services Ltd) to focus resources on areas that will achieve the best results and allow 
better informed planning processes. 

 

UWI takes part in the Auckland Water Industry Annual Performance Review on a voluntary basis.  This report includes a range of performance 

measures of both UWI’s individual performance and UWI’s performance shown as a comparison with other Auckland Region operators.  This 

report, which acts as a type of public accountability mechanism, may be accessed via Council’s website or the UWI website. 

 

Watercare Services Limited 

In future this activity will be undertaken by the Watercare Services Limited CCO as part of the Auckland Council.   

While it is expected the Service levels will continue to be maintained and consolidated into the new organisation, some interactions between 
agencies (such as United Water International  (UWI) mentioned above) will no longer be relevant as all Water and Wastewater related issues will 
be directly administered by Watercare Services Limited. 
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Activity Measures 
 
Water Supply 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - Achieved Achieved Annual Monitoring report for Water and Wastewater 
Franchise agreement is produced for Council within 

three months of receiving the Auckland Water 
Industry Annual Performance Report' 

Not Achieved Achieved 
4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Contract monitoring is undertaken in March 
and with a report to Council presented in 

May each year. † 

12 month - Achieved Achieved 
United Water (UWI) Tariffs do not exceed Auckland 

Water Supply Average Price (AWSAP) Achieved Achieved 
4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

United Water tariffs did not exceed the 
AWSAP, with the average being $1.48 and 
United Water tariff being $1.47, meaning 
residents’ water was cheaper than some 

Councils in the Auckland region and higher 
than others.  

12 month - Aa Standard Achieved – Aa Standard 

National drinking water quality standards Aa Standard Aa Standard 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

The results of this measure mean that the 
highest standards of water quality have 

been achieved.   

United Water reports the performance 
against the standards and there is only one 

supply and reticulation system within 
Papakura. 

12 month - 100% Not Achieved – 91% 

Percentage of burst and leak events attended within 
one hour New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Based on first six months as UWI changed 
recording methodology.   

Previously the data collected was for both 
water and wastewater, and now these have 

been reported separately.   

 

12 month - 90% Not Achieved – 77% 

Percentage of burst and leak events resolved within 
three hours New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

UWI’s NZ customer feedback register 
showed no complaints relating to response 

times. 

The monitoring report received in 2010 for 1 
January to 30 June 2009,showed 

attendance within 2 hours was as follows; 

water bursts 93% 

water leaks 72% 

no water instances 97% 
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Wastewater 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month -  Achieved Achieved Annual Monitoring report for Water and Wastewater 
Franchise agreement is produced for Council within 

three months of receiving the Auckland Water 
Industry Annual Performance Report' 

Not Achieved Achieved 

4 month -  Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Contract monitoring is undertaken in March 
and with a report to Council presented in 

May each year. † 

12 month -  Achieved Achieved United Water Tariffs do not exceed Auckland 
Wastewater Disposal Average Price (AWDAP) 

Achieved Achieved 

4 month -  Measured Annually Measured Annually 

United Water’s wastewater charge was 14% 
below the AWDAP of $2.95per kL  UWI’s 

charge was $2.535 per kL 

12 month -  Achieved Not Applicable this year Five yearly review of Condition rating undertaken, 
peer reviewed and reported to Council within three 

months of date of each five year anniversary 

New Measure New Measure 

4 month -  Measured Annually Measured Annually 

The five year anniversary for this report will 
fall after 31 October 2010 and will be 

undertaken by Auckland Council. 

12 month -  Notified incidents less 
than 60 per annum 

Achieved – 55 Number of wastewater system overflow events New Measure New Measure 

4 month -  Notified incidents less 
than 20 

Achieved – 16 

This measure was adopted as part of the 
LTCCP 2009-19 to provide an indicator on 
the performance of the wastewater system 

within Papakura. 

The target for both periods has been met. 

Wastewater from the Papakura district is 
treated at the Watercare Services regional 

facility in Mangere.  The company continues 
to meet strict discharge consent conditions 
and the ultraviolet (UV) disinfection facility 
ensures that the area of harbour close to 
the discharge is safe for recreational use. 

More information regarding this can be 
obtained from www.watercare.co.nz. 

United Water Monitoring Report (March 2010 extract) 
† The latest monitoring report (March 2010) concluded: 

1. United Water (UWI) continues to be compliant with its obligations under the franchise agreement. 

2. Customer charges by UWI are in compliance with the provisions of the franchise agreement.  There were minor under-recoveries of water supply charges and bulk wastewater charges but these were within acceptable boundarieis and will be 
adjusted in subsequent years charges.  The requirement to not exceed the Auckland Water Supply Average Price (AWSAP) and the Auckland Water Disposal Average Price (ASDAP) has been met, although past discussions between UWI and 
Council on how the prompt payment discount for Metrowater consumers and other analogous matters may affect the calculation of AWSAP/AWDAP.  Customer invoicing by UWI is compliant in terms of disclosure and frequency. 

3. Appropriate solvency and insurance declarations were obtained by UW. 

4. Appropriate records and information are being kept by UWI on infrastructure charges.  For future periods UWI have been asked to provide reconciliations between infrastructure charge accounting records and engineering records. 
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5. Industry comparisons related to the levels of service being provided by UWI to its customers compared to the average for the Auckland region (as generally reported in the Auckland Water Industry Annual Performance Reviews) was not part of 
the monitoring contract this year.  Additionally, a 2008/09 Auckland Water Industry Annual Performance Review has not been produced this year due to Council amalgamations. 

6. Obligations under Schedule III (funding arrangement in respect of future growth-related capital), which have been discussed with UWI over previous years, appear to have been complied with.  UWI provided an updated Asset Management Plan, 
dated November 2009.  The perusal of this document showed that the coverage of the AMP is consistent with the criteria outlined in the International Infrastructure Management Manual and would therefore appear to be consistent with the 
Summary of Obligations that were outlined for Schedule III. 
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WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER MONITORING 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    

      
206,763  Franchise Management and Monitoring   146,510 150,581 

1,980,983  Depreciation  2,665,667 2,662,898 
      
         

2,187,746  Total Activity Expenditure  2,812,177 2,813,479 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

(53,237)  Rates Revenue  146,509 150,581 
260,000  Deferred Revenue Franchise Fee  346,667 346,666 

0  Gain on Sale of Property (1.)  666,899 0 
0  Transfer to Reserves (1.)  (666,899) 0 
0  Transfer within Equity  (346,666) (346,666) 

      
         

206,763  Total Funding  146,510 150,581 
         
      

1,980,983  Plus Non-funded Depreciation (2.)  2,665,667 2,662,898 
      
         

2,187,746    2,812,177 2,813,479 
         
       

 

EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

1. Gain on Sale of Property/Transfer to Reserves 

The gain on sale of the Drury Pump Station was transferred to reserves and used to offset accumulated past costs on 

remediation of the land, and to fund general property loan repayments. 

2. Non-funded Depreciation 

Non-funded depreciation is depreciation on the assets managed by United Water International Pty Ltd under a franchise 

agreement with Council.  Council policy is to not fund this depreciation as the franchise agreement requires the holder to 

return the assets to Council at the end of the franchise period in a better condition than at the beginning of the contract.   
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UNITED WATER INTERNATIONAL LTD 

GROWTH AND RELATED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual               Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

815,912  Capital Projects undertaken by Franchisee (3.)  3,095,920 510,518 
      

0  Internal Loan Principal Repayments  0 0 
      
         

815,912  Total Capital Expenditure  3,095,920 510,518 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

0  Rates Revenue  0 0 
815,912  UWI funding under Franchise Agreement (3.)  3,095,920 1,883,154 

0  Loans Raised  0 0 
      
         

815,912  Total Funding  3,095,920 1,883,154 
         
      

 

 

This capital works programme is attributable to the services provided by United Water International Pty Ltd (UWI) and is 

mainly related to the growth related capital requirements.  As the Water and Wastewater service provision activities are 

provided by UWI they are responsible for setting capital expenditure budgets and funding all operational and capital 

expenditure incurred in the provision of water and wastewater services in the District, including any annual shortfalls.  

There is no impact on Council's funding requirements for any costs incurred for the provision of these services.  Council’s 

only costs are incurred in monitoring UWI’s adherence to the franchise agreement’s conditions and are shown on the 

previous page. 

 

EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

3. Capital Projects undertaken by Franchisee, Capital Project funding under Franchise Agreement 

Capital projects undertaken for water and wastewater infrastructure assets are funded by United Water International 

Limited or by Development Contributions received by the franchisee on Council's behalf.  The rate of development is 

therefore under the control of external parties and Council has no control over their progression.  
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Stormwater 
 

What we do 

The Stormwater activity provides a network of pipes and open channels to convey stormwater to the Manukau Harbour while managing flooding 
risks associated with extreme rainfalls. It maintains and improves water quality in receiving waters by installing and operating water quality 
improvement facilities such as ponds and rain gardens within the stormwater network. 

In addition to management of the stormwater infrastructure, Council delivers community education programmes to communicate the importance of 
water and the water-related environment. 

 

Why we do it 

Effective management of the District stormwater infrastructure enables the Council to manage risks to property and people from flooding and 
improve the quality of stormwater entering our streams and harbour.   

The Community Outcomes to which this activity contributes are: 

• our physical environments enhance personal safety 

• the District’s infrastructure is sustainable and caters for the community’s diverse needs and activities. 

 

Negative effects 

The activity may negatively impact on development freedom by restricting land use in order to achieve flood protection standards and provide water 
quality improvement or sustainability.  

It largely exists to manage activities that may generate negative environmental effects from the piping of waterways or creation of stormwater 
ponds. 

 

Service levels  

1. The Council will ensure that all primary piped systems installed in the urban area (both private and public) meet the 1 in 5 year storm design 
standard 

2. Open channels and overland flow-paths, bridge structures and culverts will meet the 1 in 100 year storm design standard.  Open channels will 
be inspected and maintained on a bi-monthly programme 

3. Urgent service requests about flooding will be attended within 24 hours. 
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Performance to Service levels 

1. This Service level is met for all new Infrastructure installed.  Existing infrastructure that does not meet the current standards (but met the 
standards applicable at the time of installation) is being identified and upgraded over time as outlined in the asset management plan. 

2. This Service level is met for all new Infrastructure installed.  Existing infrastructure that does not meet the current standards (but met the 
standards applicable at the time of installation) is being identified and upgraded over time as outlined in the asset management plan.  
Inspections were carried out as per the Service level (more information provided in the table below). 

3. All urgent service requests for stormwater problems were attended to within 24 hours.  More information on this Service level is provided in 
the table below. 

 

Overview 

Integrated Catchment Management Plan (ICMP) – Five ICMP areas were identified for Papakura District, including Pahurehure Inlet North, 
Central Papakura, Hingaia South, Slippery Creek and Hingaia Stream.  All five ICMP area reports have been completed by adopting a multi-
disciplinary approach involving engineers, modellers, district planners, asset managers, ecologists, stream specialists, iwi, local residents and other 
interested parties.  Once completed, each ICMP provides a blue print for managing stormwater in relation to land use, growth development, flood 
hazard, water quality, stream quality, receiving environment quality and stormwater networks on a stormwater catchment basis. 

Renewals and Maintenance – Significant work has gone into surveying the condition of the existing network.  Renewal work has been prioritised 
and additional funding was tagged for the open channel part of the network allowing additional work to be undertaken in this area from 1 July 2010; 

Self-closing manhole covers – high risk manhole covers (those that may be dislodged during major storm events) have been identified from 
ICMP modelling.  These have been prioritised for preventative action which includes the installation of innovative self closing (entry/exit manhole) 
cover which will help mitigate potential health and safety risks associated with dislodged manhole covers.  Trials of these covers were commenced 
during the 16 month period; 

Deferral of Capital Projects – Key projects such as the Croskery catchment stormwater management, Elliot Street catchment management and 
Takanini North catchment management are dependent on the timing of development projects undertaken within the District by independent 
developers.   As such, the timing of these projects is outside the control of Council.  As the pace of development has slowed due to the present 
economic downturn, these projects will be carried forward with the Auckland Council into future years. 

Network Upgrades and Renewals – Networks upgrades and renewals were slightly less than budgeted due to a number of projects having 
completed preliminary design and the reports are currently under review.   Auckland Council will assess and reprioritise work programmes for 
stormwater on a regional basis with Papakura’s programme amalgamated into it. 

 

Other Key Highlights 

• Town Centre upgrade; 

• Takanini Gobi Block replacement; 

• Hingaia and Porchester Road upgrades; 

• Network upgrade/extension – for Settlement Rd, Nelson St, 
Onslow Rd, Arimu Rd, Callis Ave, Alf Walker Pl, Cross St and 
the Takanini Straight; 

• Drury Triangle stormwater pond and associated network 
completion. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - Achieved Achieved 

Development of integrated catchment management plan (ICMP) for 
the stormwater serviced area and growth areas completed by 2010 In Progress On Target 

4 month - Measured Annually Achieved 

An ICMP for the stormwater serviced 
area and growth areas were signed 
off during the 2009/10 period in line 

with expectations.   

Council expects this work will provide 
a strong tool for future stormwater 

improvements. 

12 month - 95% Achieved – 100% 
Percentage of service requests for stormwater problems attended 

within three days 94% 95% 
4 month - 95% Achieved – 100% 

There has been a continual 
improvement on Council’s past 

performance in this area.  During this 
period all service requests for 

stormwater problems were attended 
within three days. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% Percentage of urgent service requests for stormwater problems 
attended within 24 hours New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

All urgent service requests for 
stormwater problems were attended 

to within 24 hours. 

Number of recorded instances of road flood hazards within the 
stormwater serviced area (in storm events up to the 5 year storm 

event) due to network inadequacy 
New Measure New Measure 12 month - New Measure Achieved – Nil 

There were no instances of road 
flood hazards as a result of network 

inadequacy recorded during this 
period.   

Council progressively identifies where 
larger pipes are needed or where 

stormwater treatment ponds are more 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

4 month - Reduce by 2% Achieved – Nil  

appropriate.   

There has been particular focus on 
greenfield development in Hingaia 
and Takanini which necessitate the 

construction of new stormwater 
disposal systems and developers in 

these areas have built new 
stormwater disposal systems to cope 

with the expected growth and to 
reduce the effects of increased 

runoff.  

12 month - New Measure 825 

Number of habitable floors predicted to flood in the storm events 
up to the 100 year storm event New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Reduce by 2% Not Measured  

This measure relates to the number 
of building floors that would withstand 
a 100year storm event and support 

the Council’s civil defence emergency 
management planning.   

It is based on the current study 
'Maximum Probable Development 

(MPD) scenario. 

This measure is calculated annually. 

12 month - Increase by 1% 
Achieved – 39.87% 
(31.51% baseline at 

1 July 2009) 
Percentage of urban serviced catchment areas with water quality 

devices implemented New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

GHD has been engaged to produce a 
comprehensive operations and 
maintenance manual for public 

stormwater quality devices which will 
assist with the contract specification 

and monitoring. In August 2010 a 
survey programme of existing assets 
was underway to capture accurate 
“as built” data.  The report has not 

yet been released. 

12 month - 21km/2months Achieved 
Inspection and maintenance of selected open channels bi-monthly New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 21km/2months Achieved 

Every two months over 21kms of 
stormwater piping was inspected and 

any necessary maintenance work 
carried out.  An average of 28.72km 
of pipeline was inspected bi-monthly. 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Comment 

12 month - 5 Achieved – 5 

Number of groups participating in the Waicare initiative New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 5 Achieved – 5 

The Waicare initiative includes 
monitoring water quality, education 

and action programmes for 
communities and schools.   

An activity example undertaken was 
Papakura Normal School’s middle 

and senior environment groups have 
been conducting weekly water quality 
monitoring sessions at their adopted 

site, Old Wairoa Stream. 
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STORMWATER 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

820,828  Administration and Overheads (1.)  1,227,958 1,000,409 
0  Asset Information Systems (2.)  23,932 223,334 

1,854,198  Depreciation  2,577,106 2,505,333 
768,552  Interest (3.)  569,025 750,000 

  Monitoring  78,233 118,333 
841,508  Forward Planning Projects  2,019 51,666 
576,277  Operations and Maintenance  874,974 860,800 

      
         

4,861,363  Total Activity Expenditure  5,353,247 5,509,875 
         
      
  Funded by    
      

3,602,139  Rates Revenue  4,902,905 4,779,209 
0  Fees and Charges  0 53,333 

233,322  Subsidy (4.)  6,342 233,333 
192,000  Depreciation  444,000 444,000 
476,727  Loans Raised  0 0 

      
         

4,504,188  Total Funding  5,353,247 5,509,875 
      
      

357,175  Plus Non-funded Depreciation  0 0 
      
         

4,861,363    5,353,247 5,509,875 
         
      

 
EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

1. Administration and Overheads 

The increase is the result of an increase in overhead charges allocated to this activity.  These charges included 

redundancy/termination payments and benefits not budgeted, and unbudgeted Auckland Council establishment costs. 

2. Asset Information Systems 

The proposed expenditure on asset information systems was not proceeded with due to impending amalgamation into 

the new Auckland Council. 

3. Interest 

Interest expense is less than budget due to the deferral of some capital works projects and therefore a reduced level of 

borrowing for the stormwater activity. 

4. Subsidy 

The budget provided for a subsidy to be received from Auckland Regional Council.  The subsidy did not eventuate. 
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STORMWATER 
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

0  Alfriston Catchment Management  61,956 283,333 
0  Ardmore Catchment Management  25,000 25,000 

2,925  Arimu Road Stormwater Upgrade  0 0 
0  Asset Management and Forward Works Planning  47,596 180,000 

39,062  Chichester Road Pipework (5.)  133,800 0 
0  Croskery Catchment Management (6.)  87,999 1,051,667 
0  Drury Catchment Management  0 130,000 

5,003  Drury Triangle  0 0 
65,992  East Street Stormwater Upgrade  0 0 

0  Elliot Street Catchment Management (6.)  231,104 1,766,667 
11,520  GIS Data Capture and Validation  16,963 0 

573,343  Hingaia North Catchment Land and Structures  0 0 
0  Hingaia Stream Catchment Management  69,905 340,000 
0  Integrated Catchment Management Plans  600,396 500,000 

3,128  Kelvin Road Upgrade  0 0 
145,725  Manhole Upgrades  0 0 

7,325  Marne Road Stormwater Upgrade  0 0 
0  Network Renewals (7.)  802,162 1,152,000 

257,247  Network Upgrades (7.)  633,628 826,667 
64,010  Old Wairoa Road Catchment Management  344,632 343,000 

0  Pahurehure Inlet Catchment Management  0 82,500 
768,971  Pipeline Renewals  0 0 

0  Porchester Catchment Management  0 16,667 
11,833  Preliminary Scoping Design (for future works)  66,380 100,000 
7,665  Rain Gauges  0 5,000 

0  Remaining Papakura Management  0 93,333 
57,973  Risk Management/Critical Assets  254,744 0 

0  Slippery Creek Catchment Management (8.)  2,011,251 118,333 
32,785  Takanini North Catchment Management (6.)  93,769 2,107,333 
18,191  Takanini South Sub-catchment Network  0 0 
43,726  Waimana Reserve-Takanini Road Trunk Line  0 0 

0  Waterview/Arimu Pipe Upgrade (9.)  135,264 500,000 
      

112,800  Term Liabilities Repaid  0 0 
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  370,000 370,000 

      
         

2,229,224  Total Capital Expenditure  5,986,549 9,991,500 
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STORMWATER  

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  
      
      

           Actual               Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      
  Funded by    
      

107,682  Rates Revenue  370,000 350,000 
0  Subsidy  152,629 0 

1,371,000  Depreciation  2,460,537 3,364,000 
407,314  Development Contributions (10.)  2,388,249 2,463,349 
343,228  Loans Raised (11.)  615,134 3,814,151 

      
         

2,229,224  Total Funding  5,986,549 9,991,500 
         
      

 

EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

5. Chichester Road Pipework 

This work was budgeted for in the prior 2008/09 period and completed within the 16 months to 31 October 2010. 

6. Croskery/Elliot St/Takanini North - Catchments Management 

The timing of these projects is dependent on the timing of development projects undertaken within the District by 

independent developers and as such, is outside the control of Council.  As the pace of developments has slowed due to 

the present economic downturn the projects will be carried forward into future years.  

7.  Network Renewals/Upgrades 

Networks upgrades and renewals were slightly less than budgeted due to a number of projects having completed 

preliminary design and the reports are currently under review.   Auckland Council will assess and reprioritise work 

programmes for stormwater on a regional basis with Papakura’s programme amalgamated into it. 

8. Slippery Creek Catchment Management 

This project was provided for but not undertaken in the 2008/09 year.  The budget and associated funding was carried 

forward into 2009/10.  The management plan been completed within the 16 month period. 

9. Waterview/Arimu Pipe Upgrade 

This project was budgeted but not completed in the 16 month period.  It will continue within the Auckland Council work 

schedule. 

10. Development Contributions 

Developments have progressed at a slower rate than provided for in the budget.  These are under the control of external 

parties and thus Council has no control over their progression. 

11. Loans Raised 

The amount of loan funding required was less than budget due to the delay in a number of the capital work projects. 



Papakura District Council 

 120 

Arts and Culture 
 

What we do 

The Arts and Culture activity has two main areas: provision of facilities and services (such as the Sir Edmund Hillary Library and Hawkins Theatre) 
and support for arts, culture and heritage organisations and events. 

 

Why we do it 

The resources of the library service together with the services, facilities, activities and events provided by the arts, cultures and heritage activity 
develop a strong and active arts community and make a positive contribution to the social, cultural and economic well-being of the community 
expressed in the Community Outcomes, particularly: 

• Foster involvement in arts and recreation, by developing and maintaining centres for arts and recreation activities 

• pride in our community and heritage, by contributing to the enjoyment of living, working and visiting the District and celebration and support of 
our cultural heritage. 

 

Negative effects 

While the provision of library services is seen by the majority of the community as a core Council service, other elements of this activity group are 
regarded as more discretionary. The opportunity cost of the discretionary aspects of this activity may be considered to be a negative effect. 

 

Service levels  

1. The library will be open six days a week for between six and a half hours and 11 hours per day providing materials and resources in formats 
and languages appropriate for the local community. 

2. The art gallery will be open six days a week for between four and eight hours per day. 

3. The museum will be open four days a week for between four and five hours per day and during school terms an Education Coordinator is 
available. 

 
Performance to Service levels 
1. This Service level was met by The Sir Edmund Hillary Library located in the Accent Point building at the southern end of the Papakura Town 

Centre, despite renovations and the establishment of a new facility in October 2010. 

2. This Service level was largely met by the Papakura Art Gallery, however during the renovation process the facility had to be temporarily shut 
for a number of months while work was carried out on the building.  Despite disruption to the service, the Papakura Art Gallery still 
experienced an overall increase in patronage for the year (shown in measure number one in the table below). 

3. The Papakura Museum was also temporarily closed as a result of the renovations and establishment of a new facility in October 2010.  In 
similar fashion to the Papakura Art Gallery however, the facility still experienced excellent visitation rates - likely as a result of the improved 
location and quality of the facility in conjunction with a well promoted opening ceremony that attracted a large number of visitors. 
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Overview 

Accent Point (Library and Museum Relocation) – Council concluded an agreement with KCL Ltd to sell interests in the Accent Point facility and 
lease back level three allowing a relocation of the Library and Museum to that level.  An overall upgrade and redevelopment of both the Library and 
Museum facilities were undertaken in conjunction with the relocation.  Relocation/upgrade was completed in October 2010; 

Hawkins Theatre Upgrade –Council considered and approved upgrading the Hawkins Theatre to enable a wider range of productions to be 
programmed at the Theatre.  A subsequent regular asset condition review identified a leaky building problem.  Both the upgrade and repairs were 
undertaken which included the provision of a ticket office and green room, while also providing for new audio/visual equipment to enable the 
showing of movies as part of the regular programme; 

Art Gallery Upgrade – Despite the economic downturn reducing the scale of this project, the Art Gallery was upgraded to include improvements to 
the internal layout of the gallery, health and safety improvements, access improvements, air conditioning and refurbishment.  The upgrade was 
completed in April 2010 and officially opened on 27th May 2010; 

Library – in addition to the Library’s relocation and upgrade (see above), several new initiatives were also implemented, including:  

• partnering with AnyQuestions.co.nz (free online reference service for NZ school students); 

• becoming part of the eLGAR programme and changing to the Millennium Library management system, ultimately allowing the library 
customers access to the same catalogue as other library customers in the region; 

• joining the regional Wriggle and Rhyme – Active Movement for Early Learning  programme; 

• Children’s Summer and Winter Reading Programmes – with more than 100 children per year enrolling in reading programmes to 
encourage children to read and use the library in the school holidays; and 

• First Chapters Nga Wahanga Tuatahi Writer in Libraries – Papakura partnered with Manukau Libraries and the NZ Society of Authors to 
bring authors James George and Deborah Shepard to Papakura. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results 
Measure 

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 
Comment 

12 month - 3,000 Achieved – 4,394 

Number of visitors to the Art Gallery per year New Measure New Measure 
4 month - 1,100 Achieved – 1,430 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.  The target was based on 
estimations at the time based on management's industry experience and may 

therefore need reviewing as further data is collected. 

The Art Gallery has been reopened during the 16 months after extensive 
remodelling, with reported visitor numbers having increased as a result. 

12 month - 75% Achieved – 82% 

Percentage of residents satisfied with the Art 
Gallery service New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 
Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.  The target was based on 
estimations at the time based on management's industry experience and may 

therefore need reviewing as further data is collected.  The survey was 
undertaken late September and early October 2010. 

Satisfaction may have increased as a result of the remodelling of the Art 
Gallery. 

12 month - 3,000 Achieved – 6,763 
Number of visitors to the Papakura and 

Districts Museum New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 1,100 Achieved – 4,661 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.  The target was based on 
estimations at the time based on management's industry experience and may 

therefore need reviewing as further data is collected. 

The museum was part of the Library facility remodelling which opened in 
October 2010 and increased publicity has meant that visitor numbers have 

increased. 

12 month - 75% Achieved – 88% 

Percentage of residents satisfied with the 
Museum service New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 
Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.  The target was based on 
estimations at the time and may therefore need reviewing as further data is 

collected.   

The reported result suggests a high satisfaction level with the Museum service, 
a reflection of the increase in visitor numbers due to the publicity around 

remodelling of the museum and library facility. 

12 month - 34% Achieved – 37% 
Percentage of residents that use the Hawkins 

Theatre 34% 35% 
4 month - 

Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

The upgrading of the Hawkins Theatre was included as part of the LTCCP and 
this project was completed July 2010.  The upgrade has included provision of a 

ticket office, green room and new audio/visual equipment allowing a wider 
range of use for the facility. 

Percentage of residents satisfied with the 
Hawkins Theatre New Measure New Measure 12 month - 

Baseline to 
be set 95% 

This measure was newly established for 2009/10.  The target was based on 
management’s estimations at the time and may therefore need reviewing as 
further data is collected. This question was included in the annual resident 
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Previous Results Target Results 
Measure 

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 
Comment 

4 month - 
Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

views survey undertaken in late September and early October 2010. 

12 month - 50% Not Achieved – 
45.4% 

Although realising an increase of 3.4%, the result fell slightly short of reaching 
the 50% target set.  Active memberships have slowed, possibly as a result of 
renovations to the Library Facilities with the perception the facility was closed 

while renovations were underway.    

The new library, opened in early October 2010 and Auckland Council initiatives 
such as borrowing across the Auckland region, it is expected that the number 

of active members will increase. 

Active library members per population 42% 42% 

4 month - 55% Not Measured 
A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four month period; 

however, the result was only measured for the 12 month period for this report. 

12 month - 74% Achieved – 93% 
Percentage of residents satisfied with the 

library service 82% 84% 
4 month - 

Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

Renovation and upgrade of the Library Facility which was opened in October 
2010 is likely to have resulted in further improvement of resident satisfaction. 

12 month - 2,500 Not Achieved – 
1,930 Number of new library memberships per 

annum New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 835 Not Measured 

New library memberships per annum slowed, possibly as a result of 
renovations to the Library Facilities.  The new library, opened in early October 
2010 and Auckland Council initiatives such as borrowing across the Auckland 

region, it is expected that the number of memberships will increase.   

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four month period; 
however the result was only measured for the 12 month period for this report. 

12 month - 330,000 Not Achieved – 
304,315 

Number of issues per annum New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 82,500 Not Measured 

Number of issues slowed, possibly as a result of renovations to the Library 
Facilities with the perception the facility was closed while renovations were 

underway.  The new library, opened in early October 2010 and with Auckland 
Council initiatives such as borrowing across the Auckland region, it is expected 

that the number of issues wil increase.   

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four month period; 
however, the result was only measured for the 12 month period for this report. 

12 month - 15% Achieved – 15% 
Replacement Ratio New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 
Measured 
Annually 

Measured 
Annually 

The replacement ratio helps assess the frequency that the library stock (e.g. 
books, DVDs, magazines) are refreshed.  During this period, Council replaced 

approximately 15% (approx 12,000 items) of its library stock (approx 
80,000items) – in line with the target set. 
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ARTS AND CULTURE 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

0  Art Gallery (1.)  85,601 47,187 
406,694  Arts and Culture  88,645 66,514 

0  Hawkins Theatre  678,179 719,033 
1,535,711  Library  2,243,680 2,216,615 

10,039  Loss on Disposal of Assets (2.)  49,229 0 
      
         

1,952,444  Total Activity Expenditure  3,145,334 3,049,349 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

1,754,156  Rates Revenue  2,896,356 2,646,577 
198,288  Fees and Charges (3.)  246,432 402,772 

0  Grants  2,546 0 
      
         

1,952,444  Total Funding  3,145,334 3,049,349 
         
      

 
EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIATIONS TO BUDGET 

 
1. Art Gallery 

The increased costs related to contract staff employed at the art gallery.  Costs were offset by savings in other areas of 

the salaries budget.  

2.  Loss on Disposal of Assets 

The loss relates to the book value of library books withdrawn each year.  The library moved to new premises in October 

2010 and as a result of this process a significantly larger number of damaged and older books were identified for 

withdrawal than anticipated in the budget. 

3. Fees and Charges 

Revenue was under budget due to delays in the implementation of the ticketing system at the Hawkins theatre and the 

need to close the theatre while urgent building repairs were undertaken. 
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ARTS AND CULTURE 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
           Actual        Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

16,480  Art Gallery Refurbishment (4.)  323,326 250,000 
10,405  Old Central School  0 0 
84,141  Hawkins Centre Renovation and Fitout (5.)  1,050,797 1,314,167 

193,827  Library Books (6.)  338,963 402,000 
111,001  Library Expansion, System Upgrade and Fittings (7.) 4,692,600 2,043,733 

541  Other Capital Expenditure  541 0 
      

840  Internal Loan Repayments  0 0 
0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  67,400 67,400 

      
         

417,235  Total Capital Expenditure  6,473,627 4,077,300 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

6,144  Rates Revenue  67,400 67,400 
234,200  Depreciation  544,400 544,400 

0  Development Contributions (8.)  21,936 153,348 
0  Funding from Reserves / Internal Borrowing  700,000 700,000 

176,891  Loans Raised (7.)  5,139,891 2,612,152 
      
         

417,235  Total Funding  6,473,627 4,077,300 
         
      

 

EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIATIONS TO BUDGET 
 

4. Art Gallery Refurbishment 

The project was completed slightly over budget due to additional costs not apparent until after the project was started. 

5. Hawkins Centre Renovation and Fitout 

The renovation project was able to be completed under budget. 

6. Library Books 

The library moved to new premises in October 2010, and in the months prior to the move new books were purchases 

were reduced.  It is expected that the full budget will be applied by 30 June 2011. 

7. Library Expansion, System Upgrade and Fittings  

This project was provided for across the 2008/09 and 2009/10 years.  The budget and associated funding of $2.7m from 

2008/09 was carried forward into 2009/10.  The library expansion was completed in September 2010. 

8. Development contributions 

Due to a slow down in development within the district, development contributions for this type of works were slightly less 

than anticipated. 
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Parks and Recreation 

 

What we do 

There are seven activities in the Parks and Recreation activity group:  

reserves,  

older persons’ housing,  

public conveniences,  

community halls,  

recreation facilities,  

cemeteries, and  

general property holdings. 

The Council owns and provides funding for reserves, including playgrounds. These facilities provide open spaces, sports parks for organised 
sports and recreation as well as ancillary buildings.  

The play areas target children under 12 and basketball hoops and skate facilities are for older children.  Some general property holdings have been 
purchased for future reserve access or development. 

Council provides older persons’ housing units spread over six locations. The housing is targeted at low income senior citizens and tenancies are 
determined by specific criteria. 

The Council owns and maintains two cemeteries and public conveniences at 10 locations in the District.  A further 17 amenity blocks provide 
facilities to sports teams and sports park users during game time only. 

Community hall space which is multi-purpose and used by more than one group and by casual users is provided by Council.  There are other 
Council owned properties which are leased to community organisations or used for Council staff accommodation. 

The Massey Park Aquatic Centre and the Papakura Recreation and Fitness Centre are provided and funded by Council. Both recreation facilities 
are operated under formal service contracts and provide programmes such as fitness and health, education and learning, school holiday 
programmes and indoor sport. 

 

Why we do it 

The Parks and Recreation activity provides opportunities for indoor and outdoor physical activity as well as passive enjoyment of open spaces.  As 
such the activity makes a large contribution to the quality of life within the District and to the community’s well-being. 

The provision of older persons’ accommodation and meeting spaces for community groups helps create a communal supportive environment. 

The activities within this group contribute to the Community Outcome themes relating to: 

• Accessible and cared for natural environment 

• healthy lifestyles 

• releasing the potential of our rangatahi 

• fostering involvement in arts and recreation 

• pride in our community identity and heritage 

• a well-planned built environment. 
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Negative effects 

Open spaces, play areas, community halls, cemeteries and public conveniences may allow for unsociable activities such as drugs, vandalism, 
graffiti, loitering, preying on children and be perceived as dangerous places. Council mitigates these potential negative effects through quality 
amenity development such as lighting and landscape design. Encouraging increased use of parks and other public spaces reduces the opportunity 
for anti-social behaviour. 

Public conveniences generate wastewater, cemetery operations contaminate ground water through the breakdown of heavy metals and the aquatic 
centre is a large user of energy, all of which have negative effects on the environment. 

Some general property buildings providing for community use are old and will require increasing amounts of operational maintenance expenditure.  
The recreation centre is a single facility which may not support the breadth or amount of indoor recreation activity required by the wider community 
and there is also an opportunity cost of providing many of the activity’s services. 

 

Service levels  

1. Neighbourhood, area and District reserves will meet feature and service requirements as set out in the Council’s (reserves) features and 
services policy.  The main features are the provision of two hectares of open space per 1000 head of population; the provision of premier and 
community sports parks; and the provision of at least five activities in neighbourhood park playgrounds. 

2. Council will provide facilities at the Massey Park Aquatic Centre and the Recreation Centre that meet the levels of service provided in the 
management contracts (note: there is an extensive list of service levels in the contracts across a wide range of issues), and the user 
satisfaction target is that 90 per cent indicate they are satisfied with both the facilities and the services. 

3. Council will provide public conveniences which are cleaned on an agreed schedule varying from three times per day in the busiest areas (e.g. 
the Town Centre) to once per week for remote facilities. 

4. Council will provide up to 72 well maintained units for rental by older persons of limited means. 

 

Performance to Service levels 

1. Council continued its work towards meeting this Service level however it is currently unclear whether the full scope of this Service level has 
been achieved as no measure mechanism has been put in place due to a lack of staff resources. 

2. Council largely met this Service level however fell slightly short of fully meeting the desired target with resident satisfaction with the Recreation 
Centre’s facilities and service falling slightly short (87%) of the desired target (90%). 

3. Council continued to meet this Service level in line with past performance. 

4. This Service level was largely met during the scope of this report however as a result of upgrades to the facilities (Don Street and Waimana 
Court upgrade), periods of time were experienced where less than 72 units were available for rental by older persons of limited means as 
specified in the Service level. 
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Overview 

Hingaia Sportsfields – Council resolved to purchase 10.5 acres of 205 Hingaia Road for recreation reserve.  Approval was received in late in 2010 
from the Auckland Transition Agency and the land was subsequently purchased; 

Pukekiwiriki Paa Reserve Management Plan – Plan was completed and adopted by both Te Roopu Kaitiaki o Papakura and Council.  The 
document itself features both Maori and English versions, and is targeted toward a co-management approach between Council and Kaitiaki for the 
Paa; 

Massey Park Development – Construction Contract was targeted to be let by October 2010 however was let in August 2010, ahead of the 
targeted timetable.  Construction is scheduled to be completed by July 2011; 

Aquatic Centre Upgrade – A developed design is underway for the upgrade of this facility including improving air and water quality, and providing 
a modern, clean and efficient facility for the community by replacing tiles, upgrading surfaces, repainting and providing new fixtures and furniture.  
Completion of this project will be undertaken by the Auckland Council.; 

Marybeth Reserve – The Open Space Strategy adopted in 2003 identified a number of areas where there was an under provision of parks and 
reserves.  One of these areas was Rosehill.  Subsequently, Council embarked on a project to ‘retrofit’ the Marybeth Reserve to a more suitable and 
significant park for the area.  The first step in this process was to purchase a number of properties that bounded the reserve and screened it from 
the road.  Eight properties were identified and all but one has now been purchased.  Several of these have been removed and a community 
process was started in 2009 to involve local people in the planning for the reserve; 

Mangrove Removal – This project is behind the agreed timetable as one of the trial areas did not go smoothly and several months were lost in 
negotiations and discussions on alternative methodologies.  Stage 2 is currently in planning however has not yet commenced. 

McLennan Park extension – this park has been extended following additional land purchases and land swaps with Housing New Zealand who is 
developing a neighbouring site. 

Deferral of Capital Projects – Key projects such as construction of an indoor netball centre at Bruce Pulman Park have been budgeted but not 
completed during the period.   Funding from non-Council sources for this particular project is currently being secured and once in place the project 
is expected to progress rapidly.  This will be undertaken by the Auckland Council. 

The Massey park development, McLennan park redevelopment, Central Park revitalisation and Pool redevelopment projects are currently in 
progress and due for completion shortly.  The unused budget and associated funding have been carried forward into the next accounting period 
and the project will be undertaken by the Auckland Council. 

Public Conveniences – Over the last few years a focused effort has gone into improving the Asset Management Plans enabling better renewals 
and maintenance programming.  A programme of installing new and upgraded public toilets around the District has been undertaken and over the 
period new toilets have been installed at the Village Green and Drury Domain. In addition the toilets at Ron Keat Drive have been upgraded.   
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Other Key Highlights 

• Signage for reserves and community facilities – major redesign and implementation programme completed; 

• Outdoor Events Facility – designed and completed; 

• Youngs Beach – new boat ramp and landscaping improvements; 

• New and Upgraded Public Toilets – new toilets have been installed at the Village Green and Drury Domain, with an Ron Keat toilets also 
receiving an upgrade; 

• New playgrounds – installed at Pukeroa, Challen, RaySmall Park, Tironui, Drury Domain and the Children’s Forest.  Additional features 
were also added at Balgowan, Elsie Morton and Clarice facilities; 

• Amenity blocks upgraded at various sportsgrounds; 

• Older Persons’ Housing Upgrades – major upgrades at both Don Street and Waimana Court properties; 

• Recreation Centre upgrade – toilet and change facilities renewed including disability provision; 

• Bank Stabilisation at the esplanade reserve adjacent Tytus Place in Conifer Grove. 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 250,000 Not Achieved – 249,041 

Number of visitors to the Aquatic Centre 252,494 234,812 

4 month - 65,000 Not Achieved – 50,416 

The Aquatic centre upgrade had commenced 
during this period, including resurfacing and 

repainting.  As a result there were fewer visitors 
while the work was being undertaken.   

The upgrade is continuing with the Auckland 
Council. Four month target set in line with 

seasonal expectation.   

12 month - 90% Achieved – 92% 

Levels of service specified in the Aquatic Centre 
management contract are met 77% 99% 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Council experienced a slight drop in performance 
for this measure compared to the previous year; 

however results still met the desired target. 

The Massey Park Aquatic Centre Management 
plan provides the framework for measurement of 
the success of the facility managers Community 

Leisure Management Limited (CLM).   

As part of this framework, CLM is required to 
provide evidence of a marketing programme, an 

independent customer survey, an annually agreed 
ratio of water space for casual use, water quality 

tests that meet the requirements of NZS 
5826:2000 Pool Water Quality, independent audits 

for supervision levels, health and safety audits, 
and maintenance audits as per Schedule 2 of the 

management agreement. 

12 month - 90% Achieved – 91% Percentage of Aquatic Centre users satisfied with 
the facilities and service 88.5% 91% 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

There were no significant changes in this area.  
This question was part of the Residents survey 
completed late September and early October 

2010. 

Percentage of residents that use Aquatic Centre New Measure New Measure 12 month - 20% Achieved – 49% 
A new question was added to the Residents 

Survey to assess the percentage of residents that 
use the Aquatic Centre.  It was estimated that 
approximately 20% of residents would visit the 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

facility within a 12 month period; however, 
visitation rates were significantly higher than 

expected.  

This question was part of the Residents survey 
completed late September/early October 2010. 

12 month - 85,000 Not Achieved – 71,156 

Number of leisure visitors to the Recreation Centre 83,809 99,998 

4 month - 21,875 Not Achieved – 18,792 

The number of visitors to the Recreation Centre 
was less than expected during this period and 

significantly lower than previous years.  The four 
month target was set in line with seasonal 

expectation.   

It is likely this was as a result of better weather 
than the same period in previous years, with more 

residents enjoying outdoor activities rather than 
visiting the recreation centre.  The visits to parks 
and reserves have had a corresponding increase. 

12 month - 20% Achieved – 26% 
Percentage of residents that use the Recreation 

Centre 26% 33% 
4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

As part of the Residents Survey, residents were 
asked if they had visited the Papakura Recreation 

Centre in the last 12 months.  About a quarter 
(26%) of residents have visited, dropping from 

33% last year back to the 2007/08 level. However, 
the result exceeds the target. 

12 month - 90% Not Achieved – 86% 

Percentage of Recreation Centre users satisfied 
with the facilities and services New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Just under two thirds (60%) of residents reported 
being satisfied with the recreation centre with just 

4% dissatisfied.  The balance either said they were 
neither satisfied nor dissatisfied (13%) or did not 
have an opinion (23%), with virtually all the latter 

non-users. 

Most of those who have visited in the last year 
(86%) are satisfied. 

12 month - New Measure 64% 

Percentage of residents that visited a Sport Park New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

Following the inclusion of this measure as part of 
the LTCCP data has been uncovered from past 

periods enabling a trend to be mapped (2007/08: 
53% and 2008/09 56%).  As the data was not 

visible at the time the measure was included, no 
target was set. 

A positive trend can be seen in this area. 

Percentage of residents that visited a Park or 82% 82% 12 month - 75% Achieved – 85% It was estimated that approximately 75% of 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

Reserve 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

residents would visit a park or reserve within a 12 
month period; however, visitation rates were 

significantly higher than expected.  

This question was part of the Residents survey 
completed late September/early October 2010. 

12 month - 67% Achieved – 74% Percentage of residents satisfied with facilities on 
parks (playgrounds, toilets etc) 68% 76% 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 

While there was a minor decrease in the number 
of residents that reported they were satisfied with 
facilities on parks, results still met targeted levels. 

12 month - 90% Achieved – 90% Percentage of residents satisfied with open space 
in the District 90% 88% 

4 month - Measured Annually Measured Annually 
Council have continued to maintain the service in 

this area. 

12 month - New Measure 

2 area reserves in 
planning, 3 

neighbourhood reserve 
playgrounds upgraded to 

meet requirements 

Number of parks classified as Neighbourhood, 
Area and District reserves and meeting Feature 

and Service requirements 
New Measure New Measure 

4 month - New Measure Measured Annually 

2009/10 was the first year this information was 
collected and enables Council to set future targets.  

New playground features have been added at 
Balgowan, Elsie Morton and Clarise reserves. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 
Number of playgrounds that comply with safety 

standards New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% Not Measured 

Council owns 33 parks with play areas containing 
recreational equipment in the Papakura area, and 

they all now comply with safety standards. 

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan 
for the four month period; however the result was 

only measured for the 12 month period for this 
report. 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% 

Street Trees, Gardens and Civic Grounds 
maintained in accordance with service levels New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% Not Measured 

This measure was introduced as part of the 
LTCCP 2009-19 as a result of an intention to 

report progress on maintenance for street trees, 
gardens and civic grounds.   

All service level targets were met during this 
period. 

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan 
for the four month period, however the result was 

only measured for the 12 month period for this 
report. 

 

 



Annual Report 2009-2010 

 133

PARKS AND RECREATION 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Cost of Services    

      
1,452,831  Aquatic Centre  2,046,606 1,992,955 
3,863,157  Reserves  5,825,971 5,461,441 

90,847  Community Halls  379,165 277,334 
0  Loss on disposal of Assets (1.)  1,135,184 0 

373,165  Older Persons Housing (2.)  576,486 427,355 
243,679  Cemetery  308,354 317,029 
219,438  Public Conveniences (3.)  329,317 234,362 

0  Property  1,231,445 1,215,398 
      
         

6,243,117  Total Activity Expenditure  11,832,528 9,925,874 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

5,782,232  Rates Revenue  10,979,523 9,081,376 
460,138  Fees and Charges  847,750 840,995 

0  Insurance Recovery  0 0 
0  Grants and Subsidies  5,255 3,503 

747  Loan Funding  0 0 
      
         

6,243,117  Total Funding  11,832,528 9,925,874 
         
      

 

EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

1. Loss on disposal of Assets 

This is the book loss recorded on the sale of level 4 and the car park area of Accent Point.  The sale price of $3.5m was 

applied towards the cost of fit out and refurbishment of the new library premises.  

2. Older Persons Housing  

Management of older persons housing was contracted out during the year and this additional cost, along with the 

increased depreciation charge on the newly refurbished flats, resulted in costs exceeding budget. 

3. Public Conveniences 

Increased maintenance costs and depreciation charges on the new public conveniences have resulted in costs 

exceeding budget. 
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PARKS AND RECREATION 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual        Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

69,223  Amenity Blocks   0 
0  Barrier Free Improvements  25,000 33,333 

76,038  Bruce Pulman Park Projects (4.)  25,337 1,900,000 
1,650  Cemetery Development  62,788 243,333 

564,114  Central Park Expansion and Revitalisation  2,233,873 2,500,000 
0  Community Halls  53,221 101,767 
0  Esplanade Development  0 40,000 
0  Fencing on Reserves  0 25,000 
0  Foreshore Access  19,908 0 
0  Graffiti Prevention/Target Hardening  2,939 53,333 
0  Hingaia Stream Esplanade Walkway  0 26,667 

1,469  Improve Amenities in all Parks   0 80,000 
65,346  Liquor Bylaw Signage  0 0 

0  Margan's Bush Track  0 6,667 
47,648  Massey Park Development (5.)  1,347,354 2,480,000 

0  McLennan Park (5.)  551,750 2,033,333 
851,207  Neighbourhood Reserves (6.)  501,929 0 

0  New Conveniences  0 40,000 
10,261  Open Space Facilities for Young People   4,771 86,667 
47,285  Other Capital Expenditure  104,833 31,500 
16,274  Open Space Strategy Land Acquisition  13,346 0 
97,907  Pahurehure Management Plan  99,246 359,667 

0  Park Amenity Improvements  3,062 17,333 
40,132  Parks Signage  0 75,000 

126,000  Playground Development  62,471 93,333 
35,054  Pool Operations  42,037 249,667 

0  Pool Redevelopment (5.)  510,821 1,633,333 
0  Pukekiwiriki Management Plan  41,366 133,333 
0  Ray Small Park Drainage  14,800 120,000 

14,455  Recreation and Fitness Centre  105,870 104,833 
32,725  Renewal of Conveniences   333,000 123,667 

0  Reserve Car Park Renewals  0 93,333 
0  Reserve Lighting Installation  0 13,333 

11,822  Securing Reserve Carparks  0 0 
0  Skateboard Facilities  0 50,000 
0  Sportsfield Renovations  151,960 123,333 
0  Sportsfield Development - Drury  4,799 50,000 
0  Sportsfield Development - Hingaia (7.)  4,491,009 3,494,000 

7,769,592  Sportsfields - Land Acquisition/Development   0 0 
38,680  Street Trees Planting  52,611 66,667 

0  Structures - Minor Work  25,137 33,333 
470,070  Upgrade Don Street Flats  0 0 

0  Upgrade other Rental Properties  43,529 0 
0  Upgrade Waimana Road Flats  482,208 640,000 

      
88,343  Transfer to Loan Reserves  1,083,550 1,083,550 

      
         

10,475,295  Total Capital Expenditure  12,494,525 18,239,315 
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PARKS AND RECREATION 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 

      
           Actual        Actual           Budget 

      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $  
      
  Funded by    
      

358,482  Rates Revenue  952,183 952,183 
435,323  Depreciation  1,066,800 1,066,800 
535,132  Contributions (8.)  186,454 1,233,732 
258,134  Grants and Subsidies (9.)  0 640,000 

7,775,000  Funding from Reserves   769,788 959,465 
1,113,224  Loan Raised (10.)  9,519,300 13,387,135 

      
         

10,475,295  Total Funding  12,494,525 18,239,315 
         

         
      

 

EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

4. Bruce Pulman Park Projects  

This relates to the construction of the indoor netball centre.  Funding from non-council sources is currently being secured 

and once in place the project is expected to progress rapidly. 

5. Massey Park Development/McLennan Park/Pool Redevelopment  

These projects are currently in progress and due for completion shortly.  The unused budget and associated funding 

have been carried forward into the next accounting period. 

6. Neighbourhood Reserves 

The project was provided for in previous years.  The budgets and associated funding were carried forward to 2009/10 to 

enable them to be completed in this year. 

7. Sportsfield Development - Hingaia 

The budget was exceed due to the increase in the purchase price of the land over that originally anticipated. 

8. Contributions 

Developments have progressed at a slower rate than provided for in the Annual Plan.  These are under the control of 

external parties and thus Council has no control over their progression. 

9. Subsidy 

The subsidy application for the Waimana Road flats upgrade was declined, and Council decided to continue with the 

project with funding being from reserve funds. 

10. Loan Raised 

The amount of loan funding required was less than budget due to the delay in a number of the capital work projects. 
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Transportation and Roading  

 

What we do 

The Transportation and Roading activity manages the District’s roading network and associated infrastructure such as bridges, footpaths, traffic 
lights and street lighting. The key areas of focus for this activity are: 

• Providing transportation and roading infrastructure to enable safe, efficient and sustainable movement of people and goods 

• on-going maintenance and renewal of the existing asset base with moves to improving the levels of service 

• providing new infrastructure timed to meet expected growth demands 

• working with the Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA), territorial authorities and other relevant bodies in the Auckland Region to 
plan and implement roading and public transport initiatives in an integrated manner 

• on-going road safety initiatives in conjunction with the New Zealand Transport Agency 

• continually developing the Transportation and Roading Asset Management Plan to guide Council’s future asset investment decisions. 

 

Why we do it 

An efficient transport network is essential to the social and economic well-being of the community.  

This activity contributes to the following Community Outcomes: 

• Access to the natural environment and recreational opportunities is encouraged through integrated physical infrastructure 

• physical environments enhance personal safety 

• the District’s infrastructure is sustainable and caters for the community’s needs and activities 

• new developments are designed to enhance people’s quality of life, health and social connectedness 

• roading and public transport infrastructure is integrated and functional. 

Integrated walking and cycling infrastructure and appropriate roading connections give access to the natural environment and recreational 
opportunities and meet the community’s safety, business and recreational needs and activities. 

Transportation services associated with new developments are designed to enhance people’s quality of life, health and social connectedness. 
These well-planned physical environments, together with community education initiatives, enhance personal safety. 
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Negative effects 

The provision of additional roading to manage increases in traffic volumes, has negative environmental effects such as the impact on water quality 
where pollutants from roads run into waterways, air quality (pollution from vehicle emissions) and the long-term impacts of vehicle emissions on 
climate change.  

There are also negative public health effects from vehicle emissions. The negative impacts are offset by the focus within the activity on encouraging 
public transport and other alternative transport modes such as walking and cycling. 

 

Service levels  

The key service levels for the activity are: 

1. Less than four per cent of the District’s sealed roads will have a roughness exceeding 150 NAASRA counts 

2. The average roughness  value of sealed urban roads will be less than 90 (very good = less than 80, fair = between 80 and 120, and poor = 
over 120) 

3. The average roughness of sealed rural roads will be less than 100 (very good = less than 80, fair = between 80 and 120, and poor = over 120) 

4. Roads are safe and comfortable to travel on. 

 
Performance to Service levels 
1. Council continued to meet this Service level for the scope of this report however it should be noted that an increase in the roughness indicator 

was reported for this period.  Further information on this result is shown in the table below. 

2. Council did not meet this Service level requirement with independent analysis of the average roughness value of sealed urban roads reported 
as 98, a slight increase on past years' performance.  Further information on this result is shown in the table below. 

3. This Service level was met with a roughness value of 99 being reported.  This value is the same as reported in the previous period.  Further 
information on this result is shown in the table below. 

4. No quantifiable measure has been developed to assess the success of this Service level, however the results of the three preceding Service 
levels (shown above) indicate that Council has largely been successful in this area. 

 
Overview 

Mill Road Corridor (MRC) Study – the MRC study is a strategic transport study that, should it progress to new road construction, will lead to the 
linking of Flat Bush and Drury.  A range of routes were presented, analysed in detail, consulted on and subjected to a technical refinement process.  
In May 2010 the MRC Study was completed.  It proposes a mix of existing roads and new roads through undeveloped land to provide a route from 
the District boundary with Manukau City at Ranfurly Road through to Drury, terminating at the State Highway 1 and 22 interchange. Further 
development now rests with the new Auckland Council; 

Railway Street West Reconnection – land was purchased in 2008/09 to enable the reconnection to happen.  A tender for the construction works 
was approved in August 2010 with work scheduled for the 2010/11 summer construction period; 

Public Transport improvements – Railway Street West Bus/Rail interchange completed including improvements to local infrastructure at the site 
(e.g. first bus priority kerbing in NZ, provision for a second lift); 

Central Park Land Purchases – land was purchased at 18-23 Railway Street West to allow for the reconnection (see above) and potential future 
community facilities adjacent to the Park.  69 Wood Street was also purchased to enable safe intersection design for the reconnection and to 
incorporate the balance of the land into the Park; 
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Boardwalks – further construction in Kirks Bush, King Street and Inlet Road; 

Transportation and Roading Asset Management Plan (TRAMP) – independent review confirmed that renewals were now at an equivalent level 
to that of the rest of Auckland region with cost at or below the mean cost of the Auckland region. 

Reprioritisation – Reprioritisation of projects occurred as a result of the pending the Auckland Council amalgamation.  Fewer works were 
completed to create new public walkways and cycleways, and efforts went into renewing those footpaths identified as in poor condition.  The 
Central park master plan is one such area that has been deferred and will be included in the new Council works planning.    

 

Other Key Highlights 

Porchester Road Improvement – During the period the first of three stages to upgrade Porchester Road between Walters Road and Airfield Road 
was completed.  The further stages of this project will be undertaken by Auckland Transport. 

Hingaia Road – Growth on Hingaia Peninsula over the last half decade has required prompt advancement of improvements to Hingaia Road. Two 
stages have been completed heading west from the Papakura interchange and are adjacent to development now underway. The third stage is 
planned to be completed in remainder of the 2010/11 year and will be undertaken by Auckland Transport.  

Takanini Gobi Block Removal – There has been considerable progress in removing gobi block surfacing from roadways in the Takanini area. 
Three locations of gobi block replacement have now been completed. In 2010/11 the balance of Princess Street will be completed along with a 
portion of Takanini School Road and will be undertaken by Auckland Transport. 

Clevedon Road Bridge – Two years of planning to replace the Clevedon Road rail over bridge will come to fruition in March 2011 when the bridge 
replacement is completed. This incorporates the additional facility sought by Council and a bridge that accommodates the Auckland (rail) 
Electrification Programme where greater separation with rail lines is required. 

Footpath Upgrades – Over a two-year period, Council provided sufficient funds to eliminate all poor and very poor condition footpaths in the urban 
streets of the District. During 2010/11, the second of two stages of footpath upgrades will be completed by Auckland Transport.  
Road Safety – In spite of a relatively low expenditure budget, Council’s road safety and traffic engineering initiatives have progressed with 
considerable effect.  

Road Safety Improvements – In addition to the engineering solutions there have been a number of projects targeting education and awareness 
raising e.g. car restraint clinics and motorcycle safety training. Nine schools have signed up to School Travel Plans and five walking school buses 
have been established. 

 

New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) Funding 

In the 2009/10 year there was a reduction in the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) funding.  This decrease in funding did not 
have a significant impact on Service levels with reprioritisation of projects allowing Council to largely meet Service levels as outlined 
above. 

 

Auckland Transport 

In future this activity will be undertaken by the Auckland Transport CCO as part of the Auckland Council.   

While it is expected the Service levels will continue to be maintained and consolidated into the new organisation, some interactions between 
agencies (such as Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) mentioned above) will no longer be relevant as all Transport related issues will 
be directly administered by Auckland Transport (and the New Zealand Transport Agency where applicable for roads of national significance). 
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Activity Measures 
 

Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 100% Percentage of urgent service requests 
(emergency) for roading maintenance problems 

responded to within one hour 
New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% 

12 month - 100% 
Percentage of urgent service requests (Priority 

1 - Accident/Vandalism) for Traffic lights 
maintenance problems responded to within one 

hour 
New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% 

12 month - 90% 
Percentage of service requests (Priority 2 - 
SCATS ST/NZ Alarm Faults for Traffic lights 

maintenance problems responded to within four 
hours 

New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 90% 

12 month - 90% 
Percentage of service requests (Priority 3 - 

Faults not affecting safe operations) for Traffic 
lights maintenance problems responded to 

within 24 hours 

New Measure New Measure 
4 month - 90% 

Not Measured 

Council was unable to establish a reliable system of 
measurement for these measures.   

Council process is to directly contact the roading maintenance 
contractor (HEB Ltd) to ensure timely response.  100% of 

these calls have been made, however there is no system in 
place to confirm that HEB Ltd has responded within the 

required timeframe. 

Most urgent service requests are associated with weather 
events that generate problems with trees and/or flooding. As 

such, they predominantly lie outside Council's ability to 
proactively manage. 

No complaints have been received to say that the issue is not 
being fixed. 

12 month - <4% Achieved – 3.7% Percentage of the District's sealed network with 
roughness exceeding 150 NAASRA counts 3.5% 2.3% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

The road roughness is a measure of the average road surface 
and pavement condition.  The smaller the figure, the better 

the condition.  Further information below † 

12 month - <90 Not Achieved – 98 Road condition measure: average roughness 
value of sealed urban roads 109 96 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

There has been an increase indicating road surface and 
pavement deterioration.  This is due to increasing traffic 

loading on the urban road network, particularly high volumes 
of heavy commercial vehicles on arterial and business roads.  

The works programme is addressing this issue. 

12 month - <100 Achieved – 99 Road condition measure: average roughness 
value of sealed rural roads 108 99 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

The condition of rural roads is being maintained, within the 
current works programme. 

12 month - 60% Achieved – 100% Percentage of urban pedestrian crossings 
enhanced with facilities for hearing and sight 

impaired 
88% 100% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

Pedestrian crossings in the urban area have been fitted with 
textured markings to assist sight impaired, and crossings at 

traffic lights now include sound signals. 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 40% Achieved – 44% Percentage of residents satisfied with provision 
for pedestrians in rural areas 35% 50% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

Some 44% of those surveyed in the residents’ survey were 
prepared to say they were satisfied with the way pedestrians 
are catered for in rural areas, with 13% saying they were very 

satisfied.   

12 month - 80% Achieved – 84% Percentage of residents satisfied with provision 
for pedestrians in urban areas 71% 80% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

Well over three quarters of residents are satisfied with how 
pedestrians are catered for in urban area, with 30% of those 

surveyed being very satisfied. 

12 month - 75% Achieved – 76% Percentage of residents that perceive train 
stations and bus stops to be safe: day 76% 81% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

About three quarters of residents say they feel it is safe 
catching public transport during the day, with 32% of those 

surveyed feeling it is very safe.   

12 month - 50% Not Achieved - 31% 
Percentage of residents that perceive train 
stations and bus stops to be safe: evening 23% 31% 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

About a third of residents felt it was safe at night.  A similar 
number, 33% had the opposing view, feeling it was unsafe. 
Councils continued works in this area such as lighting and 

security patrols will address this. 

12 month - Two Achieved – Three 

In spite of a relatively low expenditure budget, Council’s road 
safety and traffic engineering initiatives have progressed with 

considerable effect.   

Key successes include Great South Rd and Spartan Rd 
intersection; introducing a no right turn, and the rumble strip 

installation at the Mill Rd and Airfield Rd intersection. 
Number of safety related works to improve 

identified hazardous sites per annum Three Five 

4 month - One Not Achieved – None 

No safety improvements were undertaken in this period.  It is 
expected that safety improvements will be undertaken during 
the 8 month period under the management of the Auckland 

Transport CCO. 

12 month - Decline by 1% Decrease of 14% Number of motor vehicle injury crashes per 
year New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measure 
Annually Measured Annually 

Motor vehicle injury crashes has decreased from 91 to 78 in 
the 2009 calendar year. 

Completion of pavement rehabilitation per 
annum New Measure New Measure 12 month - 3.2km Not Achieved – 3.1km 

This measure was added as part of the LTCCP 2009-19.   

Estimations at the time of the measure development were 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

4 month - 1.1km Not measured 

delivery of 3.2km (and 1.1km for the 4 month period).  While 
Council did not reach this target, the service delivery was in 

line with the indicated target.  

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four 
month period; however the result was only measured for the 

12 month period for this report. 

12 month - 24km Achieved – 24km 

Completion of pavement resurfacing per annum New Measure New Measure 
4 month - 8km Not Measured 

This measure was added as part of the LTCCP 2009-19. 

Service delivery was in line with the target and included 
resurfacing in areas, such as Porchester Road, Hingaia Road, 

and Clevedon Road Bridge. 

A target was included in the 2009/10 Annual Plan for the four 
month period; however the result was only measured for the 

12 month period for this report. 

12 month - 675m Achieved – 2,064m 
Construction of new footpath per annum New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 225m Achieved – 1,680m 

Additional works were completed as a result of reprioritisation 
pending the Auckland Council amalgamation.  These include 

Hingaia Peninsula and Porchester Road. 

12 month - 3km Achieved – 8.014km 

Additional works were completed as a result of reprioritisation 
pending the Auckland Council amalgamation.   

The northern area of the district was completed in the 12 
months to 30 June 2010, and the southern area commenced 
in September 2010 and continues into the Auckland Council. 

Renewal of footpaths per annum New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 1km Not Achieved – 450m 
Fewer renewal works were completed as a result of 

reprioritisation pending the Auckland Council amalgamation 

12 month - 100% Achieved – 100% Completion of all pavement sweeping (including 
cesspit grate clearing) to meet contract 

specification 
New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 100% Not Achieved – 90% 

Pavement sweeping (including cesspit grate clearing) met or 
exceeded contract specifications for the 12 month period, 

however fell slightly short during the 4 month period. 

12 month - New Measure 80% 
Percentage of residents that perceive public car 

parks to be safe: day New Measure New Measure 
4 month - Measured 

Annually Measured Annually 

2009/10 was the first year this information was collected and 
enables Council to set future targets.  Over three quarters 
(80%) of residents do feel Papakura’s public car parks are 

safe during the daytime, although just 21% of those surveyed 
deem them to be very safe. 

12 month - New Measure 25% Percentage of residents that perceive public car 
parks to be safe: evening New Measure New Measure 

4 month - Measured 
Annually Measured Annually 

Opinions changed markedly once night falls with 46% saying 
car parks are unsafe compared with 25% who feel they are 

safe. 2009/10 was the first year this information was collected 
and enables Council to set future targets. 
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Previous Results Target Results Measure 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 Comment 

12 month - 2km Not Achieved – 
1.64km 

Fewer works were completed to create new public walkways 
and cycleways as a result of reprioritisation pending the 

Auckland Council amalgamation.  The Central park master 
plan is one such area that has been deferred.   Kilometres of new public walkways and 

cycleways New Measure New Measure 

4 month - 1km Achieved – 1km 
Walkways and cycleways have been added in the Addison 

Park, Karaka Lakes and Karaka Harbourside developments. 

† NAASRA - Road roughness is a key indicator of the performance of the roading network. There is a close relationship between road roughness and ride quality. The unit for roughness measure is NAASRA (National 
Association of Australian State Roading Authorities) counts per kilometre, which was originally adopted by the NZ National Roading Board and continues to be used by NZTA. The test is undertaken by driving a vehicle with 
a laser sensor over the whole network. The roughness factor is calculated using an algorithm specified in the standard. 

Papakura Council has historically calculated and recorded this factor separately against the rural and urban sectors of the sealed network. This additional information is also provided in the Annual Reports as it provides 
context for any trends. Within Papakura District, the urban network generally has a higher roughness factor than the rural areas as much of the roughness is due to reinstatement issues associated with utilities within the 
road corridor. 

While the target for the whole of the sealed network has been met, Council's engineers are aware of (A) a trend of increased roughness and (B) a higher roughness factor in the urban areas.  To address these issues in the 
future, the following advice has been passed to the Auckland Transport Asset Managers: (1) Seek additional funding to increase the scope of the programme; (2) Increase the level of monitoring of reinstatement and Road 
Opening Notice (RON) administration. 
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TRANSPORTATION AND ROADING 
STATEMENT OF COST OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
  Activity Expenditure    
      

1,338,519  Administration and Overheads  2,251,772 2,141,222 
5,252,520  Depreciation (1.)  7,980,440 6,764,053 
1,030,822  Interest Expense  1,230,415 1,642,293 

970,932  Forward Planning Projects  432,622 339,149 
3,030,907  Operations and Maintenance (2.)  6,395,687 5,593,277 

166,975  Safety Projects  175,498 15,667 
246,561  Street Cleaning  414,938 480,742 

      
         

12,037,236  Total Activity Expenditure  18,881,372 16,976,403 
         
      
      
  Funded by    
      

7,483,971  Rates Revenue  9,255,987 8,590,426 
90,380  Fees and Charges  15,333 22,517 

1,368,513  Grants and Subsidies  2,051,028 2,020,823 
236,850  Depreciation  1,127,637 1,127,637 

0  Loan Raised  1,665,000 1,665,000 
      
         

9,179,714  Total Funding  14,114,985 13,426,403 
         
      

2,857,522  Plus Non-funded Depreciation (3.)  4,766,387 3,550,000 
      
         

12,037,236    18,881,372 16,976,403 
         
      

 

EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

1. Depreciation 

Revaluation of infrastructure assets and the addition of a significant amount of vested assets has resulted in increased 

depreciation costs from that anticipated. 

2. Operations and Maintenance 

The increase against budget is the result of unbudgeted remedial works and some increases in maintenance costs. 

3. Non-funded Depreciation 

In this activity the non-funded depreciation allows for future Transfund New Zealand subsidies offsetting the cost of asset 

renewals to Council ($3,550,000) and depreciation charge in excess of the budget due to unbudgeted depreciation 

arising from vested assets. 
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TRANSPORTATION AND ROADING 
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

16,694  5 Way Interchange Clevedon Road Land/Construction   
839,828  Annual Pavement Reconstruction Programme  969,311 1,333,333 
822,038  Annual Pavement Rehabilitation Programme  1,043,366 1,066,667 

0  Annual Power Undergrounding Programme  105,000 200,000 
373,431  Annual Rural Roads Improvement Programme  429,446 225,000 

0  Boundary Road Upgrade  122 50,000 
50,000  Bridges and Culverts  109,355 69,000 
55,173  Bus Shelters and Embayments  50,646 70,000 
9,080  Cameras at Signalised Intersections  0 0 

101,295  Central Station Park and Ride  0 0 
1,444,761  Chipseal/Hotmix Renewal Programme  2,017,723 1,798,100 

84,771  Clevedon/Broadway Rail Overbridge and Intersections  189,514 447,500 
0  Clevedon-Marne-Willis Intersection Upgrade (4.)  55,844 1,030,000 

204,276  Construction Signalised Intersections  0 0 
263,889  Construction/Implementation of Cycleways  0 0 

0  Corridor Maintenance  15,900 26,933 
0  Corridor Studies  363,217 400,000 

251,074  District Directional Signage  196,527 255,400 
226,422  Emergency Works  0 0 

52,877  Footpath Construction  0 0 
123,108  Footpath and Walkways  599,168 940,233 

0  Gobi Blocks Replacement Programme  893,545 1,290,000 
29,502  Great South/Beach Road Intersection (5.)  355,539 1,300,000 

0  Great South Road - Park Estate to Slippery Creek  312,216 85,000 
269,820  Hildene Road  33,378 0 

59,654  Hingaia Peninsula Road Network Improvements (6.) 1,692,581 4,200,000 
343,548  Hingaia Road Pararekau Road Intersection  0 0 

3,812  Ingram/Prictor Realignment  0 0 
364,560  Ingram Street Widening  0 0 
253,435  Kerb and Channel/Drainage Renewal Programme  378,424 425,000 
456,471  Keri Vista New Access  0 0 

48,898  LATM Schemes  0 0 
135  Le Havre Place Gobi Block Replacement  0 0 

14,981  Lighting Walkways  14,387 0 
0  Manuroa Road  134,613 135,000 
0  Manuroa Road - Rail Overbridge and Approaches (7.) 0 2,900,000 

192,497  Manuroa Road Gobi Block Replacement  107,151 0 
0  Mill Road Corridor  0 250,000 

456,488  Minor Improvements Projects Programme  402,899 621,667 
19,565  Miscellaneous Road Widening Works  159,660 160,000 

177,711  Miscellaneous Subdivision Development Works  196,120 166,667 
0  Network Planning and Modelling  121,114 165,000 
0  Operations and Maintenance  0 12,000 
0  Overhead to Underground Power  300,038 0 
0  Papakura Interchange  284,195 285,000 

154,090  Porchester Road Construction (8.)  3,531,758 6,595,060 
0  Preventative Maintenance and Emergency Repairs  3,143 200,000 

5,379,274  Railway Street West Link   1,684,122 1,973,000 
61,994  Revitalisation Wellington Street  0 0 
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TRANSPORTATION AND ROADING 
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
      

           Actual        Actual           Budget 
      12 Months to       16 Months to    16 Months to 
      30 June 2009    31 October 2010 31 October 2010 

            $                $             $ 
      

0  Safety Projects  0 376,750 
25,697  School Travel Plan Implementation  0 0 

268,873  Street Lighting  423,568 502,131 
162,872  Takanini Grade Separation  0 0 

0  Takanini Rail Station  0 50,000 
611,350  Town Centre Amenity Lighting  0 0 

41,219  Town Centre Amenity Signs  0 0 
1,975,545  Town Centre / Broadway Revitalisation  0 0 

101,250  Town Centre Revitalisation Railway/Clevedon  0 0 
0  Traffic Signals Upgrading  384,012 241,667 

138,976  Turning Heads  74,697 220,000 
251,617  Walking and Cycling Programme Implementation  643,783 705,000 

      
63,000  Internal Loan Repayments  0 0 

0  Transfer to Loan Reserves  892,860 892,860 
      
         
16,845,551  Total Capital Expenditure  19,168,942 31,663,968 
         
      
      

  Funded by    
      

39,295  Rates Revenue  892,860 855,661 
820,469  Contributions (9.)  2,358,092 2,979,289 

2,484,883  Transfund New Zealand Subsidy (10.)  5,104,089 10,273,909 
2,013,150  Depreciation  4,433,538 5,541,923 

0  Development Cost Recovery  0 0 
11,487,754  Loan Raised (11.)  6,380,363 12,013,186 

      
         

16,845,551  Total Funding  19,168,942 31,663,968 
         
         
      

EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES TO BUDGET 

4. Clevedon-Marne-Willis Intersection Upgrade 

This project was subject to a slight delay and completion is now due early 2011. 

5. Great South/Beach Road Intersection 

This project was subject to a slight delay and was completed after balance date. 

6. Hingaia Peninsula Road Network Improvements  

This project was subject to a slight delay and completion is now expected 2011. 
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7. Manuroa Road - Rail Overbridge and Approaches  

This project is to be undertaken in conjunction with the proposed rail electrification project and therefore timing is 

dependent on external parties and outside the control of Council. 

8. Porchester Road Construction  

This project was subject to a slight delay but has been completed subsequent to balance date. 

9. Contributions 

Developments have progressed at a slower rate than provided for in the Annual Plan.  These are under the control of 

external parties and thus Council has no control over their progression. 

10. Transfund New Zealand Subsidy  

Subsidies relating to capital projects not yet undertaken are not yet sought from Transfund New Zealand. 

11. Loan Raised 

The amount of loan funding required was less than budget due to the delay in a number of the capital work projects. 
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Community Outcomes 
 

In 2005 Council undertook comprehensive consultation with the community in preparing a set of Community Outcomes.  These outcomes were 
grouped into eight main themes and presented as follows: 

 

Accessible and cared for natural environment  

• Appropriate recreational facilities are available around water and forest areas; 

• there is sustainable recreational use of the natural environment; 

• access to the natural environment and recreational opportunities is encouraged through integrated physical infrastructure (e.g. roading, 
walkways); 

• people take collective responsibility for the care of our natural environment. 

 

A safe and stable community 

• Our physical environments enhance personal safety; 

• there is minimal graffiti and littering in the District; 

• a range of quality housing in well-planned neighbourhoods is available throughout the District; 

• residents demonstrate commitment to the long-term well-being of the District; 

• people living and working in the District are aware of and can influence decision-making that affects the community. 

 

Fostering involvement in arts and recreation  

• The District has well developed and maintained centres for arts and recreation activities; 

• a variety of accessible and attractive places and opportunities for recreational activity cater for people of all ages and abilities; 

• people are healthy through involvement in recreational activity. 

 

Pride in our community and heritage 

• Papakura District has a strong and positive identity; 

• our important cultural and heritage sites are known and protected; 

• there is a sense of community pride and belonging among District residents; 

• people in Papakura celebrate and support our cultural heritage. 
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Town Centre as the heart of the District  

• The Town Centre is vibrant and attractive; 

• the Town Centre area has both a strong business presence and a variety of leisure opportunities; 

• the Town Centre has a distinctive identity embraced by residents; 

• there is a mix of boutique and chain stores in the Town Centre. 

 

A well planned built environment 

• The District’s infrastructure is sustainable and caters of the community’s diverse needs and activities; 

• new developments are designed to enhance people’s quality of life, health, and social connectedness; 

• roading and public transport infrastructure is integrated and functions; 

• beauty and functionality are balanced in our built environment. 

 

Healthy lifestyles 

• The way we plan and use our environment promotes healthy lifestyle choices; 

• people have access to and are encouraged to participate in a range of activities that promote personal health and well-being; 

• people and communities have access to a range of appropriate health services and resources. 

 

Releasing the potential of our rangatahi  

• A range of quality educational and vocational opportunities is available to our youth; 

• youth development is supported by role models and mentors; 

• quality facilities and events encourage youth participation in recreation and leisure activities; 

• youth initiatives within the District are encouraged and supported. 

 

Where did the outcomes come from? 

The Papakura District Community Outcomes were identified through a wide-ranging set of methods including a children’s art activity, a survey 
through the Youth Expo gathering opinions from more than 600 young people, and the commissioning of high school students to create videos of 
young people’s view.  Feedback was also gathered from teenagers involved in a kapa haka group, and a hui-a-iwi was held for Māori. An event was 
run for business people, and bus tours of the District were organised for all interested people to join and talk about what they saw and what they 
want. A telephone survey and focus groups were also undertaken to confirm and validate the views expressed through the other methods.   
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What progress have we made? 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires a local authority to monitor and, not less than every 3 years report on the progress made by the 
community of its District in achieving the community outcomes for the District. 

The Local Government Act 2002 (Amendment) Bill proposes significant changes to the community outcome process and changes the obligations of 
Local Authorities in this area.  During the year the Council decided that due these impending changes and the formation of the Auckland Council no 
reporting would occur on progress against community outcomes in the current period and that future reporting would be the responsibility of 
Auckland Council. 

As demonstrated in the table below the Councils activities are linked to the community outcomes.  Our review of the activities for which the council 
is responsible for indicate that progress has been made achieving the outcomes the community seeks. 
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Council Controlled Organisations (CCOs) 
The Council has one Council Controlled organisation to support it in delivering its services to the community. 

 

Safer Papakura Trust 

 

Why does it exist? 

The primary objective of the Trust is to work towards making the Papakura District feel safe and look great by removing graffiti and providing 
security services, rather than making a financial return. 

 

What does it do? 

The key activities of the Trust are  

• Effective removal of graffiti in public spaces 

• Providing advice and support to private property owners regarding graffiti removal 

• Gathering intelligence regarding graffiti in the district 

• Establishing community networks to contribute to graffiti removal 

• Providing security monitoring and foot patrols in the Papakura CBD, at the Park and Ride and in the Farmers car park 

• Providing training and skill development programmes for long term unemployed people 

On the formation of Auckland Council the Safer Papakura Trust is retained as a trust under Auckland Council. 

Council considers receives reports from the Trust on a quarterly basis.  The results below reflect the trusts performance for the year ended 30 June 
2010. 

 

Statement of intent 

The statement of intent for the Trust for the year ended 30 June 2010 was approved by the Council in October 2009. 
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Key Performance Measures 

Performance Targets Indicator Result Comment 

Effective graffiti removal 
service in public spaces 

Graffiti removal from high priority public 
spaces within 24 hours. 

Graffiti removal from other public spaces 
within 48 hours 

Graffiti removal from parks, trees and 
walkways in 7 days. 

Achieved Graffiti vandalism is tracking at 50% of the levels in 
the prior year.   

With the reduction in incidence the trust has been 
able to remove all graffiti within 24 hours of 
reporting. 

Establish effective 
communications systems 

Four communications exercises annually 

Increase in initial customer contact with 
the Trust 

Decrease in initial customer contact with 
the Council 

Achieved The Trusts newsletter, Our Place, is distributed by 
post and mail monthly.  During the year the Trust 
has also had 12 media articles written about its 
activities. 

Requests for service direct to the trust averaged 33 
per month compared to 71 per month in the prior 
year. 

Provide advice and support 
to private property owners to 

remove graffiti 

Support programmes developed with all 
neighbourhood retail centres 

Achieved Adopt a spot meetings were held in late 2009 and 
April 2010.   

At Sept 2010 there were 120 participants in the 
programme.   

Anecdotal evidence from discussions with residents 
supports that they are noticing a reduction in graffiti. 

Effective intelligence 
gathering processes 

Tag database is current 

Top 10 tags are identified and pursued 
by police 

Establish and active partnership with 
Community crimewatch patrols 

Achieved During the year the trust has implemented an online 
database tool – STOP tags.   

This allows much easier sharing of intelligence with 
the police and has resulted in the top 10 tags being 
identified. 

The Truancy Action Group and Graffiti action groups 
are still in operation and the Trust has initiated 
meetings with Community patrols, Maori Wardens 
and police to share information regarding hot spots. 
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Performance Targets Indicator Result Comment 

Establish a community 
network to contribute to 

graffiti removal 

 

General programme for schools 
established 

Four schools developed specific graffiti 
prevention or removal programme 

General programme for community 
established 

Six local volunteer groups involved in 
graffiti removal 

Achieved Adopt a spot continues to grow each month.   

Twice a week 2 vans of IHC persons volunteer to 
remove graffiti from parks and some private 
properties.   

The trusts mural programme has seen new murals at 
Rosehill shops by Rosehill intermediate, Mansell 
Senior and participation of over 100 students from 
Takanini school.   

These murals can be seen on You Tube. 

Provide security monitoring 
and foot patrols in the 

Papakura CBD 

Supervise and manage the work-skills 
ambassador programme with at least 
four ambassadors operating at a time 

Provision of a visible security presence 
patrolling the town centre 

Ambassadors trained and attired in a 
professional manner 

Provision of security services at a 
minimum of three town centre events 

Achieved The number of incidents in the town centre has fallen 
by 50% over the year which has allowed the 
ambassadors to provide more of a public relations 
activity.   

The ambassadors have also worked with schools to 
reduce the incidence of truancy and they check 
youth’s school passes to ensure they have a 
legitimate reason not to be at school.   

The Trust provided security at the santa parade, 
spring carnival and sounds at sunset events. 
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